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At a glance

We are a payments business

By making payments easier, we bring more speed, secunity
and efficiency to consumers, retailers and businesses, banks,
payment providers and governments

About our business

We are the exclusive European licensee of the Visa brand,
products and technotogy We partner with Visa Inc o enable
global Visa payments to take place Yet we exist and cperate
as an entirely separate European organisation

We sell a range of services te our members, including

® | icences to use the Visa brand, products
and payment services

* Transaction processing services

Risk and fraud management services

Consulting services

e Education and training services

Visa Europe Annual Report 2010 1




At a glance

Visa Europe

The European payment system

European ownership and control

Exclusively owned by 4,176 European members, who retain
direct strategic control over their payment card business

Investing in European payments

An investment of €1 bithon in new European processing
platforms, new nnovations and the accelerated migration
te Europe's EMV-based payment infrastructure

Efficient and cost-effective

A lean, not-for-profit business model, offering low scheme
fees and significant scale economes

Open and transparent

An open, competitive system, based on standard technologies,
enabling members to exercise free commercial choice across

every facet of therr payments business

A sustainable economic model

An agreement was reached with the European Commission

on the interchange rate for cross-border, immediate
debt transactions
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At Visa Europe, we provide:

¢ The Visa brand - giving everyone the knowledge and
confidence that Visa payments are accepted, securely
and reliably any time, any place, across any channel

e The Visa processing systems - providing the global
cannectivity and capability to route, switch, authorise, clear
and settle transactions between any participating payment
provider and, ulimately, any participating retaller werldwide

* The Visa operating regulations - defining the roles and
responsibilities of each participant i every transaction
and the precise way that Visa payments must work




The four party model

Any cardholder can use Visa to pay at retailers in more than
200 countrtes worldwide Those retailers can use Visa to accept
payments from more than 2 2 billion cardholders worldw:de

What makes this possible is the Visa four party model

Visa enables cardbolders, 1ssuers, acquirers and parbicipating
retallers to do business with each other Visa s the 'glue’ that
binds the whole system together

At a glance
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At a glance

The benefits we bring

Every participant in any transaction
benefits from the speed, security and
simplicity of Visa payments

The member benefits
By participating in Visa Europe, our members benefit from

® Increased revenues
® Reduced costs
e Better consumer and market insights

= mproved customer acquisition and retention

Reduced fraud costs and losses

Compeliing marketing and promotional opportunities

* Expert reputation and advocacy advice and guidance
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The consumer benefits
By using Visa, consumers benefit from

e Flexsbility and convenience
* Speed, simplioty and spontaneity
® Protection from theft, loss and fraud

* The ability to make purchases or withdraw cash at home
or internationally

* The freedom to buy safely in person, over the telephone,
through the post or on the internet




The retailer benefits
By accepting Visa, retailers can benefit from

Rapid settlement and guaranteed payment

Reduced costs relating to cash handhing, fraud prevention,
fraud losses and robbery, as well as reduced opportunities
for staff errors or pilferage

Quicker transaction times, enabhng a more efficient
throughput of transactions

The ability to provide cash withdrawal services (cash back)
to customers, further reducing the costs and risks of
cash handling

Avoiding the costs and risks of providing credit to
therr customers

The ability to trade across multiple channels (such as the
internet, telephone and mail order), to introduce self-checkout
services and fo offer pre-booking services

More efficient accounting and book-keeping {particularly
for smaller businesses)

At a glance

The economy benefits

Our payment solutions also bring real benefits to the wider
European economy

s Avoiding the inherent inefficiency and insecurity of
cash payments

* Removing barners to trade and increasing access to hawdity

Reducing the shadow economies

Reducing financial exclusion

Aiding European integration

L]

Enabling prompt, guaranteed payment to take place

Visa Eurppe Annual Report 2010
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At a glance

What makes us different

Visa Europe benefits from a whole range
of attributes and assets which can be

regarded as truly unique

QOur brand

Visa is, unquestionably, the world’s leading payments brand
Consumers and retallers hike Visa, they trust Visa and they
understand Visa Our ‘Life flows better with Visa’ brand
campaign shows how Visa can make hfe easier - for
consumers, for businesses, for public sector organisations
and for our members

QOur products and services

As a distinctly European company, our products, services

and innovations respond to the particular needs of European
payment providers, retailers and consumers For example, V PAY
i5 our chip-only debit card designed specifically for Europe

Our system of governance

We are the payment industry’s only pan-Eurcpean membership
assoctation Visa Europe 1s owned and controlled by European
payment providers They agree on our strategic direction, our
investments and our innovations
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Our low-cost business model

As a membership association, we operate a low-cost business
model We deliver services in a cost-effective way to our
members and we are solely focused on their business priorities
We have no cther agenda, nor do we seek to make a profit - only
tc ensure that we are adequately capitalised as a business

Our processing services

We have invested heawvily in our new European processing
platforms Designed in Europe for Eurcpe, these represent a
significant strategic asset which is collectively owned by our
members Qur service I1s flexible, scalable, fast, reliable,
low-cost and highly capable

Qur people

We are passionate about paymenis We know about the tocls
and the innovations that will improve our members’ business
performance, and we are always eager to share our expertise
We therefore attract and nurture a wide range of skills -
employing banking, technotogy, marketing, consulting, risk
management, retailing, research, business analysis and legal
speciahsts from 49 countries worldwide




At a glance

mt of sale spending

€9 5 3 b I l Contactless Visa cards 1ssued by
Visa Europe members

e
Visa cards issued by Visa Europe members m +
| 0 8 | ' | Commltmenls to1ssue V PAY cards

(AVlsa-branded credit card, issued by HSBC, 6 3 l I l

was placed at number 99 in the BBC's 2010
series on "A history of the world in 100 objects

Visa Europe employees

-1397

f

by Visa Europe
Countries covered by Vis2 Europ Everyday spendmgtransacted on a Visa card

36 €1 n€9

Local offices located
throughout Europe

Qur investment in Europe's payments infrastructure I 8
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Forewords

A sound business strategy, backed
up by disciplined risk management,
is delivering strong growth and
enabling value-creating innovations

In this section

CEQ's staterment 10
Charman's statement 14
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Forewords

CEOQO’s statement

A European success story

Despite the challenging economic times, Visa Europe
and its membersh:p made substantial progress in 2010

We have seen a return to double digit growth Our key scorecard
measures have been exceeded Some very significant new
innovations have been implemented, with several more in

the development pipeline We have also reached a definitive
agreement with the European Commission an the underlying
economic model for immediate debit payment cards and
completed the acquisition and integration of SAS Carte Bleve

2010 can therefore be regarded as a successful year for
Visa Europe However, it 1s important to remain mimdful
of the wtder environment

Some of our members continue to face difficult domestic
circumstances and, as European austenity measures begin to
bite, there 1s concern that consumer spending will be negatively
affected This moed of caution 1s backed up by the results of the
Visa Europe Expenditure Index, which uses Visa transaction data
to anticipate and supplement official retall spending statistics

in two of our key markets, Sweden and the UK This suggests
that growth remams fragile and that any recovery 1s likely to

be subdued

Our research programmes also suggest that radical measures
will need to wean certain consumer segments and retailer
sectors away from hard cash Qur members are certainly
enthusiastic about the type of innovations that could assist i
the fight against cash but, for many of them, investment funds
remain in short supply

10 Visa Europe Annual Report 2010

In summary, therefore, we are proud of our 2010 perfermance
We also remain cautiously optimistic about the future But our
mood s tempered by the realities and challenges we face out
in the marketplace

Stronger than anticipated growth

One of cur strategic objectives is to displace all other means
of payment So, clearly, point of sale (POS) actiity 1s one of
our most important business indicators - and this 1s where
we made some of the most impressive gains

Overall, the value of point of sale spending increased by
12 7 per cent, to fall just short of €1 tnthon

“The value of POS spending
increased by 12.7%”

As people use Visa for more of their everyday spending,
average transaction values do of course drop, and this
means that the number of point of sale transactions
grew even more impressively

During 2010, this figure increased by an impressive 14 2 per cent,
to exceed 19 5 billion transactions This 1s the strongest growth
we have seen since 2005 - at a time when our business was less
than two thirds the size that it 15 today

Many of aur members also chose to invest i the issuance

of more Visa and V PAY cards With a net gain of almast

27 5 milhon cards, growth exceaded seven per cent representing
more than 75,000 additional cards 1ssued every single day

of the year In both relative and absolute terms, this 1s also

the highest rate of growth we have seen far several years

The benefits of a low-cost, not-for-profit
business model

The level of growth achieved in 2010 exceeded expectations |
We knew the proposition of secure, convenient cashless

payments remained compelling We also knew that our low-cost

business model was bringing sigrificant value to our members

But we had assumed that the uncertain economic climate would

hamper growth, and we budgeted accordingly




In the event, faster than expected growth combined with
disciphined cost control led to a year-end budget surplus

of more than €150 milion As Visa Europe 15 a membership
association, the board agreed that we should waive €157 5
million of fees to our members by way of a resmbursement
after the year end At the same time, many of our members
are directly benefiting from the new system of pricing that
was put into place during 2009, and the flexible system of
rebates this enables

In spelling out its expectaiions for the new SEPA environment,
the European Central Bank 1s calling on Europe’s banking
community to favour tean, efficient, low-cost payment systems
At Visa Europe, we have shown that we offer by far the lowest
fees of any equivalent SEPA-compliant payment system

Benefiting from a significant
strategic asset

For me, one of the crowning achrevernents of the year was the
full migration to the new Visa Europe Clearning and Settlement
Service (VECSS) which complements the Visa Europe
Authonisation Service

| think 1t 1s important to recognise the sheer scale of this
undertaking Over six years, we have invested more than
€500 mullionin our processing services alone We have built
two identical, state of the art platforms and installed them in
two data centres We have managed the technical migration
of all Visa Europe members to these platforms We have also
recriited a team of more than 670 technology professionals

In doing so, we have created the only ‘'made-for-SEPA’ processing
service, which combines unprecedented levels of speed, capacity,
secunty and capabibty As well as delivering a state of the art,
highly cost-effective inter-bank processing service, this enables
us to create many new value-added processmg services

Many of our recent innavations, such as our Real Time Scornng
fraud detection solution, our cardholder loyalty proposition and
our Visa Alerts text messaging service are based on this
processing capability

Against this background, growth of our processing business
was particularly strong We processed 9 3 billion transactions,
which was 28 per cent up on the previous year Also our
cross-border processing business was supplemented by

our domestic processing services in a total of 19 countries

Forewords
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Forewords

CEQO’s statement continued

Bringing new innovations to market

During 2010, the interest in innovation in the payments market
has definitely intensified

For example, the year has been punctuated by a continual series
of announcements about new payment ventures and initiatives,
many of which are directly related to the opportunity for
contactless and mobile payments

It must be recognised that, once new initiatives such as these
gan traction, they will move incredibly gunckiy This is why we
are absolutely determined to protect the long-term relevance
of our members’ payments business and the strength of the
Visa Europe franchise

As a membership association, our collective approach reduces
the risks and the costs of innovation for our members Through
our decision-rmaking forums we can also broker and co-ordinate
the activity of many different participants - catalysing big,
market-moving iitiatives

Several of gur innovations are highlighted n the repert, including
our continued progress with V PAY, the progressive rollout of
Visa payWave contactless payments, and the integration of
mobile devices into the payments value chain

A sustainable economic model for
card payments

In April 2010 we finally reached an agreement with the European
Commuission on the interchange fee on immediate debit cards
On the basis of this agreement, a fee of O 2 per cent was agreed
for cross-border iImmedtate debit card transactions Importantly,
what was agreed was a methodology for seiting the right fee
level (based on the so called ‘merchant indifierence test’)

The European Commission has accepted that, to apply this
methodology correctly, everyone needs a much better
understanding of the true cosis of cash Regarding immediate
debit, if the cost studies confirm that the prevailing cross-border
rate of O 2 per cent 15 too low, there 15 scope to revisit it

With regards to deferred debit and credit, we still have the
opportunity to convince the European Commission that the
true comparator for credit 1s not cash and therefore under
the merchant indifference methodology these programmes
warrant a different comparator In the meantime, we can
continue to apply our prevailing rate of O 61 per cent

12 Visa Europe Annual Report 2010

This settlement therefore brings us much closer to a sustainable
long-term solution with the regulators, something Visa Europe
welcomes It gives individual members much more economic
certainty, and it gives the wider payment industry much more
legal certainty

“our low-cost business model
brings significant value to
all stakeholders”

The need for a level playing field

Another regulatory matter relates to the repeated calls, fram
both the European Central Bank and the European Commission,
for the creation of at least one more payment system

Qur position s clear Through our constitution, our systems
and cur pricing, we {eel we have already met the requirements
as set out by the European Central Bank and the European
Commussion, for a truly European payment system We are
always eager to compete, and believe that banks should be
allowed to make therr own decisions, based on business and
marketing logic




Ultimately, we operate on behalf of the European payments
market We are fully cornmutted to the four party payment
model The dynamic nature of this model ensures that every
Visa transaction must bring tangible benetits to each one of
these four parties - namely the cardholder, the 1ssuer, the
acquirer and the retarler

Support from all participants

Finally, | should emphasise that our success this year - or any
year - would not have been possible without the continued
support of all participants it the Visa Europe payment system

| want to thank our employees, our board of directors, cur
member banks the retailers that accept Visa - and, of course,
the hundreds of millions of European consumers who use Visa

Together we have created a European system which enables
commerce and delivers unegualled levels of convenience,
security and efficiency to all

Poir Ol

Peter Aylhffe
President and CEQ, Visa Eurcpe

Forewords
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Forewords

Chairman’s statement

Investing in European payments

In many respects, Visa Europe's achievements in 2010
represent the culmmation of a fundamental strategic
decision which was taken by the membership more
than six years ago

Way back in 2004, through the board of directors, more than
4,000 banks decided that Visa Europe should become a distinct
European organisation in doing so, they took a direct, proprietary
interest in thewr own regional payment system They also set off
on the road of investing close to €1 billion of thewr own money in
developing Eurape’s processing and payments infrastructure

In effect, they regarded Visa Europe as the best vehicle for
thern to reahse their SEPA ambitions and to meet therr
SEPA commitments

“Visa Europe is a distinct
European payment system”

With the full implementation of the new Visa Europe Clearing
and Settlement Service, the last few preces of the jgsaw are
being put into place So, as well as benefiting from the existing
range of European payment sotutions, and the pipeline of
European innovations, Visa Europe’s members are the collective
owners of the region’s most capable and cost-efiective inter-
bank processing platform

14 Visa Europe Annual Report 2010

At the same time, through a hierarchy of national and regional
governance bodies and advisory forums, these banks retain
direct strategic and operational control over therr payments
businesses They also have direct access to collaborative
mechanisms through which to orchestrate big market-making
and market-changing payments initiatives The acquisition of
SAS Carte Bleue in France, and its integration into Visa Europe
1, for me, a graphic indication of this approach to constructive,
collaborative planning and development

During the year, the company itself has achieved a very credible
business performance, and the board has applauded the entire
Visa Europe team on the level of progress that has been made

“constructive, collaborative
planning and development”

Looking ahead, you can be sure that the board will continue both
to support and challenge the company, acting as constructive
critics and ensuring that the long-term interests of the European
payments market are always the primary concern In particular,
we want the company to leverage the significant investments
the membership has made in the new processing platforms

To do so, we expect the company to raise its ambitions and
stretch its targets even further At the same time, it must
continue to pay close attention to risk and reputational
management as well as disciphined cost control

As a related point, we continue to urge the management
to engage consiructively with the European Commission
In the past year, much needed clarity was achieved on
the interchange principles for immediate debit cards

As we progress towards a more open, competitive and
dynamic payments market, Visa Europe continues to
benefit from an extremely strong and capable board,
which s truly representative of Europe's payment service
providers As chairman, | would therefore like to thank the
board for their continuing commitment and engagement




During 2010 we were sorry to see Gilbert Arira, Yves Blavet,
Peter Jackson, Gerard Nebouy and Erik Pointillart reteire from the

board However, we were delighted to welcome Yannick Chagnon,

Fabrice Denele, Yves Martrenchar and Colin Walsh

It1s an honour ~ and also a big responsibility - to be so
closely involved in the continuing development of Europe's
payments infrastructure

airman, Visa Europe Board of Directors

€6

The board
will continue to

supportandto

challenge the
company ¢¢

Forewords
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Our
business

As the European payment system,
we are clearly focused on the needs
of our European members and their
respective customers

In this section

Our strategy 18
Business review 22
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Our business

Our strategy

Visa Europe’s business is payments

We help our members to replace other, less efficient forms of
payment - pnmarily cash and cheques By doing so, we increase
the efficiency of therr payment operaticns and add value to
related retail banking products, such as current accounts,
savings accounts and consumer lending products

We also bring value to retailers that accept cards (and, by
definition, to the acquirers that serve them) - through the
provision of fast, secure payments which, in most instances,
benefit from a valuable payment guarantee

And, of course, we bring value to the consumers and the
businesses that use Visa to manage therr payments - by bringing
greater levels of convenience, secunty and confidence

€€
the cash

replacement

opportunityge
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The market in which we operate

Across the 36 countries in which we operate, our payment
solutions account for 12 47 per cent of everyday consumer
spending (defined as personal consumption expenditure or PCE)
The level of development of the payment card market varies
significantly by country, but even in the most mature markets,
there 15 considerable opportunity for sustained growth

Across Europe as a whole, cash is believed to account for
some 77 5 per cent of retail transactions' The majority of
cash transactions are lower value payments (an estimated

80 per cent of cash transactions are for less than €15) - which
represents a significant area of opportunity for card payments

At the same time, Europe’s payment markets are going through
sigmificant change For example

* Regulatory developments and initiatives, such as the creation
of an Internal Market for Payments and a Single Euro
Payments Area (SEPA), together with the Payment Services
Directive (PSD) threaten to bring downward pressure on
payment-related revenues Yet they also promise to bring
mare openness and dynamism to our marketplace and to
stimulate competition In particular this means that the
previously 'closed’ domestic debit schernes and processing
markets will open up to more competition, and that non-banks
have more opportuntties to participate in the market

In the wake of the financial crisis, banks are paying greater
attention to payment products, in terms of the costs they
consume, the revenues they generate and the role that they
can play in extending and cementing customer relationships
In general, this means that payments have greater prominence
on the general management agenda But, with pressure on
profitability, these banks also have ligher expectations of thew
payment service providers - typically seeking preferential
commercial terms and flexible processing solutons, backed
up by highty tnformed adwvice and consultancy expertise

1 Retail Banking Research The Future of Cash and Payments, 2010




Our overriding JOQ | is

to deliver INNOVaAtive,

value-creating
payment solutions ,,

Our objectives

Qur business

Our 2015 targets

® Displace all other means of payment

Strategic objectives

® Touch as many Visa transactions as we can

¢ Become the European payment scheme

* Visa cards to account for €2 trillion in
cardholder spending

¢ 19 bilhon Visa transactions to be processed
by Visa Eurcpe Processing

¢ S0 milhon V PAY cards to be 1ssued

# Technological change 1s having a significant impact on the
European payments market For example, e-commerce
payments represent a large and rapidly growing share of
the overall market, retailers are progressively investing in
new checkout and check through solutions, and 1t (s widely
anticipated that mobtle devices will come to be used to nitiate
payments on a mass scale Consequently there 1s an interest in
nnovation and, across the world, payment-related innovations
are attracting significant attention

Our strategic response

Against this background, we are pursurng a three-pillared
business strategy - with three inter-linked areas of emphasis
feeding into a single, overriding goal

Delivering innovative, value-creating
payment solutions

The overnding goal 1s, quite simply, to work in partnership with
our customers to deliver innovative, value-creating payment
solutions The precise way 1n which we do this 1s determined by
the nature of each custorner, the business strategies they are
pursuing and the market environment in which they operate

This overnding goal also rmplies a high degree of intimacy with
our members We need insights into the expectations of their
respective customers (consumers and retatters alike) As well
as offering compelling, highly competitive commercial terms,
we must also be attentive and responsive to indwidual member
circumstances And we must appreciate the business and
profitability drivers of each of these members

Visa Eurcpe Annual Report 2010 19




Ovur business

Our strategy continued

Displacing all other means of payment

We provide a range of flexible payment product platforms and
give our members the freedom to configure them to bring
maximum benefits to their business We also provide specialist
expertise to assist our members in developing consumer and
commerciat payment products which

e Arerelevant and appealing to target customers

* Deliver the right level of risk and fraud control

Provide the night level of utihty
* Are backed by the nght mix of services and benefits
* Bring an acceptable commercial return

Again, a particular opportunity 1s cash displacement, and many
of our Innovations enable Visa to out-compete cash - a particular
example being the speed and convenience of Visa payWave
contactless payments

The Visa brand is also an tmportant component Everywhere in
Europe our research confirms that people know the Visa brand,
they trust the Visa brand and, crucially, they prefer the Visa brand
This helps to explain the fact that Visa-branded products routimely
generate bugher levels of point of sale (POS) spendmng than

other bank-issved payment cards To build on the strength and
relevance of our brand, our ‘Life Flows Better with Visa' campaign

1s helping to associate Visa with routine, day-to-day spending

We also work to ensure that Visa products are widely accepted
- and positively welcomed - in more retail sectors and situations

Qur 2015 target 1s for €2 trillion to be spent in our markets on
Visa cards - a goal which focuses on POS growth, through
market and product development activities

20 Visa Europe Annual Report 2010

Touching as many transactions as we can

Across the industry 1t 1s generally believed that the transaction
processing market wtll continue to consolidate, given the
difficulties of reaching the necessary levels of scale and
pan-European reach

Visa Europe has been anticipating these developments for
several years

We have invested upwards of €500 million of our members’
money In new European processing platforms including the Visa
Europe Authorisation Service, and the Visa Europe Clearing and
Settlement Service {the implementation of which was completed
in June 2010) These new systems are based on the latest
scalable technologies, they provide unmatched speed and
flexibility, and deliver the industry's best price for performance

By entrusting more of ther processing requirements to
Visa Europe, our members can realise tangible benefits

* Delivering a better customer experience - with a fast,
guaranteed response

s Reducing exposure to sk - with a range of advanced
security solutions

® Gaining deeper insights ~ with new oppartunities to access
and manage transaction data

» Improving efficiencies - with a low-cosi service and
a simple, menu-based tanff

Simplifying operations - with the opportunity to rationatise
existing interfaces and outsource unnecessary complexity

There 1s no obligation for our members to use our processing
services but many already choose Visa Europe to process all

of their payment card transactions Others use us only for their
nternational transactions While we acknowledge our members’
freedom of choice we would hike more of them to use our
processing services in the future

Qur 2015 target 1s for 19 billtlon Visa transactions to be processed
by Visa Europe - a goal which focuses on the successful
exploitation of our new processing platform through winning
new business




Being regarded as the
European payment system

Our pan-European membership association structure acts
as a clear pomnt of differentiation for Visa Europe

As a membership association, we are able to broker agreement
and co-operation between our members We are able to
provide leadership at a collective market level, planning and
co-ordinating major, market-moving intiatives We are also
free to engage 10 the type of actwity which helps to grow the
value of the wider payment card business but which may not
bring a commercial return to Visa Europe itself

As well as being comfortable with our ownership structure, our
members have to be confident that we also represent the most
compelling commercial propasition For example, with a refreshed
relationship management and sales function, backed up by our
subject matter experts and consuttancy services, we have put
more people into positions that add direct vaiue to cur members

We also appreciate that our customers are not the only
stakeholders in the Visa system The merchant/retaler
community and, increasingly, the regulators have a huge
impact on the nature, the penetration and the profitability
of card payments

QOur business

We are therefore working to demonstrate to all of our
stakeholders the merits of the Visa Europe system In particular,
we are In constant, constructive dialogue with a whole range of
European institutions In this way we represent the interests of
our members and emphasise the commercial charactenstics

of our four party payment system

Our 2015 target 1s for 90 rmillion V PAY cards to have been
1ssued - a goal which would be highly indicative of share
gained from other payment systems, and therefore of
member satisfaction levels

V PAY 15, of course, the only made-for-SEPA debit solution

As a chip-cnly card it burlds on European investments Simidarty,
all parties are protected from the threat of fraud - and, to date,
there has not been a single instance of counterfeit fraud on any
V PAY card

€€

We provide

specialist expertise
to assist our members

in developing
payment products ”
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Qur business

Business review

Our overriding goal is to work in partnership
with our members and also with other

stakeholders in order to deliver innovative,

value-creating payment solutions

In this section of the report, we provide an update on our key
performance indicators, along with progress made towards

our strategic abjecives

Qur business perfoermance - highhghts

Year ending June

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
Paint of sale cardholder expenditure volume
(€'000s) 669,378933 746,754,353 824,295,614 854,676,502 962,996,091
Average spend per card (€) 3,495 3,551 3,685 3,617 3,726
Average transaction value (€) 617 623 626 611 599
Average transactions per card 567 570 589 592 622
Number of point of sale transactions (000s) 12,785,961 14,150,189 15,727,207 17024121 19,451,234
Average transaction value at point of sale (€) 524 528 524 502 495
Average point of sale spend per card (€) 2,263 2,328 2,432 2,392 2,524
Average number of point of sale transactions
per card 432 441 46 4 476 510

Note

Historic data has been restated {0 include the new EL member states of Bulgana and Romania {which jomed Visa Europe when they acceded to the EU
n 2007) The data s also calkculated using constant exchange rates to minimise the effect of any exchange rate moverments

Number of cards
000s

22 Visa Europe Annual Repert 2010

Number of transactions
000s

Gross cardholder expenditure volume
€'000s



2010 business performance

Following the slowdown in 2009, cur business rebounded
strongly in 2010, with many of cur key indicators returning
to double digit growth

Overall, Visa card numbers were up by more than seven per cent
to exceed 407 million, and point of sale (PCS) spending was up
by almost 13 per cent to €963 billion — a growth rate that was
more than three times higher than the previous year

The number of POS transactions grew even more strongly {by
more than 14 per cent to exceed 19 billion), suggesting that
consumers are using ther Visa cards for an ever increasing
proportion of ther everyday spending including lower value
payments Consequently the average value of these POS
transactions feli by one per cent to just under €49 50

This trend towards everyday spending 1s particularly evident in
our debit business, which now accounts for 66 per cent of all
European Visa cards, and over three quarters (76 6 per cent) of
our total sales volume Here, the number of POS transactions
increased by more than 16 per cent, with the value of POS
spending also increasing by 16 per cent to exceed €691 billion

Our credit card business was more exposed to the prevalling
econamic chaltenges and, once agam, the figures remained
relatively flat In 2010, as in 2009, many 1ssuers have retained
tighter nisk controls, and consumers have been disinclined to
make use of credit faciities Overall, the number of cards fell
back by almost three per cent However the total number of
POS transactions grew by six per cent, with the value of POS
spending edging up by around three per cent Also the regional
figures do mask some very significant gains in several countries,
such as Finland {(with card numbers up by 11 per cent and POS
transactions by 33 per cent), France (11 per cent growth in cards
and 30 per cent in POS transactions), Norway (15 per cent in
cards and 52 per cent in transactions) and Sweden (16 per cent
in cards and 22 per cent i transactions)

By contrast, conditions continued to be challenging in more
developed credit card markets such as lreland and the UK
(wheve the number of credit card POS transactions fell back
by four per cent and five per cent respectively)

We also saw some strong gains in our commercial card business
Overall the number of cards was up by ten per cent to exceed
12 4 mullon, with POS spending chmbing by 11 per cent to almost
€62 bithon In Finland, for example, card numbers were up by

Qur business

almost 200 per cent In Germany, the figure was close to

50 per cent, in both the Netherlands and Turkey 1t was around
30 per cent, in the UK 1t was 15 per cent, and in bath Norway
and Sweden 1t was well above ten per cent

Another highlight was the continued success of V PAY, our
chip-oniy debit solution designed specificalty for Europe

The leve! of written card commitments increased by a further
20 per cent to reach 63 mulbon cards and, with many banks
n mass-i1ssuance phase, the number of cards in circulation

15 due to reach 14 milhon by the end of December 2010

Meanwhile, our processing business also continued to perform
very strongly As a consequence of both new card portfolio wins
and new processing agreements the scale of our new processing
business grew by 28 per cent Inthe 12 months to 30 September
2010, we processed a totai of 9 3 billion transactions, equating
to 25 5 million transactions a day

With our new clearing and settlement service now fully
implemented, together with a fuller range of value-added
processing services, we anticipate further gains in the future

As indicated by many of the imitiatives outhned in this report,
our focus going forward continues to be cash and cheque
replacement, which should contribute to continued gains in POS
transactions Alsc, by becoming more creative and innovative

In the development of new product propositions and soluticns,
we aim to iImprove the member business case for continued
Visa card 1ssuance

€€

Our
business accounts for

77% of our total
sales volume 99

debit
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Business review continued

Scorecard results

We use a range of performance indicators to measure progress
towards the company's strategic objectives and help us manage
the business Qur business targets are determined annually and
agreed by the board of directors

In addition to a range of ‘lagging’ indicaters (which reveal

the performance of our existing business), the scorecard
incorporates several 'leading” indicators (on future performance
and the achievement of our strategic objectives)

Qur scorecard enables us to set targets and monitor
performance across five key areas Outlined below are some
of the most important scorecard measures and detalls of our
actual performance in 2010
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Our scorecard
enables us to

set targets

and monitor
performance 99




Financial performance

Total revenues (€million)

Qur business

The sum of all fees we have earned from our
members

Total expenses (€million)

The actual performance 15 well ahead of our
business target

This reflects the better than expected markat
conditions, the related rebound in cur busmess
performance and the return to double digit
growthin POS transactions and spending

This figure includes our own expenses and
investments and atso the monies paid by
us to Visa Inc for the use of the Visa brand,
products and globat systems

Pre-tax surplus (€milhon)

The actual expenditure was once again,
well within our budget

This money s generally retained within the
busmess to support our capital and reserves

MNote

Given our strong business performance,
the actual performance was well ahead of
our budget

We are therefore returming some €157 5 million
10 our members in the form of a fee resmbursement

We are returning €157 5 million to our members in the form of a fee rembursement This has been excluded from the pre-tax surplus above
The difference between total expenses above and expenses included in the operatng profit shown on the income statement is mainly due to the release
of an accrual of €48 mullion for indirect taxes on certan fees included within adrministration expenses m the curcent and prior years
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Business review continued

Delivering innovative, value-creating payment solutions

Revenue from new products and services launched simce 2005 (€mullion)

This figure reflects the success of our new

product and service development programmes

Displacing all other means of payment

Total POS growth at constant rates of exchange

The performance was in line with our
business targets

Brand equity

Point of sale (POS) volume relates to the

amount spent at retailers (that s, +t excludes all
cash withdrawals) POS performance ts the key

indicator of business performance and growth
for any payment card system

The performance was {ar ahead of our business
targets and represents the highest annual
growth rate in more than five years

It was the consequence of increased card use
and also business wins (in tarms of card
portfolios migrated to Visa Europe)

Durning 2070 we adopted a new European
framework for measuning brand equity Thisis
based on the results of a continuous brand
tracking study

Total issued fraud as a % of cardholder expenditure volume {(CEV)

The performance was well above our business
target, sigrificantly shead of our nearest
competitor and far in excess of industry norms

It is bolstered by an advertising impact
measure of 139 (where 100 15 considered
average and 11015 regarded as excellent)

Source Miflward Brown

This hgure expresses total fraud losses as a
percentage of total Visa Europe volumes |t
takes fult account of ATM fraud (which has
become a particular chaflenge for some
members) [t also acknowledges the level of
sophistication deployed by today's cniminals,
as they target acceptance environments that
are not protected by chip and PIN technology
(that is, card-not-present payments and
countres that are yet to migrate to EMV chip)

Touching as many transactions as we can

Incremental processing transactions {million)

The performance was ahead of our business
targets The improvement over the past year
can be attributed to several Visa Europe
inttiatives - including direct support for those
members that generate a disproportionately
{arge level of fraud, the accelerated deployment
oi both EMV chip technology and Verified

by Visa plus the launch of our new fraud
management services (Real Time Scoring

and Visa Device Profiling)
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Thus figure relates to processing agreements
put in place dunng the year (which will bring
incremental growth to our processing busmess)

Performance exceeded our business targets




Being regarded as the European payment system

Number of V PAY cards committed and issued

Our business

Member satisfaction rating (1-10)

This figure refates to wrnitten commitments
(generally in the form of statements of intent)
from members to 1ssue V PAY cards and the
cumulative number of cards that bas actually
been 1ssued

Performance has been strong More banks
have moved into mass 1ssuance phase, and
our projected market share 15 1n ine with
our business targets

Employee engagement rating (1-10)

Each year we conduct a thorough Member
Satisfaction Survey

We use thes to assess the levet of satisfaction
across many dimensicns

This figure relates to the overall satisfaction
ratng

We managed t¢ maintain the ‘all time high
rating of 8 1that has been achieved during
each of the previous two years Any areas
where members have raised concerns are
systematically investigated and addressed

Each year we work with an independent
organtsation to conduct a thorough Employee
Engagement Survey The headline measure
assimilates factors such as being proud to
work for Visa Europe understanding and
feeling committed to our goals, having a
strong sense of belonging, etc, and people
understanding how what they do links to the
business objectives

Perforrmance was well ahead of our target and
15 in the top decile of UK-based companies '
across a range of industry sectors Every year '
areas where employees raise concerns are
systematically investigated and addressed

More about our business model

All of the commercial aspects of extending payment services to
consumers and retailers are handled directly by our members

Visa Europe itself provides - on a cormpetitive basis - the
products, services, systems and the operating regulations that
enable our members to participate in the global Visa system
Our revenues are generated by the membership's use of these
products and services In setting these fees and formulating our
budgets, the aim 15 to generate sufficient revenues to cover our
costs, to make strategic investments in the European payment
infrastructure, and to meet capital adequacy requirements

The majonty of revenues are received through three major areas

* Association fees - are determined by the number of cards
issued and the extent to which these cards are used from
both an issued and acquired perspective

* Data processing fees - are determined by each member’s
connections to the Visa Europe processing systems and the
extent to which these systems are used

= |nternational fees - are determined by the extent to which
Visa cards are used outside the country of issue Fees are
levied on both an acqusring and 1ssuing perspective
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Business review

Towards our strategic objectives

Progress in 2010

Visa has always been an innovator From the invention of the point

of sale (POS) terminal, to the shift to chip and PIN, to the creation of
contactless payments, we have always led the way Now, as the world
of European payments 1s moving faster, we are innovating faster

During the course of 2010, we launched a total of 11 new products
and services, and added another 16 to our nngvation pipeline

We also put a definite emphasis on commercialisation - by
moving cur new initiatives from pitot to production

ggring 2010

we launched

11 new products

and services 99
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Highlights include

Visa payWave

Significant progress was made with the rollout of Visa payWave
contactless payments By bringing far greater speed and

convenience to low-value payments, this 1s a key means
of displacing cash payment

There are more than ten millon contactless Visa cards issued across
Europe, and this figure 1s set to more than doubte during 201

In terms of both card numbers and acceptance locations,
three particular countries are leading the way

* [n Poland, Visa payWave 1ssuance has accelerated, with
PKO BP bank starting the issuance of more than six million
contactless cards across their debit card porticlio with another
16 1ssuers also intending to 1ssue contactless cards over the
coming year

® In Turkey, 1 3 million cards have been issued by eight banks
These were accepted at more than 30,000 Visa payWave
terminals across the country, with contactless transaction
levels increasing by some 20 per cent month-on-month

¢ |nthe UK, 8 é milhon cards have been issued and Visa

payWave transactions are accepted across 28,000 merchants

- concentrated among national retail and restaurant chans such
as Subway, Pret A Manger, EAT, Caffe Nero, AMT Coffee, Boots
(selected outlets), Yo Sushi, selecied SPAR outlets, lkea, the
Co-operative and the National Trust 2011 waill see a significant
increase in acceptance with McDonalds nationally rofling out
contactless acceptance and, Co-operative supermarkets and
Clinton Cards deploying contactless acceptance terminals
across a number of therr stores




Case study:
Making money flow

18 Sitges, Spain

From May to November 2010 the Spanish town of Sitges
became a test bed for mobile payments

1,500 consumers recewved an NFC-enabled mobile phone,

for use at 500 retaiters For payments of less than €10, they
simply held the phone in front of an acceptance terminal For
higher value payments, they were prompted to enter their PIN

Working with La Caixa and Teleformca we were able to assess
the appetite and put the technology through its paces

The response was hugely positive Consumers said it felt
quick, easy and secure They wanted to use it in more places
And they didn’t want the programme to end

Through pilots like this we are preparing the way for the future
of everyday payments

Our business

Another major development comes from France, where the
rollout 15 focused around the town of Nice, with the backing

of 1 leading French banks Banque Edel, Banque Populaire, BNP
Paribas, Caisse d'Epargne, Crédit Agricole, Crédit du Nord, CIC,

Credit Mutuel, ta Banque Postale, LCL, and Société Genevale
Implementations are also underway sn a number of countries
1ncluding italy and Switzerland

At the same time, we have been adapting the Visa payWave
praposition for use in specific retall situations such as mass

transit ticketing, with Transport for London recently confirming

that contactiess payment cards will be accepted across their
transit network from 2012

Visa Mobile

At Visa Europe, we see it as inevitable Within the coming years,

the worlds of payment and mobile are set to converge - and
we intend Visa payments to play a central role in the process

Al of our research says that this s what consumers expect,
and what they want So we are involved In a wide range of
pilot programmes across several countries, involving multiple
nartners - through which we are creating real world products
and solutions that work securely and faultlessly every time

A particular emphasis 1s NFC-enabled mobsle phones - that 1s

handsets that have a Visa payment application embedded, and
can be used to make contactless payments across the existing

Visa payWave acceptance infrastructure

We have also created a full set of maobile specifications based
on EMV, we have built a mobule gateway directly into the

Visa Europe processing systems, we have forged productive
partnershtups with the key players in the maobile sector, and
we have collected a wealth of consumer research and insights

Imtiatives undertaken during 2070 included in Spain, a major,

six month pilot programme in the town of Sitges, i Poland, we

worked with Bank Zachodni {BZ WBK) and the mobite operator

Visa Europe Annual Report 2010
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Business review continued

Plus to launch the country’s first SIM-based contactless mobile
payments project, n Turkey we worked with six leading banks
{Denizbank, Finansbank, Halkbank, T Is Bankasi, Vakifbank and
TC Zwaat Bankasi) on NFC mobile payment tnials designed to
achieve wider market momentum, also 1n Turkey, we worked
with DeviceFidelity and Akbank to launch a solution whereby
contactless payments are initiated vsing a microSD card (and
can therefore be conducted using any mobile device that
accommeodates this technology)

Visa CodeSure

Following on from a number of consumer pilots and rigorous testing
with European banks, our award winning Visa CodeSure solution
became fulty avaitzble for commercial launch during 2010

Equipped with an alpha-numeric display, a 12-button keypad and
battery embedded in the card, Visa CodeSure provides multi-
channel authentication technology We have approved its use for

e PIN generated cne-time-passcode for Venfied by Visa
payments at participating merchants globally

* PIN-generated one-time passcode for online banking access

e PIN-generated one-time passcode for telephone
banking services

» Transaction signing for online banking services, using
specific elements such as account reference number
or amount of transaction

e Access to third party services such as corporate virtual
private networks (VPN) for commercial card users, or
frequent {lyer programmes and other onkne services

visa SIMmplyOne
combines two Visa
payment applications
on one card
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Since its development in 2009, Visa CodeSure has been subject
to extensive pilot tnals with eight European banks in 2 number

of countries including Germany, Israel, ltaly, Switzerland, Turkey
and the UK These pilots canvassed user opinton and found that
particrpants felt they would use therr cards for card-not-present
transactions more often (70 per cent positive) and were reassured
about security with the new card {86 per cent positive)

“Visa CodeSure provides
multi-channel authentication
technology”

Visa SimplyOne

Following on from a number of pilot programmes, Visa
SimplyOne, our multifunction chip card proposttion was
released for commercial faunch during 2010

As its name suggests, Visa SimplyOne combines two Visa
payment applications on a single card In other words, using

a single card, with a single PIN, 1t enables consumers to choose,
on a transaction-by-transaction basis, how they wish to pay for
a particular purchase

Following the mass taunch of combined Visa Debit and Visa
Credit cards in Finland, we see Visa SimplyOne as providing

a new and innovative way for Visa Debitissuers to offer a Visa
Credit applhication to their existing current account customers
This 1s a significant opportumity in its own nght For example,
recent research shows that scme 80 per cent of UK cardholders
and 77 per cent of Turkish cardholders have a credit card from
an institution other than their pnmary bank

Visa Charge

Working in close partnership with our UK membership, we have
developed the Visa Charge card, a new type of proposition with
several distinct features

+ Cardholders are required to pay thew balance in full
every month

® Allcards are equipped with Visa payWave
contactless functionahty

+ Cardholders get automatic access to a compelling
programme of rewards and offers




Case study:
Making it easier

to pay for
taxis in Dublin, ireland

By introducing the option of fast, secure Visa payments,
Dublin-based taxi company National Radio Cars (NRC)
has brought added choice and convenience to customers,
while protecting drivers, growing sales and increasing
business efficiencies

Customers don't have to worry about carrying the right
money, having enough cash to pay, finding an ATM en route
or dealing with pocketfuls of coins

Drivers don't have to carry or handle so much cash And,
thanks to chip and PIN technology, transactions are secure

NRC says that, since accepting cards, its sales have gone from
“strength to strength”, and the burden of handling cash has
been reduced It regards card payments as “the way of the
future” and plans to extend the facehty from 350 taxis to the
entire fleet of around 1,200 vehicles

Our business

It 15 targeted at the large numbers of consumers who want to
defer their payment, but also want to pay their balances in full
each month Cardholders can therefore benefit from a product
which i1s configured to meet therr particular needs, 1s widely
accepted, and encourages ther controlled behaviour And, for
issuers, the underlying business model recognises the fact that
these are affluent people who spend more frequently than most
other cardholders

Visa Prepaid

Visa Prepaid was, once again, our fastest growing product
category (as it has been for the past five years), with more than
800 programmes launched across Europe (up from 600 1n the
previous year) Inorder to continee to expand the opportunity
far Visa Prepaid, and to improve the cardholder experience,

we introduced several new innovations during 2010, including

* Unattended instant 1ssuance solution, which allows
consumers o obtain a fully personalised Visa card from
an ATM-like kiosk

& Sefective Authorisation process, which enables Visa Eurgpe
1ssuers to restrict the acceptance of therr Visa Prepaid cards
to certam types of transaction

* Private Labelled solution, whereby Visa Prepatd cards operate
across the existing Visa acceptance infrastructure, but don't
actually display a Visa brand mark

* Contactless payment solution which links the power of Visa
Prepaid to the speed and convenience of Visa payWave

* Partial Authorisation and Balance Return Service, which reduces
the risk of declined transactions and helps to keep cardholders
aware of the remaining balance on thew prepaid card

* Prepaid Load Service which enzbles prepaid top-ups or
reloads to be processed at any participating merchant location,
bringing more choice and convernence to cardholders

“800 Visa Prepaid programmes
launched across Europe”

A particular focus during 2010 has been Visa Prepaid care
solutions, which enable public sector organisations to distribute
benefit or care payments In terms of time and financial savings,

a Visa Prepaid care solution 1s estimated to be between 20 and
46 per cent cheaper than a system based on bank account transfers
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Business review continued

Visa IntelliLink Spend Management

Visa IntelhLink Spend Management 1s the new global information
management tool for Visa Commercial programmes

Visa IntelbiLink Spend Management was introduced in Europe
during 2010, complete with a new range of local language and
customisation optiens This data management toof provides
extensive reporting and expense management capabilities for
organisaticns of all sizes on a single, scalable platform It 15 easy
to use, it 1s very flexible and it gives Visa Commercial users a
new level of insight into and control over their business spending

Comprised of three core functions - reporting, data
services and programme support - Visa IntelhLink Spend
Management integrates with the entire range of Visa
Commercial card products

Visa Business Support

For small and medium sized enterprises (SMEs) the business
current account plays the pivotal role in the banking relationship -
and tends to be the key driver of market share in the smalt
business banking market

To help members differentiate their business current account
packages, we therefore launched Visa Business Support - a
compelling new proposition that can be packaged with any
Visa Business Debit card
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Visa Distribution

Visa Distribution 15 a new praposition which gives distributors and
wholesalers a rehable, nsk-free way of collecing payments from
their regular clients It operates an the proven Visa Business

and Visa Purchasing platforms, making it easy for Visa Europe
members to 1ssue and accept

It1s particularly beneficial for those distnbutors or wholesalers that
serve large nurnbers of relatively small chents who place plenty

of small, regutar orders One of the big benefits for gur members

15 that Visa Distribution prowides an opportunity to debver an
attractive, value-added payment service to both the distributar and
its entire network of business clients It therefore enables members
to extend their business banking relationships with chients in the
wholesale and distrbution trades, while also establishing new
relationships with an entire network of local businesses




QOur objective

Our business

Displace all other means of payment

QOur 2015 target
(ncluding commitments)

® Visa cards to account for €2 tnllon in cardholder spending

Our 2010 performance

® Visa cards accounted for €0 963 trnilhon in cardholder spending

Progress in 2010

In order to displace other means of payment, we need Visa
to compete more effectively against the alternatives - by
associating and identifying Visa with everyday spending,
making Visa more relevant for particular types of purchase
{such as low-value payments), and making :t easier and
more compeiling for retallers to accept and prefer Visa

During 2010, the number of point of sale (POS) Visa
transactions increased by more than 14 per cent Several
initiatives have supported this rate of growth, and should
enable us to continue on a simiar trajectory in coming years

[

Visa transactions
at point of sale

Increased by
more than 14% 99

Portfolio strength

The strength of the Visa product portfolio, encompassing
V PAY, Visa Debst, Visa Credit, Visa Prepaid and Visa
Commercial, has contributed to a range of high profile
business wins and pertfolic migrations

A particular focus has been a senes of very large Visa Debit
implementation projects In recent years a number of large
banks, including HSBC and RBSG, have chosen to migrate therr
entire debit card portfolos from a competing debit system to
Visa Eurcpe And,ineach case, a dedicated Visa Europe team
has supported them with the implementation process

Drawing together experts from across the Visa Europe
organisation, these implementation teams are involved in
every facet of the process - from the imitial product design
and customer segmentation, to the related customer
communications, to the fraud risks, to the technical and
processing requirements
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Acceptance intiatives

We continue to work with the acquiring community to extend
the European acceptance network, opening additional merchant
sectors to Visa - particularly those which account for the highest
proportion of everyday spending

Highlights include

* |n Germany, more than 25,000 additional merchant outtets
were signed up during the year, ncluding thousands of smaller
merchants as well as big names such as EDEKA Minden-
Hannaver, LIDL, Kaiser's, Tengelmann and the online stores
of MediaMarkt and Saturn This delivered more than €30
rrullior in incremental point of sale volumes for our members

* |nFinland, a furiher 17,000 merchants began accepting Visa

# |n Portugal several new merchant chains were signed
up which, i combination, should account for more than
€100 million in incremental sales volumes annually

& Four acceptance development working groups were set up
in Germany (with Austria and Switzerfand), Itaty, the Nordic
countnies and Turkey to agree target retail/merchant sectors
and address related opportunities

In more developed acceptance markets, we have been helping
to extend acceptance into non-traditional sectors, such as
education, regular payments, taxis and the public sector

During 2010, we also launched a new Visa Acquinng Service,
which is designed to accelerate acceptance in those countries
where the market has stalled The service has been developed

in Poland where, working in partnership with Visa Polska, we
believe we can double the level of acceptance - pushing Poland
up to pan-European norms within five years By year end, targets
had been exceeded with the deployment of 17,500 termmals
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Brand superiority

The Visa brand i1s a supremely powerful asset, both for Visa
turope and for our members

To increase the power of our brand further, we have been actively
building a more motivating and diiferentiated positigning
through our 'flow’ campaign, and running advertising campaigns
and prormotions throughout the region utihsing a wide range of
media channels, including TV, outdoor, prini, ‘path to purchase’
and digital

Tracking research shows that we have extended our leadership
on ali the important brand attributes, including familiarity and
relevance Also, Millward Brown Brandz research mto brand trust
places Visa fifth in the world (with no other financial services
brand in the top ten)

We have also been encouraging and enabling more members
to take advantage of the promotional opportunities from our
range of sponsorships and partnerships




Public sector payments

At a time when public spending 1s under such scrutiny,
governments and other public sector organisations have
much to gain from an increased use of more efficient and
accountable payment solutions

The process is well underway Government and public sector
organisations in many countries across the world are already
experiencing the benefits of Visa payments One of the best
examples I1s the UK, where the Government Purchasing Card
(GPC) tnitiative passed some important landmarks Annual
spend now exceeds £1 biflion (€11 bilion) across more than
1,700 separate pregrammes The level of efficiency savings
reached £186 million (€209 million), with transaction growth
reaching 13 per cent

“Annual Government
Purchasing Card spending
exceeded £1 billion”

Alongside Government Procurement Cards is the opporturuty
for Visa payment technologies to be used as a way of disbursing
benefit and care payrments, and several iInnovative programmes
were launched during the year

Aside from our work m the UK, we are currently runmng pilot
programmes and assisting with ive implementations n many
countries - including Buigaria, France, Germany, Greece, Israel,
Ireland, Italy, the Netherlands, Paland, Portugal, Romania, Spamn
and Turkey

Qur business

€€
Visa brand

attributes ranked
5th in the world 99

Interchange agreement

Interchange (that 1s, the fee paid between two banks when

a Visa transaction takes place) 1s the fundamental economic
model for card payments in Visa Europe s four party payment
system The ability to displace other means of payment I1s
therefore dependent upon the existence and acceptance of

a viable rate of interchange

For several years, our methodology for setting interchange fees
had been based on an agreement reached with the European
Commussion back in 2002 This agreement expired in 2007
and, ever since, we have been engaging with the European
Commussion in order to arrive at a defimbive, lasting agreement

Significant progress was made in 2010, when we reached

an agreement with the European Commusston in relation

to cross-border interchange fees for immediate debit cards,
based on the so called ‘'merchant indifference test” Under the
terms of this agreement, the current rate for cross-border direct
debit card transactions has been set at a weighted average of

0 2 per cent However we can ask for the agreement to be
revisited as and when better information derived from new

cost of cash studies becomes available

With regards to deferred debit and credit card transactions,
we continue to make the case that they are more readily
compared with other payment instruments that provide

a hne of credit {as opposed to payment with cash)
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Our objective

Touch as many transactions as we can

Our 2015 target
(including commitments)

* 15 billion transactions to be processed by Visa Europe Processing

Our 2010 performance

» O3 billon transactions were processed by Visa Europe Processing |

Progress in 2010

On behalf of our members, we have mvested around €500 million
in bullding a new European processing capability - based on the
latest scalable technologies, providing unmatched speed and
flexibility, and delivering the industry’s best price for performance

As an ‘Inter-bank’ processor we provide authorisation, clearing
and settlement services Many of our members choose to use
us for all their payment card transactions Others choose to use
us only for their international transactions Either way, we aim
to bring tangible value to their business and the best possible
payments experience to therr customers

In the 12 months to 30 September 2010, we processed a total
of @ 3 billion transactions At an average rate of 25 5 mili:on
transactions a day, this represents a 28 per cent annual increase
As in previous years, we delivered 100 per cent availability and
99999 per cent service quahty Also, the average processing
speed, of around 20 miliseconds per transaction, 1s almost
seven times faster than competing systems'

“on average we process 25.5
million transactions each day”

The real test of our capability comes during the Decernber peak
perntod On the busiest day of the year (23 December), 35 6 milion
transactions were processed, representing a 21 per cent increase
on the previous year

During the year, our stand n processing service (which provides
an authensation response on behalf of members) was deployed
for more than 47 million transactions - ensuring a continuation
of service for those banks that were unable to handle the
transactions directly

' In companson to MasterCard s stated 140 milliseconds in the article
“Master who plays his cards nght” from the Financial Times
“Business Life” supplerment on Monday 13 Septerber 2010 (page 14)

36  Visa Europe Annual Report 2010

With the ability to process 2,500 transactions per second, our
platforms provide Visa Europe and its membership with ample
capacity to support further increases in transaction volumes We
are also supplementing our core processing service with a growing
array of value-creating payment services available, on demand, to
any Visa Europe member Highltghts dunng the past year include

Visa Europe Clearing and Settlement
Service

The most significant development during 2010 was the full
migration to the new Visa Europe Clearing and Settlement Service
(VECSS) - the culmination of a six-year development programme

The new service complements our existing Visa Europe
Authorisation platform, and its completion means that our
inter-bank processing service takes piace in Europe using
systems that have been specifically designed and buwilt to
meet the needs of the Eurgpean marketplace

As well as assuming full control of all processing tasks, and
delivering en the pohtical requirement for a European owned
processing capabihity, the new platform brings a range of
tangible benefits to our members, such as

* |mproved customer service

e Better risk management

Access to rich transaction data
* |mproved business efficiencies
® Reduced complexity

Migration beganin mid-2009 and, by the end of Septermnber
2009, the new systems were handling almost 75 per cent of
Visa Euraope processing volumes The remaining 25 per cent
of processing volumes were mugrated during June 2010

By this time, VECSS had already processed more than

six bilhon transactions




Visa Europe Real Time Scoring

Based on our new European processing platforms, we are
buitding a range of advanced fraud management solutions

Visa Europe Real Time Scoring (RTS) 1s our new fraud detection
selution, the first phase of which was introduced inspring 2010
See our case study on page 38

Visa Device Profiling

Visa Device Profiling 1s a new fraud management service from
Visa Europe - which provides an accurate, up-to-date indication
of the global locations where suspicious cross-border ATM
transactions are taking place

Devised by our own fraud management experts, the new service
keeps a watchful eye on all cross-border transactions orginating
from those ATMs that are not EMV-enabled and may therefore
be vulnerable to fraudulent transactions By automaticalty
comparing each day’s actwity with the activity from the previous
30 days, we can detect any sudden shifts in ATM use - quickly
and accurately identifying those ATMs that have potentially
been targeted by criminals

By using the service, 1ssuers can make better-informed, more
timely and more focused ATM authaorisation decisions, keep
track of accounts that may be at risk and compare ther own
fraud profile with country and regional benchmarks Meanwhile,
acquirers can use the service to monitor any suspect activity
within their own ATM estates, and act accordingly

Our business

€€
Every aspect of

our iINter-bank

processing takes
place in Europe 99
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Our business

Business review continued

Visa Alerts

Hawving built a flexible new processing system, we can quickly
introduce a whole range of new services - which deliver tangible
value to our members and therr customers

An example 1s our new mobile alert service, which can give Visa
cardholders instant transaction confirmation to their mobiles
whenever they use their Visa Debit, Credit, or Prepaid card
These notifications wilt provide increased peace of mind when
shopping, ors a night out, or on holiday by instantly sending the
time, lecatien and amount of each transaction

During 2010, the service was piloted with 2 number of members,
and the response was very positive

Creating new cardholder rewards
programmes

By autormatically capturing the details of any transaction the
Visa Europe processing platforms provide a direct line of sight
to everyday spending patterns and behaviour - and one way
i which we can use this transaction data 1s to develop a new
model for cardholder reward programmes

The data can be mmned to prov:de new levels of actionable insight
across cargholders and merchants Statistical segmentation ensures
that offers go to the most receptive cardholders and propensity
models can be bullt to ensure constant impravernents to the targeting
methodology Robust measurement and campaign tracking can

also be used to measure and optimise campaign effectiveness

Buring 2010, we began to put the theory into practice, working
on a range of pilot programmes with Visa 1ssuers such as
Barclaycard, BBVA, CartaSiand Nordea
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Case study:

Scrutinising every

transaction

Every single time we process a Visa transaction we can assess
the hkehhood of fraud

To do so, we consider the cardholder’s previous spending
patterns and transaction history We also take full account
of the retailer's history - comparing each transaction with
those that have been fraudulent in the past

In the space of less than 20 milliseconds, we create a nsk score
(a number of between 1 and 100} Based on this score, the card
1ssuer can decide whether or not to authorise the transaction
Alternatively, they can keep a watchful eye on the account,

or call the cardholder to ask if the transaction was genuine

When Switzerland’s Corner Banca helped us to test the
system, it saw immediate benefits

* Accuracy - a 2B per cent increase in detection levels

* Speed - quicker detection imescales

+ Insights - better understanding of fraud trends

+ Efficiencies - seamless integration with other systems




Our objective

Our business

Become the European payment scheme

Qur 2015 target

® 90 million V PAY cards to be issued

Our 2010 performance

¢ 14 million V PAY cards 1ssued or ordered, with commitments for 63 million

Progress in 2010

With the reality of the eurozone, the creation of SEPA and the
timplementation of the Payment Services Directive we see the
need for a distinct European payment system, controlled by
Europe's payment providers - and we believe that Visa Eurcpe
is uniquely positioned to fulfil this role

To monitor our progress, we measure the success of V PAY,

our ‘made for SEPA’ debst solution We also consider the attitude
of our members And we assess the extent to which we are
regarded as business and thought leaders

Highhights include

V PAY

We have made strong progress with V PAY, our chip-only debit
solution With 14 million cards already 1ssued or ordered, V PAY 1s well
established as a major force in the European payment card market

In particular, V PAY 1s bringing a new level of chosce and
competition to those countries where banks have traditionally
participated in a single domestic debit card schermne, with a single
internattonal partner It is also helping banks to comply with the
SEPA principles and enabking them to take a big step forward
with thewr debit card business

Crucially, V PAY was designed in Europe to meet European
needs It 1s still the only production example of a debit card
product designed specifically for the new SEPA environment

V PAY also benehts from European control Pan-European strategy,
development and marketing are the remit of the V PAY Steering
Committee (VPSC) This 1s supplemented by a range of naticnal
governance bodies such as V PAY Deutschland and V PAY tala

Another of V PAY’s benefits 15 its flexibiity Banks are free

to choose how it 1Is implemented, which schemes it co-exists
with (if any), how It 1s processed and the level of functionality
it supports This includes the option for contactless payments,
and the option for secure e-commerce transactions

in total, banks from across 11 countries have now committed
to the 1ssuance of 63 million cards This represents more than
a third of the market across our target countries, and already
approaches 50 per cent 1n some markets

So far, more than 120 banks in Bulgana, France, Germany and
Italy have commenced 1ssuance, either supplementing ther
existing debit cards with a new segmented offer, or migrating
their entire debit portfolios to V PAY

Many banks are emphasising the security of V PAY as a chip-
only product, telling their cardhelders that, right across Europe,
they are protected by the latest and most secure payments
technology available And, to date, not a single instance of
counterfert fraud has been reported on any V PAY card

In terms of acceptance, V PAY can now be accepted at around
eight million pont of sale (POS) terminals and 375,000 ATMs
(representing 88 per cent of all retailers that accept payment
cards, and 95 per cent of all ATMs in Europe) Having built up
such an extensive acceptance network, our focus during 2010
was ta work with indiwvidual acquirers to 1dentidy and address
the remaimnng acceptance gaps - those 1solated pockets, where
certain cardholders may regularly travel, and those retaiters
where, for some spectfic reason, V PAY 1s not sufficiently
accommodated or understood

Duning 2010, we saw particular progress in the large and
influential German market For example

* We worked with the card acceptance community to bring
about a major upgrade of the country's older POS terminals
and acceptance systems

* The Cooperative banking sector, collectively accounting
for some 25 rmilion debit cards, commenced mass V PAY
1ssuance at the end of 2009

* Deutsche Postbank, the country’s largest smngle debrt card
1ssuer has begun to migrate all of its 6 5 mitlion cards to V PAY
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Qur business

Business review continued

® Keay players within the savings bank sector and also
the cormmercial bank sector have begun therr V PAY
1Issuance programmes

During 201, it s anticipated that mass issuance will commence
in Austna, Belgium, the Netherlands and Switzerland

Business wins and migrations

Te win business, it 1s necessary for us to be regarded as the
preferred partner by Europe’s banks and payment providers,
and to offer the most attractive competitive terms

During the year, we were mnvited to tender aganst a competing
payment system for @ number of large and/or tugh profite
payment card portfolios In these competitive tenders our
win-to-loss ratio again exceeded three-to-one, generating an
incremental €400 billion in point of sale payment volumes

Member satisfaction performance

The results from cur anrnual Member Satisfaction Survey are
one important indicator of our success

With an overall rating of 8 1, we matched an alt time high Factors
that were particularly important in driving this score include

the quahty of the relationshup and particularly the level of local
market support and expertise, the level and quality of business
and technucal support, and the value-for-money prowided by
Visa Europe The level of innovation and the quality of brand
support were also cited as important

Carte Bleue merger

During 2010, we successfully completed our acquisition of
SAS Carte Bleue (the operational arm of Carte Bleue, which
was previously the Visa licensee in France and the group
member representing the interests of the French banking
community within Visa Europe)

France represents the second largest market for Visa Europe,
accounting for some 22 per cent of total point of sale payment
values The merger enables us to extend Visa Europe’s
association model by establishing more direct relationships
with French banks in order to meet therr needs more closely

In order to provide a forum for cngoing member collaboration
and market development activities, a new national decision-
making body, Visa France, was established in May 2010
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Case study

Winning with the

FIFA World Cup™

With Visa Europe, our members benefit from powerful
sports and entertainment partnerships - like the Olympic
and Paralympic Gamnes and the FIFA World Cup™

Based on these partnerships our members can craft
compelling promotions and create attention-grabbing
campaigns which have real business irmpact - enabling
them to attract new customers, engage with existing
customers, motivate employees, or enhance their brand

Dunng 2010, members from 20 countnes ran FIFA World
Cup™ promotions, enabhng them to benefit from

® A 43 per cent increase in Visa transactions

s A 31 per cent increase in Visa transaction values

® A 45 per cent increase in international Visa transactions

A 21 per cent increase in acquinng volumes at Visa merchants




Case study

Faster, easter ferry journeys
IN Istanbul, Turkey

Each year, more than 100 million ferry crossings take place
across the Bosphorus, linking the European and Asian sides
of Istanbul - and 70 per cent of passengers now use a Visa
contactless card to pay for their journeys

To use the service, passengers simply hold therr Visa card
up to a termuinal They don't need to queue, find the nght
cons, or wait for the payment to be processed

Visa contactless payments have also brought greater
efficiency to the ferry operator, reducing the costs and
nisks of cash management

Because the benefits are so plain to see, more and more
Turkish retailers are now installing contactless card terminals
- making it quicker and easier for people to pay for those small
everyday iterns like a cup of coffee or a newspaper

Our business

Awards won

Another indication of cur progress 1s the success of Visa
payment programmes in winning industry awards In 2010, our
members won several such awards for their Visa programmes

Examples include

» At the UK and lreland Card Awards, Visa branded
programmes won eight out of a total eighteen awards
(with our nearest competstor secunng five awards) These
ncluded the Barctaycard CodeSure card (best innovation)
and the RBS/0, Prepaid programme (best prepaid card
and best prepaid marketing)

& At the 2010 Cards and Payments awards, Visa branded
programmes waon three out of a possible five such awards

Thought and business leadership

In order for Visa Eurcpe to be regarded as the European
payment system, it 1s necessary for us to be an authoritative
source of infarmation and optnion and providing related research
and analysis

Highlights during 2010 include

s Visa Europe Expenditure Index = we commissioned Markit
Economucs, a leading financial information services company,
to compile a quarterly expenditure index based on transaction
data processed by Visa Europe for the Swedish and UK
markets Released on a quarterly basis, this supplements,
complements and precedes official retall sales data ttis
becoming established as an indicator of consumer spending
patterns and consumer conhdence

» The future of everyday payments in Europe who cares? -
an authoritative, research-based report into the state of
the European payments market, the factors that will enable
continued development and innovation, and the enabling
role that can be played by various stakeholders

= Has our relationship with money and spending changed™ -
areport, based on original research, tnvestigating the impact
of the economic downturnon spending and payment habits,
and the implications for payment providers

Each of these initiatives was extensively covered in the media,
and also used i discusstons with our members and other
siakeholders Details of each can be accessed from

WWW vISaeurope com
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Management
and governance

With Visa Europe, our members have

a direct, proprietary involvement in the
way their payments business is managed
and developed

tn this section
Corporate nsk management framework 44

Corporate responsibility 50
People 56
Decision-making 58
Good governance 68
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Management and governance

Corporate risk

management framework

As a leading payments business, generating
more than €1.4 trillion worth of transactions
each year, risk management is a core

discipline for Visa Europe

We enter into broad engagement and partnership with a wide
stakeholder base By promoting accountability and responsibility
for security across the value chain, we ensure that Visa remains
the maost secure way to pay and to be pad

We protect our integrity by working together collectively and
collaboratively to identify and close secunity gaps share critical
information, build our defences and maintain the trust and
confidence of our stakeholders

We recognise that there are no ‘silver bullets’ that can provide a
complete or lasting guarantee of payment security As fraudsters
become more sophisticated and organised, we become more
creative in building our layers of defence - through technclogical
innovations, business processes and partnerships

The key risks we manage and mitigate

Protecting our most important asset

Qur reputahion 1s arguably our most impertant asset

Members, consumers, retailers and other external stakeholders
all need to trust Visa Europe to ensure that Visa payments are
convenient, reliable and secure Managing reputational risk 1s,
therefore, the centre of our nsk management activity

A dedicated Risk, Corporate Controls and Secunty division
15 respansitble for identifying and managing all such rnisks

It also provides related support to the wider business and
also to the membership

During 2010, the challenging economic circumstances dictated
that the organisation continues to maintain a heightened level
of awareness, alertness and readiness to act and/or react to
changing events, situations and circumstances

Settlement and liguidity risk

Ensuring that Visa Europe and its
membership are always able to meet
settlement obligations

Business and operational risk

Reputational

Protecting the integrity and maintaining the
avaslabihty of all key Visa Europe operations
and services

Payment system risk

risk

Monitoring and policing the integrity of
rmember and third party-owned acceptance
and processing infrastructures

Fraud-related nsk

* Guarding against cniminal attack and
mimnimising the related financial losses and
reputational impacis
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Set against this background, we

Further strengthened our risk and corporate controis teams

Stress tested our member, settlement and hquidity
risk frameworks

Introduced corporate risk reduction measures on high
risk business

Ensured that effective risk management 1s even more deeply
embedded across our organisation

Continued to communicate the importance of proactive risk
management internalty and to our membership, plus other
external stakeholders

Qur approach to risk management

As part of its day-to-day responsibibties, the Visa Eurcpe
executive management committee (EMC) 1s charged with
identifying and monitering 2 wide range of operational and

business risks - and ensuring that they are effectively mitigated

Management and governance

We have an enterprise-wide risk rmanagement policy which
defines risk rnanagement objectives, risk appetite, nsk tolerances
and escalation triggers and establishes the internal governance
structure for managing risks This policy focuses on the major
risks that are relevant to the company given 1ts business modet
(for example, operational, busiress, legal, regulatory, financial
and reputationat risks)

We use a risk management framework to identify, assess,
measure, report and manage al! types of risk The nisk framewaork
seeks to align our risk management with our overall business
strategy, involving all dvisional and departmental heads
enterprise-wide {who participate in workshops at least five times
a year to identify risk exposures and discuss mibigating actions)
Under delegated authonty fromthe EMC, the process s
governed by a nsk committee, which meets once every
eight-to-ten weeks
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Management and governance

Corporate risk management
framework continued

All sigrificant risk exposures and mitigating actions are routinely
reported to the audit, risk and finance committee of the Visa
Europe board As well as reviewing progress, the commitiee
makes policy decisions about future controls

As an additional contro! measure, the risk management
framework and our related policies are scrutimised by our internal
auditors {Deloitte) who are responsible for the independent
review of risk management and the control enviranment

In addition, KPMG LLP undertakes an independent, annual
Statement on Accounting Standards 70(5AS70) review of

our 1T systems

Managing settlement and liquidity risks

All of our members are expected to meet thewr settlement
obligations on a daily basis In order to guarantee the integnty
of our payment system, Visa Europe assumes ultimate
responsibility for guaranteetng all such settlement obhigations -
as set out 1n our membership regulations

To mitigate the assocrated financial exposure, our member and
country risk team continually evaluates, monitors and responds
to the risk and credit rating of each member thai participates

in the Visa Europe system

We do this by assessing each member’s financial health,
undertaking regular reviews and assessment of risks that
members face, and evaluating their abihty to respond sf such
a risk were to materialise -~ while also taking account of the
economic, supervisory and regulatory environment of each
of the countries in Visa Europe's terntory

To guard against settlement risk exposures, each member 15 also
assessed on the nisk-based exposure of 1ts Visa card-issuing
partfoho, ncludmg the related sales volumes generated

Where necessary, financial safeguards are assessed and
maintained in order to protect Visa Europe and its wider
membership from potential losses As of 2010, we were holding
almost €1 bilhon in such safeguards

The more significant processes include

* Country risk reviews - country risk assessments are
performed on all countnies represented by Visa Europe and
indwidual ratings are allocated accordingly These reviews
form an integral part of the whole nsk assessment activity
Reviews are performed regularly with ratings being advised
to each risk committee meeting In cases where a country has

46  Visa Europe Annual Report 2010

€€

Visa Europe

guaranteesall
settlement obligations g¢

been rated as being sub-investment grade, all members based
in that country are automatically re-rated to the country rating
and financial safeguards are taken

* Financial reviews - every member's financial position 1s
assessed based upon their profitability, balance sheet
structure, asset quality, iquidity, and capital base Each
member Is assessed at least once a year, although some more
frequently depending on the current level of assessment and
rating

* Programme reviews - for each member, we examine the
performance of each of its Visa programmes (for example,
its Visa Prepaid programmes) together with the compliance
requirements associated with each of these programmes In
addttion, the review assesses fraud levels on programmes and,
in particular, analyses hugh risk merchants and compliance 1ssues

Regulatory monitoring - as part of its reviews, the member
risk team takes into consideration risk exposures associated
with the legal, regulatory and competitive environments and
the prevailing accounting princeples and requirements

e Other reviews - when new miormation is recerved regarding a
member an updating review I1s performed and the risk rating is
reconsidered The member risk team also examines members’
daily authorisation and settlement patterns to assess whether
there are any warning signals which require action (such as the
raising of higher levels of financial safeguards) As a mimmum,
an annual lquidity and asset quality test 1s performed using
selected financial numbers and ratios to dentify any members
with deteriorating performance that should be reviewed quickly

e Ratings - thereviews and hquidity and asset guality tests
undertaken on a country, member and programme basis resuft
in a Visa Europe rating assessment (with each member rated as
either A, B, C,Dor E) While a state of alertness s mantained on
all categories of members, all members rated C and below are
generally subject to financial safeguards i the form of parental
guarantees, letters of credit and, increasingly, in the form of cash

With the implementation of the Payment Services Directive
(PSD), from November 2009, non-banks can operate as
payment institutions and participate i payment systems such
as Visa Europe We have therefore established an additional set
of nsk management disciplines to ensure that such entities can
safely participate in the Visa Europe system Durning 2010, ten
of these payment institutions became members of Visa Europe




Managing business and operational risks

Through our enterprise risk management disciplines (as
described above) we ensure that a disciplined risk management
ethos and awareness 1s embedded across the company

Through ongoing engagement with all departmental and
divisional heads, we assess the impact of risks from business,
operational, financial, settlement, human resources and T, along
with those risks emerging from external factors hike legisiation,
new technologies or changes within the market environment

in this way, the framework 1s used to establish risk tolerances,
mitigating actions and control assurance

The ongoing enterprise risk management process I1s
supplemented by a range of complementary rnisk review
processes, including

* Risk and control reviews - to provide individuat teams with
independent assurance that the risks they face or create are
understood and managed

* Control assessment reviews - to provide an informed opinion
as to the risks that could hinder or prevent Visa Europe from
achieving a particular objective

*+ Ad hoc reviews - to identify the nisk management implications
of any changes In busmess procedures or processes

A particutar focus of this actwity 1s, of course, our processing
systems and services, which fulfil a truly business cntical service
for Visa Europe and our members

We also estabhish and maintain key controls to protect the
integrity of our internal systems, we protect the physical and
logical secunty of our premises across Europe, and ensure that
our business continuity measures and processes are regularly
assessed and tested

Managing payment system risks

As an internationat payment systern, we have a responsibility
to moniter and police the integrity of the wider payments
infrastructure - thereby ensuring that it does not present

any unacceptable nisks to our members' businesses or to

the reputation of Visa Europe

Management and governance

€€ .
our rISk

ma nagement
ethos is embedded
across the company g9

Comphance programmes

Visa Europe operates a number of member and third party
compliance programmes These guarantee integrity and sound
business practices while giving all participants peace of mind that
their products and services work in accordance with our rules

“We establish and maintain
key controls to protect
the integrity of our
internal systems”

We have a dedicated member and third party complance and
payment system risk function - ensuring that members and thard
parties (such as technology vendors, payment processors and card
manufacturers) adhere to Visa Europe’s operational, business and
securtty rules, mctuding all risk maragement poficies and procedures

The compliance enforcement process is governed through our
comphance council Inaddition to overseeing the implementation
and enforcement of all comphiance programmes, the complhance
council also reviews and resolves ad hoc matters relating to
general member and third party compliance

The authority of the compliance councit is delegated from the
executive management committee which, in turn, acts on the
delegated authority of the Visa Eurcpe board of directors

The council meets every month [tis chaired by the Chief Risk &
Compliance Officer and also comprises senior executives from the
business divisions It 1s responsible for developing and enforcing
comphance policies to protect the payment system and indwidual
members from financial and reputational risks While the council
rmay, from time to time, resolve to levy penaliles for breaches

of Visa Europe’s rules and reguirements, the awn 1s to identify

any potential 1ssues and proactively work with members and

ther customers to resolve any concerns before they become
sigmificant 1ssues

As well as carrying out reviews and audits to assess levels
of comphiance, the compliance function has the authority
to enforce Visa Europe’s requirements, as set out in the
Visa Europe Operating Regufations

Visa Europe Annual Report 2010 47




Management and governance

Corporate risk management
framework continued

Engagement, advice and support

Our acceptance risk and payment system security teams
provide expert advice to members and their business partners
on comphiance requirements on a wide range of 1ssues such
as payment system integrity, business rules policies and
operatianal controls

Under guidance from the board of directors, a continuing focus
for 2010 was the threat from compromises of cardholder and
account data Security is a shared responsibility with our
stakeholders and we continue te work with them to render
sensitive data useless if it gets into the wrong hands For
example, we provide active support to acquirers, retailers

and payment service providers in therr implementation of the
Payment Card Industry Data Secunty Standards (PCi DS5),
and in the mitigation of related risks

“We provide expert advice
to our members and their
business partners”

EMYV chip migration
We have also been working with members and merchants in

an effort to accelerate and complete Europe’s migration to EMV
chip technology In particular, we have been promoting the wider

benefits of EMV chip migratien including

e Support of the SEPA vision (n which EMV 1s a uniting
technology for all European countries)

¢ Maximising the prevention of fraud and data compromise

® Accommodating and enabling innovations such as V PAY,
Visa payWave and Visa SimplyCne

€6

Q4% of European ATMs

and ©3 7% of Visa Europe
cards are EMV chip 99
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By June 2010, 94 per cent of European ATMs and 63 per cent

of Visa Eurcpe cards had been mugrated to EMV chip Also,
approximately B0 per cent of intra-regional point of sate
transactions were taking place through EMV chip-enabled devices

Managing fraud-related risks

Over recent years, the nature of payment system fraud has
evolved considerably The rmigration to EMYV chip and PIN
technology, the growth in e-cormmerce transactions, the
creation of new payment solutions and the increasing
sophistication of cnimimals all have a direct impact on the
type of fraud now being perpetrated

® The scale 1s far bigger - in the past five years the number
of Furopean Visa cards has grown by 40 per cent, and sales
volumes are up by more than 55 per cent And, when we
operate a €14 trilhon payment system, it 1s inevitable that
criminals take notice

* The scope isfar broader - the number of acceptance locations,
and the type of retailers that accept cards have escalated and
face-to-face transactions have been progressively supplemented
by e-commerce self-service, and mobile payments This gives
cniminals many more potential avenues to exploit

® The underlying technology 1s far more capable - more than
4,000 European banks are migrating their entire payment card
businesses to EMV, and have now upgraded the majonty of
cards and acceptance devices This has changed the nature
of the challenge for the cnminzls - and for everyone in the
industry who guards against themn

Visa Europe's annualised fraud-to-sales rate decreased to

0 055 per cent Of particular note 1s the fraud performance in
the UK Accounting, as it does, for 36 per cent of Visa Europe
fraud losses any movernents in the UK have a sigmificant impact
across the region as a whole Qverall, the UK market achieved

a decrease 1n fraud losses of more than €300 millien in the year
to June 2010 Again, this was due to a reduction in counterfeit
fraud (thanks to the implementation of chip-and-PIN in many
more locations worldwide), and also i card-not-present fraud
(due, chuefly, to the continued rollout of Verified by Visa)




Visa Europe’s nisk and secunty strategy relies on 2 multiple layers
of protection From EMV deployment measures in the card
present environment, to Verified by Visa in the card-not-present
environment, moving from static data authentication

to dynamic data authentication, to deploying neural networks

to analyse transactions in real time, Visa furope takes a
comprehensive approach to fraud detection and prevention

Significant developments during 200Q include

* New fraud detection solutions - the commercial launch of
our new Real Time Scoring fraud detection solution and our
Visa Device Profiling for ATMs solution (see business review)

Increased levels of e-commerce authentication - 1n 2030 there
was another big jJump In the deployment of Verfied by Visa,

our onhne authentication solution Forty four per cent of total
e-commerce transaction volume now takes place at Vernfied by
Visa merchants, of which 84 per cent is fully authenticated, with
both the merchant and cardholder participating in the service

For the future, imtiatives are in place to further strengthen the
secunity of Verified by Visa by reducing the reliance on static
passwords and migrating to dynamic passcodes

Management and governance

We have also created an environment of partnership by
promoting iIndustry engagement, security awareness, education,
training and accountability with law enforcement agencies and
judicial autheorities across various European countries When
close co-operation i1s achieved, the impact (in terms of arrests
and conwvictions and also in terms of subsequent fraud levels)
can be signicant And, through engagement with public sector
orgarisations, these authonties can better appreciate and lend
their support to the economic and social benefits of the payment
card system

Annual fraud-to-sales

ratio dropped to
0.055% ¢4
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Management and governance

Corporate responsibility

At Visa Europe we see corporate responsibility
(CR) as the guiding philosophy behind who we
are and everything we do — not as something
separate from our day-to-day business

We believe that, by their very nature, our activities benefit society
Used appropriately, Visa cards and electronic payments are good
for economies, banks, retailers, consumers and people in general
They are more efficient, secure, convenient and auditable than
cash and cheques They contribute to closer European integrabion
and economic growth They can also contribute to financial
in¢lusion and empowerment

In addition to our everyday business, we see areas as diverse

as environmental efficiency, recruttment and management
practices contributing to our CR efforts We also encourage our
people to contribute to society and the local community through
voluntary work and fundraising To facilitate this, we run a matched
volunteering scherne, enabling each full-time employee to devote
up to three working days to volunteer activities

Vision Enabling themes

Applying nigour and discipline to our
reputation management

The governance of our reputation programme 15 the remit
of the reputation council

Chaired by Steve Perry, the reputation council comprises

15 senior executives from across the business, each of whom
has a direct influence on Visa Europe's ongoing business
strategy and activity

Examples of progress in 2010

Applying nigour and discipline
to our reputation management

¢ Favourabiity among stakeholders
rated at 89%

Visa again named as Europe’s most
trusted card brand

Running cur business responsibly

¢ Regular, formal audits are conducted
Qur environmental impact 1s minimised

For Visa to

of cashless payment

Quantifying and articulating the benefits

¢ New 'Making money flow’ website launched
New research-based reports pubiished

be the world's

and empowerment

Pushing for greater safety, responsibility

Additicnal financial education
programmes launched
CEQP partnership extended

most trusted
currency

Attracting, nspiring and developing
capable, committed people

An employee engagement rating cf 88%
Investors in People Bronze

ICS ServiceMark standard achieved
Visa Consufting and Analytics awarded
membership of the Management
Consultancies Association

Encouraging our people tomake a

positive contribution

* UNICEF partnership
¢ Visa Europe highly commended
at Buswess Charity Awards
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Case study:
Smart, secure

payments for young
people leaving care

In the London Borough of Lewisham, young people who leave the
council's care receive a weekly allowance - which provides valuable
financial support as they continue in education or look for a job

The council used to pay this allowance in hard cash, and the
recipients were expected to travel to its offices every week
to collect thewr money Now, with a Visa Prepaid programme,
everyone benefits from a smarter, safer sclution

The London Borough of Lewisham avoids the costs of handling
cash, and it 1s making a 60 per cent saving on the related
administration Meanwhile, young people benefit from
increased safety and convenience, and get a direct route

into the financial mamnstream

This 1s just one of the ways that Visa Prepaid cards are now
bemng used to disburse public funds Given the benefits, we
expect these programmes to prohferate in the coming years

Management and governance

Key responsibilities of the reputation council nclude

+ To input and give guidance on the future direction of Visa
Europe’s business, its own reputation and the reputation
of the wider payments industry

* To seek out perspectives from external stakehoiders and
formulate recommendations that will serve to protect and
build Visa Eurape’s reputation and that of our members

* To anticipate areas of contention, pressure points and areas
of potentizl reputational risk and consider how the business
should respond

* To raise awareness of reputational 1ssues across the business
and foster a spirit in which our reputation 1s both protected
and enhznced through all business decisions

The reputation council meets two or three times a year It makes
a formal report to the executive management cemmuttee (EMC)
on an annual basis, and policy recommendations are referred to
the EMC as appropriate

Tracking and influencing perceptions

We actively engage with a wide range of stakeholders from
around Europe to discuss the benefits of cashless payment
and Visa Europe's role in extending their use This programme
ensures that we hear about issues or concerns from
stakehelders In this way a real dialogue can take place

We routinely track the perception of Visa among these key
stakeholder groups In the latest round of research (conducted
during rmid-2010) {avourability towards the payment card industry
as a whole remained relatively constant at 7% per cent Meanwhile,
favourabihity towards Visa increased shightly to 88 per cent

(12 percentage points ahead of our nearest competitor), and
advocacy of Visa increased considerably, nising from 63 per cent to
75 per cent (24 percentage points ahead of our nearest competitor)

We also use our own brand tracking research as well as external
sources to track the level of trust in the Visa brand among
consumers During 2010, for example, Visa once again emerged
as Europe’s most trusted payment card brand in the annual
Reader's Digest survey oi Europe’s most trusted brands
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Management and governance

Corporate responsibility
continued

Openness and transparency

We recognise that the payments industry 1s under intense public
scrutiny As the payment card industry increases in scale and
scape, this level of scrubiny inevitably mcreases We make sure
that all stakeholders have easy access to detailed information
about how Visa Europe functions For example, our regional
website, www visaeurope com, provides detailed descriptions of
our constitution, our structure, our operations, our pan-European
interchange fees, and also the Visa interchange fees that apply
within indiwiduat countries
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Running our business responsibly

In the way that we run our business and manage our premises,
we aim to comply with the highest professional, ethical and
environmental standards To ensure that we live up to this
aspiration, we formally and regutarly audit our operations

Iin terms of

® Qur comphance with health and safety standards
* QOur emergency and evacuation procedures
® Our complance with environmental standards

We also ensure that all of the companies to which we
outsource non-core operations (such as cleaning, physical
secunty and catering) are 1SQO 4001 and 14001 compliant

Mimmising our environmental impact

Given that Visa Europe does not manufacture or distribute
any physical products, the environmental impact of our own
business tends to be relatively modest Nonetheless, we have
been keen to operate to the highest standards

® Policy statement - Visa Europe 1s committed to reducing
its impact onthe envircnment We take our responsibilities
sericusly and seek to impiement environmental best practice
with clear aims and objectives that form the foundation of
our corporate responsibilty agenda”

* Principles - To include ethical and environmental
considerations In daily and project activities particularly
through the innovation of new products

- To reduce, re-use and recycle waste where feasible

- To seek to maximise energy eficiency and reduce green
house gas emissions

- To reduce the dependence on arr travel and seek alternative
means of conducting intermational business




Case study

Volunteening to

protect

children online

As part of our partnership with the Child Exploitation and
Online Protection (CEQP) Centre, Visa Europe employees
have been visiting schools to speak to children about how
to stay safe online

This 1s part of our commitment to volunteering (each year our
people support around 200 community and chanty projects)

It 15 also part of our commutment to protecting children online
We have had a strategic partnership with CEOP since 2006,
offering investigative expertise and IT hardware as well as
funding We have also strengthened our business rules and our
monitonng programmes to identify and end any instances of
Visa cards being used to buy illegal or distasteful tems online

Our involvement in the PROTECT programme is one part
of this wider picture

Management and governance

- To adopt an ongeing measurement of the resource
and ecological footprint of the orgarisation

- To better contral the use of water on the premises

In pursuit of these objectives, we are registered on the
government’s Carbon Reductien Comrutment (CRC)
programme, and our performance 1s momtored and assessed
by third parties (Norland Managed Services, Power Efficiency
and the Carbon Trust) against 8 2009 benchmark

We produce a monthly energy use dashboard and measure our
Power Usage Efficiency We also contribute to the Greenhouse
Gas Protocol, a voluntary league table measuring our use of
power This includes travel costs

As an example of our commitment, we have sigrificantly
improved the energy efficiency of our data centre cperations

In January 2009 each transaction processed came at a cost of
156 grams of carbon emissions By January 2010, the equivalent
figure had plummeted to 0 50 grams (a reduction of 68 per cent)

Quantifying and articulating the benefits
of cashless payment

It 1s widely acknowledged that electronic payments in general
and card payments in particular offer significant advantages over
cash As well as being more efficient, secure and accountable,
cashless payments help to fuel economic growth and to reduce
the scope for grey economies Through our stakeholder
engagement programmes we seek to quantify and also

to articulate the benefits of cashless payment

During 2010, our regionat website, www visaeurope com, was
re-designed and re-launched in order to bring mere prominence
to these and other related themes A dedicated area of this
website, called Making money flow, seeks to demonstrate

the value we bring to 2 whole range of stakeholders

The website also describes the role that cashless payments
ptay in an efficient, dynamic econaomy
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Corporate responsibility
continued

Pushing for greater safety, responsibility
and empowerment

At Visa Europe we do not 1ssue cards, we do not lend meney
to anyone, and we leave It to our members to decide how best
to price and promote ther products Nonetheless, we are
intrinsically asscciated (in the munds of the media, consumer
groups and the regulatory community) with the subject of
financial capability, and we cantinue to be involved tn related
imbiatives - particularly those aimed at younger people

Financial education programmes

We have worked with our members to create a senes

of consumer education imtiatives For example, we

mamntain ‘Budgeting’ and ‘Managing Credit’ sections on

wWWwWW visaeurope com And, in several countries, such as
Greece, Poland and Turkey, we have developed comprehensive
financial education programmes for younger pecple,
supplemented by pubiic relations programmes

We also hosted a financial capability conference at the
European Parliament in Brussels, in which industry groups,
consumer groups and policymakers discussed financial
education sotutions

Consumer protection

Anmportant function of our operating rules and regulaitons i1s
to maintain consumer trust in the Visa brand They therefore
guarantee a level of consumer protection (such as protection
from fraud and the night of repudiation) which often goes well
beyond prevaling national regulatory requirements

Visa Europe also has strict rules in place to prevent Visa
payments products from being used to buy illegal or distasteful
itemns, and we devote substantial resources to working

with relevant agencies to prevent the use of Visa cards
nJllegal purchases
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To underhne our comrmutment in this area, we have suppoerted
the Child Exploitation and Online Protection (CEQP) Centre
since its formation in 2006 This London-based law enforcement
agency has an internattona! remit Beyond financial assistance,
CEOP has access to our investigative skills and knowledge We
have taken an active role in the European Financial Coalttion -
which brings together organisations from across all key sectors
to track, disrupt and look to ultimatety confiscate commercial
gamn made by those who deal in the distnibution of images of
child exploitation

Setting and enforcing industry standards

An important part of our role at Visa Europe is to work

with members to establish industry standards These include
our continuing contribution to the EMV chip specifications,
our direct involvement in the Payment Card Industry Security
Standards Council and our input into the European Payment
Council’'s various standardisation imtiatives

We also work with our members to agree our product and
acceptance rules and regulations These define the precise
ways that Visa cards must work, the manner in which payments
should be processed, 2nd the roles and responsibilities of each
participant in every transaction They also define the chain of
liabilties and ensure that participants (particularly consumers)
are protected from risk

“Visa Europe helps to set
industry standards”

As well as formulating these rules, we take an tncreasingly active
role in enforcing them For example, our compliance department
1s charged with ensuring that members abide by security
standards and procedures, and that they deliver a consistently
high standard of service for al! Visa payments




Case study:

Helping younger
people to
manage their money

'l can manage my money’ (Parami Yonetebiliyorum) s a
programme which helps to build financial awareness among
Turkush citizens aged between 15 and 30 This innovative
programme, backed by the Turkish government, the United
Nattons Development Programme and the Youth Association
for Habitat, 1s being rolled out across the country Jtuses a
peer education model - with volunteers passing on therr
newly-acquired knowledge and skills

It 1s one of many financial education and hteracy initiatives
we support across Europe

Together, they reflect our conviction that electronic payments
are beneficral to society and play a key role in personal choice,
financial management, economic growth and social inclusion

Management and governance

Enabling greater inclusiveness and empowerment

We believe that Visa Europe andits products can contribute to
a truly inclusive Eurcpean society We work with our members
to ensure that financial products and services can be extended
to all citizens - regardless of therr age, their cultural values, therr
economic status or any disabilities they may have

An example 1s the way that Visa Prepaid cards are now being used
by pubiic sector organisations to distribute benefits and social
care payments to people who, by defimtion, tend to be vuiinerable
and have often been excluded from the financial mainstream
Several such programmes were launched during 2010, and

we expect to see significant growth in the coming years

Our commitment to inclusion is also demonstrated through cur
unparalleled support for the global Paralympic movement

€€

Visa Europe
and its products

contribute to
atruly INclusive
European soaety ,’
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People

Attracting, inspiring and developing
capable, committed people

During 2010 we have taken substantiat steps across the business
to attract, inspire, develop and retain motivated people and teams

By aligning employee and business goals, we have created an
environment in which people are engaged and passionate about
improving business and persenal performance

This 1s demonstrated by exceptionally high levels of employee
engagement The average corporate measure of employese
engagement in the UK 1s 73 per cent Among financial
organisations, this rises to 76 per cent At Visa Europe, we
are proud to have achieved a figure of 88 per cent - signifying
that the vast majority of our employees feel actively involved
in {and engaged by) the work we do and the goals we set

“Value of employee
engagement — 88%”

This tevel of employee engagement 1s further reflected by
the exceptionatly high tevel of participation in our Employee
Engagement Survey (95 per cent)

Comprehensive benefits package

The benefits offered to employees include a non-contrnbutory
pension scheme, free annual health screening, and family
benefits (medical/dental cover and travel insurance) We
also run child care vouchers and cycle to work schemes,
while subsidising gym membership

External accreditations

To ensure that we aspire to best practice, we seek external
accreditation for our people and processes Examples and
achievements from 2010 include

® Investors in People (IIP) Bronze accreditation - Visa Europe
achieved Investors in People (1IP) accreditation in July 2009
At that bme, the company made a commitment te work
towards the achievermnent of the IIP Gold award by 2012

Through our lIP accreditatton, and cur goal of achieving

a Gold award, we can demonstrate our commitment to
truly world class people management practices
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» Institute of Customer Service (ICS) ServiceMark standard
The ICS ServiceMark 1s an organisational accreditation
scheme which recognises the quality of a company’s
customer support and service provision

In Novemnber 2009, we successfully achieved accreditabion
The ICS commented that we are not just meeting the
ServiceMark standard but exceeding it with a truly

‘world ctass’ performance

* Management Consultancy Association (MCA) membership
in September 2010, Visa Consulting and Analytics, our advisory
practice, became one of Just 55 companies to be admitted into
the UK's Management Consultancy Association {MCA)

The diverse make up of our employees

As an international organisation we encourage and expect
diversity in our workforce, which numbered 1,397 employees
as of Septernber 2010 At this ime the ratio of male to female
employees stood at 3 2 and we employed 49 different
nationzhties, thus creating an extremely rich and diverse
multi-cultural emvironment Our membership of the Employers’
Ferum on Disability reflects our commitment to being an equal
opportunities employer

Whistle blowing

Human rescurces management (HRM) provides an important
internal outlet for employees to report possible misconduct,
such as questionable accounting or unethical conduct, to the
head of HRM (or to the chief risk and comphance officer)
Taking such feedback seriously 1s essential to safeguarding
our reputation, brand, commercial viability and ethical values




Encouraging our people to make a
positive contribution

Visa Europe has always had a strong culture of chantable giving
and volunteertng among employees - something which we
strangly encourage

During 2010 we mamtained our emphasis on supporting young
people More than a hundred volunteers in London helped
students at local colleges and schools with Maths and English,
taking on mentoring roles and becoming involved with sports
coaching We ran workshops on how to cormpile engaging CVs
and develop interview skills These efforts were matched m our

regional and country offices Each of our UK offices, for example,

held open days at which locat students were invited to explore
information technology as an exciting career

In order to encourage this type of volunteering, we have a formal
policy In place, enabling all full-time employees to devote up to
three days’ of their work time each year

The company and our employees have also undertaken substantial
fundraising inihiatives During 2010, Visa Europe raised €269,000
(around €192 per employee) for UNICEF, the chanty partner
selected by our employees This sum was raised through a
combination of corporate donations, employee fundraising

efforts and matched giving schemes We also donated the
equivalent of €19,000 in personnel time, supporting CEOP

(the Child Exploitation and Onhne Protection Centre, of which
Visa Europe 15 a founder supporter)

Reflecting the scale of our charitable and volunteering actmity,

Visa Europe was highly commended in the employee engagement

category at the inaugural UK Bustness Chanity Awards

Management and governance

€€

Visa Europe's
employees

are er)gaged and
passgonate _
about IMProving

business and personal

performance ¢¢
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Decision-making

As a membership association, Visa Europe

is owned and controlled by the 4,176
European banks and payment providers
that are licensed to offer Visa-branded
payment solutions to their

respective customers

Our members are the ‘governors’ of Visa Europe

e The Visa Europe board of directors takes the big, strategic,
pan-European decisions

A series of board committees 1s mandated to carry out
specific functions and projects as assigned by the board

* A series of national organisations decide on how best to take
forward country-specific activities related to Visa Europe
paymentis operations in each of therr respective countries

* Arange of specialist adwisory forums and consultative
groups provide ongoing gurdance and input

* A hierarchy of regional and national governance bodies has
also been establhished to take control of the management
and development of V PAY

¢ The day-to-day management and operation of the company
1s delegated to our executive management commnuttee

Visa kurope 1s therefore fully accountable to its membership

We respond to thewr agenda We invest and innovate on their
behalf We are also able to plan and co-ordinate the type of
orchestrated, collzborative initiatives that are generally required
mn order to change deeply ingrained payment behaviours

In this chapter of the report we provide details of each of our
main decision-making forums

Visa Europe board of directors
- the big strategic decisions

All of the big decistons on our finances, our strategy and our
operations are taken by the Visa Europe board of directors

The board comprises 18 directors, all of whom are elected

or appownted by Visa Eurcpe’'s members They are all senior
management employees of their respective orgamsations
The board also has one Visa Europe executive director

(Peter Ayhife) who represents the Visa Europe management,
and an independent chairman (Jan Lidén)
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The Visa Europe
board of directors

1 Peter Ayhffe
President and Chief
Executive Officer,
Visa Europe

2 Graham ) Beale

Chief Executive Officer,
Mationwide Buildmg Society,
United KXingdom

3 Javier Celaya

Director of ServiRed 5 A,
Consumer Finance Director,
Caja Madrnid, Spain

4 Yanmck Chagnon
Head of Payment Services,
Sociéte Génerale, France

S Fabrice Denele

Head of Payments Strategy
Retail Banking Coordination
Department BPCE, France

6 Johannes Evers
Vorsitzender des Vorstands,
Landesbank Berlin AG, Germany

7 lose M Gabeiras

Chairman of the Board of
Directors of ServiRed ServiRed
S A, Spamn

8 KjellHedman

Chairman of Visa

Sweden Board

President and Chief Executive
Officer Landshypotek, Sweden

9 Gary Hofiman
Chief Executive
Northern Rock plc,
United Kingdom

10 Antony Jenkins

Chief Executive Officer,

Global Retai Banking,

Barclays Group

United Kingdom

1 Enmio La Monica

General Manager,

Banca Cange S p A, Italy

12 Jan Lidén

Chairman of the Visa Europe
Board, Independent Director

13 Sven Lystbak

Member of the Board of Dwrectors
of PBS International A/S Member
of the Executive Board, Danske
Bank A/S, Denmark

14 Yves Martrenchar

COO, BNP Panbas Retall Banking
France

15 Wojciech Papierak
Vice President of
Management Board, PKO
Bank Polski S A Poland

16 Antdémo Palma Ramalho
President & CEOQ, UNICRE,
tastituigdo Financerra de
Credito 5 A, Portugal

17 José San Juan

Cards Manufacturing
Cirector, Santander UK pilc,
United Kingdom

18 Alessandro Seralvo
Executtve Vice President
Cornér Banca, Switzerfand

19 Nazan Somer

Executive Vice President
Retall Banking Yapi ve Kred
Bankast A S, Turkey

20 Colin Walsh

Managing Director, Savings,
Investment and Protection,
Lloyds Banking Group,
United Kingdom

The audit, nsk and finance
committee

Peter Ayhffe (ex officio)
Graham Beale

Fabrice Denrele

Johannes Evers {(Chatrman)
José Gaberras

Antony Jenkins

Jan Lidén (Deputy Charrman)
Nazan Somer

The compensation committee
* Graham Beale

e Johannes Evers

* Gary Hoffman {Chairran)

* Jan Lidén (Deputy Chairman)
e Yves Martrenchar

The executive commuttee

¢ Peter Ayliffe

Yanmck Chagnon

Johannes Evers

José Gaberras

Gary Hoffman

Antony Jenkins

Ennio La Monica

Jan Liden (Chawrman)

Board representatives on the
V PAY Steertng Committee
Peter Ayliffe

e Fabrice Dencle

* Johannes Evers (Charrman)
* José Gaberras
-
»

-

Enmio La Monica
Alessandro Seralvo
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Significant board decisions

During 2010, the board considered
a range of strategic options in relation
to the competitive landscape in Europe

Reaching agreement with the European
Commission on multi-lateral interchange
fees for immediate debit cards

As covered elsewhere in this report, Visa Europe reached
a settlement with the European Commission in relation to
mulii-lateral interchange fees for iImmediate debit cards

Investing in an enhanced e-commerce
payment solution

Following an exhaustive feasibility study and a successful
prototype, the board agreed to a significant, multi-year
investment in the development of a new e-commerce
payment solution

Overseeing disciphned financial
management

The board recewved regular, detailed updates on our financial
position and our cost management measures By early 2010,

it became evident that the organisation was benefiting from
an upsurge in business performance which, by year end, would
culminate :n a budget surplus

Given our business and ownership model, the board agreed that
we should return a substantial proportion of this surplus directly
to our members in the form of a fee waiver For each member,
the precise leve! of this waiver was directly proportional to the
scale of thewr business with Visa Europe It takes the form of

a fee reimbursement which will be credited to members on the
December 2010 invoices
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Managing member and country risks

In the face of the economic climate, considerable board attention
continued to be devoted to nsk management The board was
rerminded of the processes in place and the level of inancial
safeguards routinely carried out by Visa Europe

Enhancing Visa Europe products
and services

The board agreed on a range of enhancements to existing
Visa Europe products and services - in order to improve
thetr respective performance and to maintain therr global
interoperability

Examples include the development of operating principles for
Visa SimplyOne, our multi-function chip card proposition, and
operating regulations governing the acceptance of Visa payWave
contactless payments in unattended devices - such as vending
and ticketing machines




Admitting more organisations to the
Visa Europe membership

The board approved several new membership applications
With more members joining Visa Europe - representing an
increasingly diverse range of institutions - competition 1s
progressivety enhanced

During 2010 the ehigibihty critena for membership were
extended Previously, it was necessary for all apphcants to

be licensed by thair national authorities as a deposit-taking
nstitution With the implementation of the European Payment
Services Directive (PSD), eligibility for Visa Europe membership
was extended to any organisation that is licensed by its natonal
authorities as a payment service provider (including credit
institutions, e-money institutions, payment ststutions, post
office gwo, central banks and various government organisations)

The beard therefore agreed to the type of nsk management
requirements and controls that should relate to these payment
institutions A total of ten such membership applications were
approved by the board during 2010

National bodies - making payments flow
better in each country

We actively encourage our members to participate in national
governance bodies, within the frameworks set by Visa Europe
Thus enables our members to decide an how best to develop
the Visa Europe payments franchise in the face of particular
natienal requirements and ¢rrcumstances

Varying models have been adopted in different countries

¢ Group members - In several countries, the local banks are
represented by group members In Spam, for example
ServiRed S A, Sistema 4B and ViaCajas S A are distinct
orgamisations operated by the Spanish banks which represent
their interests within Visa Europe, adapt Visa products to the
Sparmsh market and manage the gateways to the Visa Europe
processing systems

In total there are 11 of these group members operating
across Europe

National decision-making bodies - In other countries, banks
have chosen to estabhsh national decision-making bodies to
agree on national Visa Europe-related pokcy and activity
The decisions made by these orgamisations are binding on

all Visa Europe members operating in the country

Management and governance

These mnclude

* Visa Deutschiand
* Visa Hellas

* Visaltalia

* Visa Polska

Visa UK Limited

During 2010, following the merger with SAS Carte Bleue,
one addihional organisation was estabhished, namely

* VisaFrance

These orgarusations are administered by Visa Europe They have
a board of directors comprising semor representatives from
those Visa Europe members operating in the country, and at
least one member of Visa Europe’s senior management team
Their remut usually covers matters such as domestic member
fees, genernc Visa brand support, risk management, the setting
of domestic interchange rates and infrastructure development

» National Forums = National forums are adnunistered by
Visa Europe and comprise senior representatives from the
Visa Europe membership and a member of Visa Europe’s
senior management team Their remit covers matters such
as generc Visa brand support, risk management and
infrastructure development

They include

* Turkish Executive Committee

* Visa Bulgaria Executive Commitiee
* Visa Czech Republic Forum

* Visa lreland Forum

* Visa Romania Forum

In addhtion, Visa Portugal, an association that all Portuguese
members may |oin, sets domestic mterchange as well as directing
generic Visa brand support, risk management and infrastructure
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Focused on the development
of local payment markets

The wide range of local decision-making bodies
and consultative forums that we operate is an
important asset and differentiator for Visa Europe

As a membership association, the principles of consuliative
deciston-making are deeply embedded within the culture of
our organisation And, having brokered market-level decisions,
we can co-ordinate collective market-making initiatives

Some indicative examples from 2010 include

In the Czech Republic

Through the Visa Czech Republic Forum, our members decided
to create and contribute to a dedicated fund for naticnal market
development initiatives, such as research programmes and
promotional activibies, designed to increase card usage across
alt Visa products and for alt members This fund will help the
collective Czech membership to increase awareness of the Visa
brand, educate cardholders, launch new products and services,
and extend the acceptance network

In Germany

Our members, through the Visa Deutschland board, created a
German Fraud Adwvisers Group Already very active, thus newly
established group of fraud and risk management specialists

1s focused on driving down fraud rates in Germany - by
accelerating the implementation of tools such as EMV chip
and PIN and Venfied by Visa, and also through the deployment
of fraud detection services such as the new Visa Europe Real
Time Scoring solution

In Greece

Through Visa Hellas, our members launched a new financial
education programme Aimed at younger people and based
around a new website at www moneyiqg gr, this provides
practical advice and information on financial management
Visa Hellas also continued its sponsorship of the Greek
police’s computer crime unit, as well as the Safer Internet
programme, both of which are intended to mitigate the nsks
of the internet among younger people - particularly the threat
of online child abuse
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In ltaly

Through the Visa liaha board, our members established an
Acceptance Developrnent Working Group, with a rermit to
identify and close any gaps in the country's existing card
acceptance network, and to acceferate the deployment of EMV
chip and PIN acceptance devices The board also agreed on a
three-year plan to implement contactless payments, focusing
intizlly on the main urban centres, and eventuatly encompassing
all of ltaly

In Turkey

Through our Turkish Executive Committee, our members have
agreed to an extensive programme of inihiatives des:gned to
change the way that debit cards are regarded and used by
Turkish consumers Although the Turkish credit card market 18
one of the most advanced @ the world, the country's debit cards
are predominantly used for ATM cash withdrawals An entire
programme of activity, due for implementation in 2011 and
beyond, is designed to reposition debit cards as an everyday
payment tool, and to bring about a step change 1n usage levels




Case study

Kick starting card acceptance
in Poland

Under the guidance of Visa Polska, we are co-ordinating

an imitiative which promuses to double the level of card
acceptance - which should push Poland up to pan-European
norms, within five years

Together, we have developed a "shop in a box' sofution,
which all of our Polish members will be able to offer to their
customers in the retail sector

This includes a card acceptance terrminal plus marketing
materials for the retailer, along with all the necessary
paperwork to set up relationships with acquirer processors
and terminal vendors Meanwhile Poland's card 1ssuers
are subsidisting the cost of acceptance termmals And
banks, processors and vendors are all engaged to drive

the process forward

Thus 1s one way in which our collaborative membership
maodel s helping to develop the payments market - and
bring benefits to all parties

Management and governance

Advisory forums and consultative groups
- ongoing guidance and direction

Visa Europe operates seven specialist business forums, enabling
us to elicit advice, guidance and direction on our products,
services and innovations, while also benefiting from additional
member and market insights

In each case, the participants are selecied for their industry
knowledge, their experience and their personal reputation
Partictpation is reviewed on an annual basis, at which time itis
ensured that the membership of each forum is representative
of the wider Visa Europe membership (in terms of the size of
the organmisation, its business emphasis and its geography)

Each of the Business Forums meets at least twice a year and ts
governed by formal terms of reference

Acquiring and acceptance

This group assists the Visa Europe management by providing
advice and direction on the devetlopment of our acquiring and
acceptance inthiatives

Participants include

Jodo Amaral UNICRE Portugal

Nario Bolis, Setefi SpA, Italy

Ulrich Bug, B+5 Card Service GmbH, Germany

Barbara Cossetto, CartaSi SpA, ltaly

Chnis Davies, HSBC Merchant Services United Kingdom

Arnif Isfendiyarogly, Garanti Bankas,, Turkey
NeofitosKaramanos, JCC Payment Systems Ltd, Cyprus/Greece
Oskar Kartsson, Swedbank AB, Sweden

Antanio Mondeyar, ViaCajas S A - Euro 6000, Spain

Karimne Munoz, BNP Panbas, France

Stuart Neal, Barclaycard Payment Acceptance, United Kingdom
Marek Paradowsk:, eService SA Poland

Matthew Rowsell, RBS Worldpay, United Kingdom

Gerard Savage, Elavon Financial Services Lid, United Kingdom
Jean Marc Vedrune, Crédit Mutuel - CIC Group, France

Sirus Zafar Komercni Banka, A S, Czech Republic
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Management and governance

Focused on the development of local

payment markets continued

Commercial

This group supports the development of Visa Europe's
cornmercial payments business It provides input into our refated
thinking, our strategy and key business development initiatives

1t also provides advice and direction relating to the development
of our commercial card producis, propositions and services

Participants include

® Stephane Battez, BNP Paribas France

®» Denms Bauer Barclaycard, United Kingdom

* Anne-Laure Brisset, Societe Générale, France

® Martin Cannings Citigroup Inc, United Kingdom
» Karl-Heinz Golder, Degussa Bank GmbH, Germany
® Felix Holzhey, UBS Card Center AG, Switzerland

* Herco le Fevre, ING Bank NV, Netherlands

* Marna Lorenzo, Banco Popular Espanol 5 A, Spain
* leo Olsson, Nordea Bank AB, Sweden

® Davide Rigamont) Deutsche Bank SpA Italy

* Mark Robinson, HSBC, United Kingdom

* David Rockhif RBS Group, United Kingdom

* Gokhan Sun, Denizbank A 5, Turkey

Credit

This group provides input into Visa Europe’s strategy
and key business development mitiatives for credit cards
In particular, it provides advice and guidance on product
and proposition development

Participants include

Paul Carvell Nationwide Banking Society, United Kingdom
Cord Constantin 8regulla, LUBS AG, Switzerland

Sven Estwall SEB Kort AB, Sweden

Emmanuelle Fenard, BNP Paribas Personal Finance, France
Antonio Gahane, ICCREA Banca SpA ltaly

Mine Konuman, Akbank TAS, Turkey

James Lewis, MBNA Europe Ltd, United Kmgdom

Josep Gallach Patau, La Caixa, Spain

Fernando de la Rica, BBVA, Spamn

Arthur Smolders 1CS BV, Netherlands

Katarzyna Sosin, PKO Bank Polski SA, Poland
Hans-Juergen Torkler Landesbank Berlin AG, Germany
Serkan Ulgen, Yapi ve Kredi Bankasi A $, Turkey
Katherine Whitton, Barclaycard, United Kingdom

Assaf Zimmerman, ICC, Israel
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Debit

This group provides input into Visa Europe’s strategy and key
business development initratives for debit cards In particular,
it provides advice and guidance on product and proposition
development

Participants include

* Domnigue Blechner, CNCE France

* lan-Olof Brunila, Swedbank AB, Sweden

® Soner Canko, TC Ziraat Bankast A §, Turkey
* Maria Cires Caja Madrid, Spain

* Jean-Marie Dragon, La Banque Postale, France
* Allan Harde, RBS Group, United Kingdom

* Tomasz Mirek Bank Zachodn: WBK SA, Poland
* Vincent Reboul, HSBC, United Kingdom

* Carl Renstrom, Handelsbanken, Sweden

® Sergio Segovia, La Caixa, Spain

* Jonathan Taylor, Lloyds TSB, United Kingdom
* Nevra Toktas, Tls Bankasi A S, Turkey

Innovation

This group prowides input inte Visa Europe’s new product and
new channel development strategies, inttiatives and processes,
including general gutdance refated te our innovation agenda

Participants mnclude

Yves Blavet Societé Génerale, France

Ennque Bartha Miralles, BBVA, Spain

Gianluig: Gilbert, Key Chent Cards + Solutions SpA, ttaly
Heikki Kapanen Luottokunta Firland

Pawel Kucharski, BRE Bank SA, Poland

Michel Marel LCL (Credit Lyonnais), France

Stefan Popp Deutsche Kreditbank AG, Germany
Alessandro Seralvo, Cornér Banca SA, Switzerland
Francesca Terrell, Nordea Bank, Denmark

Elc in Yanik, Finansbank A S Turkey




Processing

This group advises on the development and engoing
management of Visa Europe’s inter-bank processing business
As well as providing input into our processing strategy and our
related investments, the group of subject matter experts gives
gwidance on product and service development, and ensures
that we meet the processing needs of European banks

Participants include

Maree Annesley, AlB Group Iretand

Emanuele Balistrer, CartaS SpA, ltaly

Glovanni Bettons, Corner Banca SA Switzerland

Selc uk Ergen Yapive Kredi Bankasi A §, Turkey

Nils Hilbard, SEB Kart Danmark A /S, Denmark

Alisa Jackson, Lloyds Banking Group pic, United Kingdom
Reb Jamison, RBS Group, United Kingdom

Tadeusz Koscinskr Bank Zachodn WBK SA, Poland
Tapio Pesonen, Swedbank AB Sweden

Javier Querejeta Sistema 4B Spain

Graham Robinson, Barclaycard United Kingdom

Tilo Schurer, Landesbank Berlin AG, Germany

John Sutton, HS8C Merchant Services, United Kingdom
Sirus Zafar Komercni Banka, A S, Czech Republic
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Risk

This group supports the development of the Visa Europe
nsk strategy It provides iput on key topics related to all
rnisk disciplines, and advice and guidance on all related
product and service development matters

Participants include

Tomer Alkobt, Leumi Card Israel

Carmen Carnero, ServiRed S A, Spain

David Chan Barclaycard, United Kingdom

Marco Cortellary, CartaS SpA ftaly

Per Harald Fredriksen, Nordea, Norway

Hans-5Stephan Giese Landesbank Berlin AG, Germany
Magdalena Macko, Bank Millennium SA, Poland
Caroline Sellier, Natixis Paiements, France

Mark Tingey, RBS Group, Umted Kingdom

Paul Wood, HSBC, United Kingdom

Management and governance

V PAY governance

Managing Europe’s debit solution

'n developing V PAY, Europe s 'made for SEPA’ chip-only debit
solution, governance was a prime consideration We wanted
to ensure that members could retain fult control over their
local debit card business So, as far back as 2006, we ¢reated
a regronal governance body, the V PAY Steering Committee

We also said that we would facilitate the creation of a series of
naticnal governance bodies During 2007, V PAY Deutschland
and V PAY Italia were both created, with the V PAY Netherlands
Forum following in 2009

The role of these bodies 1s to support the strategy for the national
introduction of V PAY and to advise on its ongomng management

To advise on V PAY development activity and help to formulate
proposals to take to the respective governance bodies, we also have
a dedwcated V PAY adwvisory group which meets on a regular basis
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Management and governance

The Visa Europe executive
management committee

Disciplined, rigorous management

The executive management committee (EMC) 1s the most senior
internal decision-making body within Visa Europe Meeting
weekly and reporting to the board of directors, it makes all
decisions that relate to the day-to-day operation of the

company and its relations with the membership

1 Derrick Ahlfeldt
Semor Vice President, Human Resource Management

Derrick joined Visa Europe in 1990 He is responsible for

all people-related activity and for developing employee
engagement An HR professional by background, Derrick
previously worked in his native South Africa for the Barlow Rand
Group He halds B Com (Hons) and MBA degrees Derrick s
also a director of European Resources Management Limited
and a trustee of the Visa Europe Pension Plan

2 Peter Ayliffe
President and CEQ

Peter joined Visa Europe in 2006 He has driven increased
customer focus, moving more people to the fronthine of the
business and creating Centres of Excellence to improve the
provision of innavative, value-creating solutions He previously
spent more than 20 years with Lloyds TSB, a leading UK bank,
where he held a number of executive posts 1n the bank's retail
business, culmunating in his appointment as a group board
director Peter also spent five years as a non-executive director
on the Visa Europe and Visa International boards Hehas a
degree in economics from Manchester University He s a
non-executive director for Investors in People

3 Steve Chambers
Executive Vice President, Chief Information Officer

Steve joined Visa Europe in 2005, and 1s responsible for Visa
Europe's processing business, including the development and
delivery of the organisation’s IT systems Steve's career in
payment services spans 25 years, working for companies such
as EDS, First Data and ACI Although technology is tis home
ground, he has also run marketing, sales and product disciplines
He has a degree in physics and astrophysics from the University
of Leicester and a masters degree i optoelectronics from
Newcastle Polytechnic For two consecutive years Steve was
narned by sthcon com as one of the top 50 leaders shaping the
future of IT in the UK
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4 Valene Dias
Executive Vice President, Chief Risk and Compliance Officer

Valene joined Visa Europe 11993 She holds an M Com (Hons)
degree and 15 a chartered certified accountant (FCCA) She
previously served as chief financial officer for six years Her
remit covers corporate and enterpnse nisk, fraud managemenit,
compliance, faciliies and procurement Priar to Visa Europe,
she warked in pubhstung, first with Witham Collins & Sons
(now HarperCollins), then Marshall Cavendish Valene s a
non-executive director for World Vision UK She s also a
dwector of European Resources Management Limited and

a trustee of the Visa Europe Pension Plan

5 Marnano Dima
Executive Vice President, Marketing and Product Scolutions

Marnano joined Visa Europe in 2007 He 1s responsible for the
Centres of Excellence i acquinng and acceptance, commercial,
credit, debit and prepad, and heads up the product
development, innovation and strategic insight teams His remit
also covers partnership marketing around Visa's sponsorship of
the Qlympic and Paralympic Games and the FIFA World Cup™
as well as the management of the Visa brand across Europe
Prior to joirsng Visa Europe he held several executive consumer
marketing positions with some of the world’s leading consumer
brands including, Levi Strauss & Co, Vodafene Group plc and
PepsiCo International He has a degree in industrial engineenng
from Universidad de Buenos Aires

& Philippe Memer
Deputy Chief Executive

Philippe joined Visa Europe in 1998 His responsibilities include
extending Visa Europe’s relationship within the banking
community, ensuring the success of the V PAY debit solution,
the integration of SEPA requirements across the business,
processing sales and strategy Previous roles withmn Visa Europe
included Chief Operating Officer

He has worked in the payment card business for most of his
professional career Previous roles include ten years with
Citibank and eight years with Diners Club, Benelux He has

a degree in commercial engineering from the Ecole de
Commerce Scivay, Brussels University

Management and governance

7 Stephen Perry
Executive Vice President, Relationship Management, Sales
and Commercial Development

Steve joined Visa Europe in 1990 He is responsible for the company's
18 local offices, and his tearn initiates, builds and nurtures the
business refationship with members The divisien also includes the
Visa Consulting and Analytics team Steve s an economist by
background and was previously chief financial officer of Visa Europe
Before joirung Visa he was group economist for TSB (now part of the
Lioyds Banking Group) He has a masters degree from the University
of London, 2 doctorate in economigs frorm the University of Keele and
was awarded the title of Cavaliere by the president of Italy in July
2005 Steve 1s wice chatrman, and chair of the finance committee of
EACT, an education foundation with responsibility for ten academies
He 15 also a non-executive director of TheCityUK

8 Philtp Symes

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer

Phil joined Visa Europe in 2006, and 1s respansible for all of the
company's financial affars A chartered accountant, Phil began his
career with Coopers & Lybrand (now PricewaterhouseCoopers)
and then spent nine years with global insurance brokers the Wilhs
Group Limited Phil has a degree in mathematics from Bristel
Uriversity and an MBA from the London Business School

9 Carol Walsh
Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Head of
Legal Affairs

Carol joined Visa Europe in 1984 She s responsible for the
management of all legal 1ssues within the company and its relations
with the regulatory community and member profitability Carolis also
the company secretary Prior to Visa Europe, Carol worked with the
law firm Clifford Chance She alsospent a pertod at the European
Commussion as an anb trust stagiare Carol was a previous winner of
the prestigious First Women Awards in the Finance Award category
She s also a trustee of the Visa Europe Pension Plan

10 Fiona Wilkinson
Senior Vice President, Corporate Communications

Fiona joined Visa i 1982 and 1s called upon o advise the EMC on the
comrnuntcations and reputational imphcations of ther decisions She
15 responsible for stakeholder engagernent, protecting and enhancing
the reputation of the orgarisation Fiona has broad expertise in
payment systems having previously held roles in marketing, sales,
finance, relationship management and HR fiona holds a degree

In economics and law and 1s a trustee of Eaves for Wormen
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Management and governance

Good governance

In this section of the report we explain more about
the corporate governance systems within Visa
Europe and, more specifically, the constitution, the
roles and responsibilities of the board of directors

As a pan-European membership association, Visa Europe
1s unlike most other companies

We therefore have a unigue system of corporate governance
which has been developed and refined aver many years This
enables us to guide the deveiopment of European payments,
invest In the progressive enhancement of the industry
infrastructure and, ultimately, bring the optimum mix of
benefits to each party in every Visa transaction

In this section of the report we explain more about the board
processes and disciplines at Visa Europe As a reference point,
the chapter is structured around the main principles of the UK
Corporate Governance Code

Since we are not a publicly isted company this Code does
not strictly apply to Visa Europe Due to the nature of our
organtsation, some of its principles are inappropriate to cur
business Nonetheless, it has become a standard and easily
understood way of reporting on corporate governance issues
for companies incorporated in the UK

Within these pages we are therefore using the principles of the
Corparate Governance Code as a way of demonstrating that

* Wae take the matter of corporate governance
extremely seriously

* We take pride in the level of stakeholder consultation
and collaboration which s in-built 1in our constitution

® There are some respects in which it 1s necessary for our
own governance principles to differ from those of a more
cenventional or profit-oriented company

“The board ensures that the
policies and investments Visa
Europe makes are in the best
interests of the members”

68  Visa Europe Annual Report 2010

1 Leadership

The role of the board
The board Is accountable to our members for the performance
of Visa Europe

It meets is coilective responsibility for the long-term success
of the Visa Europe payments system by

» Setting the strategic direction of the business

® Accepting modifications to the membership status of
Visa Europe members

e Establishing and amending the Visa Europe
Operating Regulations

* Setting and making moedifications ta the service fees
applicable to the business within Visa Europe

* Approving the Visa Europe budget including the expenditure
of corporate funds to enable the further development of the
European payment sector

In providing entrepreneurial leadership of the company, the
board takes full account of a framework of prudent and effective
controls, which enables nisk to be assessed and managed

Durning 2010, the board met on nine separate occasions

In addition to the board itself, there are three committees
of the board, namely

* The audit, nsk and finance commuttee, which meets three
times a year

* The compensation committee, which meets three to four
times a year

* The executive committee, which meets twice a year, or more
frequently if necessary

After every meeting of the audit, nsk and finance commuttee,
if considered appropnate, the chairman meets non-executive
directors without the executive duector's presence




Management and governance

Good governance continued

Diviston of responsibilities
There 1s a clear division of responsibilities between the chairman
and the president and chief executive officer

The chairman 15 primardy responsible for the effective running and
leadership of the board, while the president and chief executive
officer 1s tasked with the running of the company's business This
clear spht of responsibility, supported by the wider constitution
of the board, ensures that no individual can have unfettered
powers of decision

The chatrman

The chairman is responsible for setting the board's agenda
and ensuring that adequate time 1s available for discussion
of all agenda items

He promotes a culture of openness and debate, by facilitating
the effective contribution of all directors, and by promoting
constructive relations between the board and the management
of the company

Non-executive directors
The nature and balance of the beard reflects the special nature
of the Visa Europe organisation
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A substantial majonty of the board is made up of non-executive
directors (18 directors out of 2 current total of 20) These
directors are entirely independent of the Visa Europe
management Also, given their level of senionty within their
respective organisations, they offer unique capabihty and
contribute directly in a number of areas

e Strategic direction - the non-executive directors generally
have a wide perspective on external factors affecting the
company and its business environment They therefore make
an informed contribution and act as constructive critics in
setting objectives and agreemg plans

+ Monrtoning and control - the non-executive directors are
expected (by the membership at large and Visa Europe itself)
to hold the company to account They are responsible for
monitoring the performance of the executive management
team, especially the progress made towards achieving agreed
company strategy and cbjectives

¢ A diversity of opimion - the make-up of the board ensures
that no one member or group of members (such as members
located in a particular country) can have an unfettered or
inappropriate level of influence 1n the board’s decisions
Instead, the range of non-executive directors ensures that
different national perspectives are factored into alt decisions
Given the sheer diversity of the payments markets in Europe,
this 1s a cntical requirement

Non-executive directors are expected to scrutinise performance,
constructively challenge and help develop proposals on strategy
Similarly, they are expected to satisfy themselves on the integrity
of financial information, and that the company's financial
controls and systerns of nisk management are robust and
defensible They are also expected to ensure that the policies

of Visa Europe, and the investments that it makes, are in the
best interests of the collective membership of Visa Europe




2 Effectiveness

Composition of the board

The Visa Europe board of directors comprises 18 non-executive
directors, an mndependent director (who 1s currently the chairman
of the board) and one representative of the Visa Europe
executive management team (20 people in ald

The non-executive directors are all senior management
employees of Visa Furope members Consequently their calibre,
industry knowledsge, skills and experience ensure that they

are eminently well qualified to review proposals on strategy,
scrutimise performance and controls, insist on the maintenance
of robust governance standards and challenge the executive
team as necessary

What 1s more, these non-executive directors represent the
interests of members throughout all of the 36 countries which
make up Visa Europe The board therefore has an in-depth
understanding of the prevatling circumstances m the distinct
national payment markets across the terntory

It should also be emphasised that, as representatives of our
members, these directors have a keen interest in protecting

and improving the viability, probity and operational eifectiveness
of Visa burope

Where necessary or desirable, the board 1s able to appoint up
to two strategic directors and up to two independent directors
Jan Liden (formerly chief executive officer of Swedbank and

a non-executive director of Visa Europe) was appointed as

an independent director in 2009 He was also re-appointed

as chawrman of the board (the same role that he held as a
non-executive director)

Appointments to the board
There 15 a formal, rigorous and transparent procedure in place
for afl appointrments to the board

Any principa! member that accounts for more than five per cent
of Visa Europe’s total annual fee incorne 1s automatically allocated
a seat on the board The remawung board directors are elected
democratically by European members Those members that are
already represented by a director cannot participate i any of the
other nominations

Management and governance

Each member s allocated a certan proportion of voting rights,
determined by the level of ‘voting fees’ they pay to Visa Europe
These voting fees are the aggregate of 50 per cent of total
service fees and 50 per cent of the retail sales volume generated
by their Visa card programmes during a set period

Once elected or appointed, each director 1s responsible for
representing al} of the banks in the Visa Europe 'sub region’
in which they are based

This process ensures that Visa Europe benefits from planned
and progressive refreshing of the board, and that an appropriate
balance of skills and experience 1s constantly maintained

Commitment

In agreeing to serve on the board, all directors formally commit
to allocate sufficient time to the company, in order to discharge
their responsibilities effectively Expectations are disclosed to
alt directors prior to their appointment, with a broad indication
of the time commiitment involved

Development

By wirtue of the fact that all non-executive directors hold a
sentor management position within 3 member institution they
will, by definttion, have an in-depth knowledge of the payment
systems business

On therr appointment, all new directors are made fully aware of
their duties and responsibihties, and become bound by a strict
code of conduct New directors meet formally with the company
secretary before therr first board meeting, when they are briefed
on therr role and responsibilities The executive director is also
bound by Visa Europe's employee code of conduct

Procedures are in place enabling directors to take independent
professional advice, if necessary (at Visa Eurgpe’s expense),
in the furtherance of their duties
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Management and governance

Good governance continued

Information and support

Visa Europe ensures that the board 1s always provided with
accurate, timely and clear information te enable it to discharge
its duties

More specifically, all board directers are provided with
background papers on agenda 1tems before each board
meeting At the meeting itself, discussions will often be
supplemented with a formal presentation from Visa Europe’s
subject matter experts

All directors have access to the company secretary, who 1s
responsible for ensuring that board procedures are clearly
understood and that applicabie rules and regulations are fully
complied with

Evaluation

All of the non-executive directors are representatives of Visa
Europe members (that is the shareholders of the company),
and are directly appointed or elected by them

Given these circumstances, there has been no requirement for
any additional processes or measures to assess the performance
of the board or its commuttees

Re-election
Elections of directors are held every twa years (the next such
election is due to be held in 2017) At such times

¢ Principal members that are automatically allocated a seat
on the board are asked to confirm the name of the director
who will represent them

* The remaiming directors are elected under the direction of
the president and chief executive officer of Visa Europe in
accordance with the company's Articles of Association

It any vacancies arise among the elected directors, the board
will normally arrange a special etection within 60 days of the
vacancy ansing If a vacancy anses within 150 days before the
biennial election of the directors, no special election 1s required
unless a person entitled to vote in such a special election
requests by notice in wniting to the board This notice must

be given more than 60 days prior to the biennial election
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3. Accountability

Financial and business reporting

In the form of the Visa Europe Annual Report, the board presents a
balanced and understandable assessment of the company's position
and prospects, which goes well beyond statutory requirements

As well as providing a detailed explanation of the company's
own financial position, this provides an update on the ongoing
investrments which are made and the initiatives undertaken on
behalf of the membership

Risk management and internal control

The board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility for

Visa Europe's system of internal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness Furthermore, the board takes responsibility for
deterrmining the nature and extent of the risks st 1s willing to take
in achieving the company's strategic objectives, in maintaining the
integnity of the Visa Europe payment system, and in ensuring that
the membership 1s not subject to settlement risks

Through the audit, risk and finance commuttee, the board
comimits to a formal review, at least annually (and, given the
prevailing economic climate, more frequently), of Visa Europe’s
internal controls

In addition, the audit, nsk and finance committee has responsibibity
for the oversight and develepment of the Visa Europe risk
managerment framework - a formal means of identifying,
monitoring and priontrsing the business risks facmg the company

Audit committee and auditors

The audit, sk and finance committee meets at least three times
a year, and one of its principal responsibilities 1s to review the
company's risk management framework As well as reviewing
progress, the commuttee 1s encouraged to make policy decissons
about future controls

Deloitte acts as Visa Europe’s internal auditor As an additional
control measure, the risk management framework and our
related policies are reviewed by this internat auditor who, in turn,
regularly updates the audit, nsk and finance committee as welt
as the executive management commuttee on the state of

the orgamsation’s risks and controls




Financial
statements

Visa Europe operates a low-cost,
not-for-profit business model — while
making strategic investments in the
future of European payments
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4 Remuneration

Details of the directors’ remuneration are set out in the
remuneration section of this report

As regards the executive director and sentor management
team, a significant proportion of remuneration 1s deferred into
a long-term tncentive plan

5 Relations with shareholders

One of the ways in which Visa Europe differs from a more
conventional company 1s inits relations with its shareholders -
that 1s the members of Visa Europe who are also our customers

We provide a programme of communications with members,
who receive regular updates on all aspects of our operations

For example, we distribute an update on the outcome of every
board meeting This consists of a summary of discussions and

decisions reached by the directors Every two years the company

also hosts a two-day Visa Europe Member Meeting (the next
of which, Insights 11, 1s due to be held in Barcelona on 7 and

8 Apnil 2011), which 1s typically attended by more than

400 semor decision-makers from across the membership

€6
Annually the

board reviews
Visa Europe’s
iInternal controls ¢¢

Management and governance

To adwise on Visa Europe's development activity and help
formulate proposals io be taken to the board of dwectors, Visa
Europe also manages a series of Business Forums comprising
member representatives (more details of these groups and ther
responsibilities appear elsewhere in this section of the report)

Visa Europe also encourages members in each national market
to decide on the most appropnate membership model for thew
own country More details on the different arrangements also
appear m this report

As Visa Europe 1s a UK imited company, all principal members
(including group members) are entitled to attend general
meetings and to vote at these meetings

To gain a thorough understanding of member bank attitudes
and opinions, Visa Europe cormmmissions an annual Member
Satisfaction Survey
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Financial statements

Directors’ report

The directors present thewr annual report and audited consohdated financial staternents for Visa Europe Limited and its subsidianies (the group)
for the year ended 30 September 2010

Principal activities

Visa Europe, a payments system organisation, represents some 4,176 members (2009 4,147 members) frorm 36 European countries

We manage a range of payment products under the Visa brand name, which we hcence to our members Using the tools that Visa provides,
these members compete vigorously with one another to provide payment services to consumers and retailers

Business objectives and activities

Developments in the group's business during the year, and an indication of likely future developments, are anatysed in the Business Review on
pages 22 to 41 which form part of this Oirectors’ Report The directors use a numnber of key performance indicators to assess the performance
of the business aganst its objectives The results of the group's Key Performance Indicators are detailed on pages 24 to 27

Results and dividend

The consolidated income statement for the year is set out on page 80 and shows a profit after tax for the year and attributable to the ordinary
shareholders of £€44,950,000 (2009 €199,604,000) In 2009, the group recognised a profit on investment of €161,568,000 related to the disposal
of Visa Inc shares as a one-off event, in 2010 there was no such disposal of investments The increase in operating profit s aténibutable {o the
acquisition of SAS Carte Bleue, the global economic recovery, the growth in transaction volumes and the release of an accrua! for indirect taxes
Offset against these factors 1s the fee reimburserent to return the majonty of the surplus to members The consolidated balance sheet s on page 82
and shows a net asset balance of €574,487,000 (2009 €502,674,000) The directors do not recommend a dvidend (2009 €2,296,231,000)

Directors

Certamn directors benefit from qualfying third party indemnity provistons in place during the financial year and at the date of this report

Employees

It 15 the group's policy to ensure that no job apphcant or employee 1s disadvantaged or recewves unfavourable treatment, that all employees have the
opportunity for advancement and development, regardless of race, colour, nationality or ethnic ongins, sex, mantal status, disability, religion or sexual
ortentation Visa Europe s an equal opportunity employer Equal opporturity 1s about good employment practices and treating our most valuable
asset, our employees, fairly and equally

The group is also commutted to ensunng that all prospective applicants for employment are treated fairly and equitably throughout the recrutment
process The group provides reasonable workplace adjustments for new entrants into the group and for existing employees who become disabled
dunng their employment

The group has established clear standards of communication for all of our employees, to provide information and to ¢onsult with our employees
about important developments in the busiess and future changes to the organisation, and to generate an understanding of our purpose, strategy,
values and business performance on an ongoing basis Employees are provided with an anonymous channet to commuricate views and opinions
about working for Visa Europe through an annual Employee Engagernent survey

Financial sk management

The detais of the group's finanaial Instruments, policies and strategies are set out on pages 44 to 49 and innotes 4 and 25 to the consolidated
financial statements

Political and charitable donations
The group made no pelitical contribuitons duning the year Donations to chanties amounted to €142,000 (2009 €22,000)

Disclosure of information to auditors

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this directors’ report confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there 1s no relevant audit
information of which the company’s auditors are unaware, and each drrector has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director
to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s auditors are aware of that information

Reappointment of auditors
Pursuant to Section 487 of the Comparies Act 2006, the auditors will be deemed to be reappainted and KPMG LLP will therefore continue in office
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Board membership

The following directors held office dunng the year ended 30 September 2010

Gilbert Arira
resigned 8 February 2010

Peter Aylffe
Graham J Beale
Jawer Celaya
Johannes Evers
José M Gaberras
Kjell Hedman
Gary Hoffman

Peter Jackson
resigned 19 March 2010

Antony Jenkms
Enmo La Monica
Jan Liden

Sven Lystbaek

Gerard Nebouy
resigned 29 January 2010

Wojciech Paperak

Enk Pointillart
resigned 8 February 2010

Antonio Ramalho

Jose San Juan
Alessandro Seralvo
Nazan Somer

Colin Walsh
appointed 14 Apnl 2010

Yves Blavet
appointed 29 January 2010
resigned 8 February 2010

Yannick Chagnon
appointed 19 February 2010

Fabrice Denele
appointed 19 February 2010

Yves Martrenchar
appointed 19 February 2010

By order of the board

Cavdrak

Y

Carol Walsh
Company Secretary
10 December 2010
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect
of the annual report and the financial statements

The directors are responsible for prepanng the annual report and the group and the parent company financial staternents in accordance with
apphcable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare group and parent company financial statements for each financiat year Under that law they
have elected to prepare the group financial statements in accordance wath IFRSs as adopted by the EU and apphcable laws and have elected to
prepare the parent company financial staternents in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice)

Under company law the directors must not approve the finangal statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the group and parent company and of their profit or loss fer that penod In prepanng each of the group and parent company financial
statements, the directors are required to

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
« make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
» for the group financial statements, state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,

« for the parent company financial statements, state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements, and

s prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s inappropnate to presume that the group and the parent company will
continue tn business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the parent company’s transactions and
disclose with reasonabfe accuracy at any time the financial pesition of the parent company and enable them to ensure that its financial statements

comply with the Companies Act 2006 They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets

of the group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities
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KPMG LLP

15 Canada Square
London E14 5GL
Urited Kingdom

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Visa Europe Limited

We have audited the financial statements of Visa Europe Limited for the year ended 30 Septernber 2010 set out on pages 80 to 86 and the related
notes The financial reporting framework that has been apphed n the preparation of the group financial statements is applicable law and Interrational
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the parent
company financial statements i1s apphcable law and UK Accounting Standards (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those matters we are required to state to them n an auditors’ report
and for no other purpase To the fullest extent perrmitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
company's members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out onpage 78, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Qur responsibility is to audit the financial statements 1n accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's
{APB’s) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the APB's website at www frc org uk/apb/scope/UKNP

Opinion on financial statements
Inour opimon

+ the kinancial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and the parent company s affairs as at 30 September 2010 and of the
group’s profit for the year then ended,

« the group financial statements have been property prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU
+ the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,

+ the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companes Act 2006

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our epimon the information given in the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the
financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Comparies Act 2006 requires us to report to youif, in our opimon

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been recewed from branches
not visited by us, or

» the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
+ certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

* we have not recewved zll the information and explanations we require for our audit

M\kg Fe.cl(

Mike Peck (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

10 December 2010
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Financial statements

Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 30 September

2010 2009
Note €000 €000
Revenue before fee reimbursement 878,322 705,486
Less fee rermbursement (157,514) -
5 720,808 709,486
QOther operating mcome 6 4,625 5,757
Exceptional income 6 48,009 -
Administration expenses 7 (695,572) (595,774)
Other operating expenses 8 (5,632) (53,447
Operating profit 72,238 66,022
Finance income n 3,822 17,724
Dwvidend income 12 206 170
Finance costs n (487) 460
Gain on investment 13 - 132,265
Profit before tax 75,769 215,720
Tax 15 (30,819) (16,16)
Profit for the year attnibutable to equity holders of the parent 44,950 199,604

The notes on pages 87 to 118 form part of these financial staternents
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Financial statements

Consolidated balance sheet
As at 30 September 2010

2010 2009
Note €000 €000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment % 272137 241,344
Goodwill and intangibles 8 43,059 24,600
Financial assets 20 10,448 1,777
Deferred tax assets % 19,393 25971
345,037 293,693
Current assets
Inventories 2z 358 -
Trade and other recesvables bx} 543,267 15,552
Cash and cash equivalents 2 635,254 393,043
Financial assets 20 114,542 135,067
1,293,421 643,662
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 27 937,797 320,332
Current tax liabihties 41,620 17,215
Financial habihties 28 21,936 335979
Redeemable share capital 2 1 1]
1,001,394 3N,567
Net current assets 292,027 272,095
Non-current liabilities
Other habilitres 436 370
Retirement benefit obhgation 3¢ 45,010 32,519
Provisions 3 8,437 6,606
Financial habilities 28 8,694 23,619
62,577 63,114
Net assets 574,487 502,674
Equity
Share capital 1 i
Other reserves 14,650 (20.685)
Retained earnings 559,836 523,358
Equity atinibutable to equity holders of the parent 574,487 502,674

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authonsed for issue on 10 December 2010 They were signed on its behalf by

Plie Cudre

Peter Ayhffe
President and Chief Exegtitive Officer, Visa Europe
Company number 5139966

The notes on pages 87 to 118 form part of these financial statements
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 30 September

2010 2009
Note €000 €000
Profit for the year attributed to equity holders of the parent 44,950 199,604
Other comprehensive income
Avatlable-for-sale investments
Gains/(losses) on revaluation 14 4,404 (99197
Ganns transferred from other comprehensive income to profit or loss 3 - (49,298)
Foreign exchange gains taken to other comprehensive income on
revaluation of availlable-for-sale assets 1,593 47,743
Cash flow hedges
Gains/(losses) taken to other comprehensive income 33,738 (70,905}
Losses transferred from other comprehensive income to profit or loss 1,398 37483
Actuana! losses on defined benefit pension schemes (14,107) (34,872)
Tax on items recognised in other comprehensive income 15 (10,163} 23,608
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of Income tax 26,863 (145,432)
Total comprehensive income for the year 71,813 54172

The notes on pages 87 to 118 form part of these financial statements
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Financial statements

Company balance sheet (prepared under UK GAAP)

As at 30 September 2010
2010 2009
Note €000 €000
MNon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 16 1,308 -
Investment in subsidiaries 1 45 45
Goodwill and intangibles 8 15,731 -
17,084 45
Current assets
Short-term investment 2t 65,000 100,000
Trade and other receivables 3 51,692 71,460
fnventones 22 358 -
Cash and cash equivalents 24 8891 270,278
665,961 441,738
Total assets 683,045 441,783
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 27 363,261 125,964
Current tax habilities 5,235 4,170
Redeemable share capital 32 a1 41
368,537 130,175
Net current assets 297,424 31,563
Non-current habilities
Other hiabilities 59 -
Retirement benefit abligation 259 -
Provisions 203 -
s -
Net assets 313,987 3N,608
Equity
Share capsta! ! ]
Retained earnings 313,986 3n,607
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 313,987 311,608

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authonsed for issue on 10 December 2010 They were signed on its behalf by

Pdir  cuadag.e’

Peter Ayliffe
President and Chief Excutive Ofhicer, Visa Europe
Company number 5139266

The notes on pages 87 to 118 form part of these financial statements
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
For year ended 30 September 2010

200 2009
Note €000 €000

Profit before tax 75,769 215,720
Adjustments for
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 16 51,132 39,299
Amortisation of intangibles 8 199 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 16 1 15,161
Increase/{decrease) in provisions and employee benefits 4,276 (7,891
Operating cash flows before movements in working capitat 131,377 262,289
(Increase)/decrease in recevables (400,105) 1,624,875
Increase in payables 579,272 29,338
Cash generated by operations 310,544 1,916,502
Income taxes pad (12,423) (5,546)
interest paxd n 497 461
Net cash from operating activities 297,624 1,910,495
Investing activities
Interest received n 4,372 16,824
Dividends received 12 206 170
Dwidends paid - (1,610,683)
Proceeds from disposal of investment 35,000 -
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired 7 (15,822) -
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 16 (79,963) (72,19}
Net cash used in investing activities (56,207) (1,666,408)
Financing activities
Repayments of abligations under finance leases (2,436) (183}
Net cash used in financing activibes (2,436) (183)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 238,981 243,504
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginming of the year 392,834 149,476
Effect of foretgn exchange rate changes thereon (3,995) (546)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 24 627,820 392,834

The notes on pages 87 to 118 form part of these financial statements
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Financial statements

Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 30 September 2010

Attnbutable to equuty holders of the parent

Capital Capital Available- Cashflow
Share redemption  contnbution Merger for-sale hedgmg Retained
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve earmings Total
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000

Balance as at 1 October 2009 - - 1 2,000 9978 (32,663) 523,358 502,674
Tetal comprehensive income
for the year
Profit for the year attributable to equity
holders of the parent - - - - - - 44950 44,950
Other comprehensive income:
Available-for-sale investrnents

Gains on revaluation - - - - 4,404 - - 4,404

Foreign exchange gatns - - - - 1,593 - - 1,593
Cash flow hedges

Gains taken to other

comprehensive ncome - - - - - 33,738 - 33,738

Losses transferred from other

comprehensive income to

income statement - - - - - 11,398 - 11,398
Actuanal losses on defined benefit
pension schemes - - - - - (14,107} 14,107)
Tax on items recognised in other
comprehensive mcorme - - - - - (15,798) 5,635 (10,163)
Total other comprehensive mcome - - - - 5997 29,338 (8,472) 26,863
Total comprehensive iIncome for
the year - - - - 5,997 29,338 36,478 71,813
Balance as at 30 September 2010 - - 1 2,000 15,975 (3,325) 559,836 574,487

The notes on pages 87 to 118 form part of these financial statements
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Financial statements

Consolidated statement of changes in equity continued

For the year ended 30 September 2009

Attnbutable to equity holders of the parent

Capital Capital Avalable
Share redemption coniribution Maerger for-sale Cash flow Retained
capitat resesve reserve resarve reserve hedging reserve earnngs Totat
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000

Balance as at 1 October 2008 - - 1 2,000 10,724 (10,938) 2642946 2,744,733
Total comprehensive income
for the year
Profit for the year attributable to equity
holders of the parent - - - - - - 199,604 199,604
Other comprehensive income:
Available-for-sale investments

Losses on revaluation - - - - (99,191) - - (99,191

Gains transferred from other comprehenswve

Income to iIncome statement - - - - (49,298} - - (49,298)

Foreign exchange gains/(losses) - - - - 47,743 - - 47,743
Cash flow hedges

Losses taken to other

comprehensive income - - - - - (70,905) - (70,905)

Losses transferred from other

comprehensive iIncome to

income statement - - - - - 37,483 - 37,483
Actuarial losses on defined benefit
pension schemes - - - - - (34,872) (34,872)
Tax on temns recognised in other
comprehensive income - - - - - 11,697 190 23,608
Total other comprehensive ncome - - - - (00,746  (21,725) (22,961) (145,432)
Total comprehensive iIncome
for the year - - - - Q00,748) (21,725} 176,643 54172
Transactions with owners recorded in equity
Dividends to equity holders - - - - - - (2,296,237) (2,296,231)
Total contributions by and distributions
to equity holders of the parent - - - - - -~ (2,296,231) (2,296,237)
Balance as at 30 September 2009 - - 1 2,000 9978 (32,663) 523,358 502,674

The notes on pages 87 to 118 form part of these financial statements
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Notes to the financial statements
Year ended 30 September 2010

1. General information

Visa Europe Limited 1s a company incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Compames Act 2006 The address of the registered office 1s given
on page 120

The group financial statements have been prepared and approved by the directors in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the EU The company has elected to prepare its parent company financial statements in accordance with UK GAAP, these are
presented on page 83

These financial statements are presented in Euros, rounded to the nearest thousand, because that 1s the currency of the primary economic
environment tn which the group operates

2. Significant accounting policies
IFRS

Statement of compliance
The group financial statements have been prepared in accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)

Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on the histonical cost basis, except for the revaluation of certain financial instruments

The preparation of financ:al statements in conformuty with IFRSs requires management to make (udgements, estimates and assumgptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabihties, ncome and expenses The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and varous other factors that support carrying values of assets and liabihties that are ot readily apparent from other
sources Actual results may differ from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Rewvisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the perod n which
the estimate 15 revised if the revision affects onty that penod, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods

ludgements made by management in the apphication of IFRSs that have significant effect on the financizl statements and estimates with a sigrificant
rnisk of matenal adjustment in the next year are discussed in note 3

Adoption of revised standards

The followmng amendments to existing standards, as 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board, are applicable to the group far the first
time in the current year The adoption of these amendments have had ne impact on the group's accounting but have resulted in the following
disclosure changes

o |AS1 Presentation of Financial Statements requires a number of changes to the presentation of financial statements These include a requirement
to present all tems of income and expense recogrsed in a penod in either a single statement of comprehensive income or in two statements
(a separate income statement and a statement of comprehensive income) As a result, the group has elected to present a consolidated income
statement, a consolidated statement of comprehensive income and a consolidated staternent of changes inequity This has resulted in the
reformatting of the consolidated statement of recognised income and expense into the consohdated statement of comprehensive income and
the addition of a consoldated staterment of changes inequity

o |FRS 7 Financal Instruments Disclosures expands the disclosure requirements in respect of far value measurements and haudity rnisk

Amendments made to the following IFRSs and the issuance of IFRIC 14 which became eifective in the current financial year have had no material
impact on these financial statements

+ IFRS 2 Share-Based Payment,

s IFRS 3 Business Combinations,

» 1AS 23 Borrowing Costs,

* [AS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financiaf Statements,

s AS 32 Financal Instruments Presentation,

e |AS 39 Financial Instruments Recogmition and Measurement,

o |FRIC 13 Custoner Loyaity Programmes, and

o |FRIC 14 IAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Mimimum Funding Requirements and therr Interaction

The following revisions to accounting standards and pronouncements applicable to the group were issued as at 30 September 2010 but are effective
for accounting periods beginring after 30 September 2010 The use of IFRSs and certain IFRIC Interpretations that have yet to be endorsed by the
European Union 15 not permitted Where IFRSs and IFRIC Interpretations listed below have been endorsed by the European Umion and early adoption
is permitted, the group has elected not to apply them in the preparation of these financial statements
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Notes to the financial statements continued

Year ended 30 Septermnber 2010

2. Significant accounting policies continued

The fullimpact of these IFRSs and IFRIC Interpretations is currently being assessed by the group, but none of these pronouncements are expected
to result in any matenal adjustments to the financial statements

Pronouncement

Nature of change

Latest effective date for the group

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS9 has yet to be endorsed, but introduces new requirements
for classifying and measuning financial assets In October 2010,
the tASB also added new requirements for the cfassification and
measurement of finanoial liabilities and derecognition of financial
mnstruments The updated version of IFRS 9 (IFRS 9 (2010)) 15
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1January 2013
and early adoption is permltteg

The IASB intends to further expand IFRS 9 (including impawrment
and hedge accounting) to completely replace IAS 39

1Qctober 2013
Not yet endorsed

IAS 24 Related party disclosures

Simplhfies the definition of a related party and provides
partial exemption from disclosure requirements for
government-related entities

1 October 2011
Endorsed

|AS 32 Financial instruments Presentation

Requires rights issues denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the issuer to be classified as
equity regardiess of the currency in which the exercise price
18 denominated

1 October 2010
Endorsed

Amendment to IFRIC 14 JAS19-

Removes unintended consequences arising from the treatment

1 October 2011

The Lirit on a Defined Benefit Asset, of prepayments of future contributians in some circumstances Endorsed

Mimmum Funding Requirernents when there 1s a mimmum funding requirement

and thesr Interaction

Improvemnents to IFRS Sets out minor amendments to IFRS standards as part of the 1 October 2010

(1ssued Aprd 2009) annual improvement process Endorsed

Improvements to IFRS This proncuncement has yet to be endorsed, but sets out Various 1 Qctober 2010/

(issued May 2010) mingr amendments to IFRS standards as part of the annual 1 October 201
improvement process Not yet endorsed
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Notes to the financial statements continued
Year ended 30 September 2010

2. Significant accounting policies continued

Basis of consolidation

The consohdated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the company and entitres controlled by the company (its subsidiaries)
made up to 30 September each year Control s achieved where the company has the power to govern the financiat and operating polictes of an
investee entity so as to obtain benefits from s activities

Allintra-group transactions, batances, iIncome and expenses are ehminated on consolidation

Under sectron 408(31) of the Companies Act 2006 the company 1s exempt frorm the requirement to present its own incorne statement The profit for
the year is included in note 31

Foreign currency translation

The group financial statements of Visa Europe are presented in Euros, which s the group's functional currency In preparing the financial statements
of the individual companies, transacttons i currencies other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of
exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions Monetary assets and habiities that are denominated in foreign currencees are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at the reporting date Non-monetary tems carned at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencres ase translated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value was deterrmined Any resulting exchange differences are included m adnurustration expenses in the ncome
statement, except for differences on available-for-sale non-monetary financial assets, which are included in the avallable-for-sale reserve in other
comprehensive incorne Non-monetary items that are measuzed m terms of hustorical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated

Exchange differences ansing on the settlement of monetary items are included in the incorme statement for the year

In order to hedge its exposure to certain foreign exchange nisks, the group enters into forward contracts and options The nature of the group’s
currency nsks s explained in note 4 (see below for details of the group’s accounting policies in respect of such denvative financial instruments)

Goodwill and intangible assets

Goedwill ansing on conschdation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the group's interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets
and habilihes of a subsichary associate or jorntly controlied entity at the date of acquisition Goodwill 1s initially recognised as an asset at cost and 1s
subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated imparment losses to the income statement

Goedwill whichis recognised as an asset is reviewed for impairment at least annually Any imparment is recegnised immediately to the income
statement and 15 not subsequently reversed

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwall 1s allocated to each of the group's cash-generating units expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination Cash-generating umts to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there s
an indication that the unit may be iImpaired If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is tess than the carrying amount of the unit, the
wmpairment loss 15 allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the urut pro-rata
onthe basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit An impairment loss recognised for goodwillis not reversed in a subseguent period

Ondisposa! of a subsidiary the attnibutable amount of goodwill 1s included in the deterrmination of the income statement on disposal

Goodwill ansing on acquisiions before the date of transition to IFRSs has been retained at the previous UK GAAP amounts subject to being tested
for mpairment at that date Goodwill 1s reviewed for impairment at least annually and has an infinite useful hfe See below for additional details of
imparrment reviews

Intangible assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortisatton and any impaiwment losses Amortisationis charged to the income statement
using the straight ne method 50 as to wnite off the cost of the assets over therr estimated useful lives on the following bases

Customer relationships 15 years
Brand 7 years

Goodwill 1s assessed to have anindefinite useful hfe as, based on an analysis of all of the relevant factors, there 15 no foreseeable hmit to the penod
over which the asset 1s expected to generate net cash inflows for the entity

Property, plant and equipment

ltems of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses The cost of self-constructed
assets includes the costs of matenals and direct fabour Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when
the assets are ready for thewr intended use

Land rs not depreciated Depreciation on other assets 1s charged to the income statement using the straight line method so as to write off the cost
to their residual values over therr estimated useful lives on the following bases

Buldings 40 years

Leasehold improvements 40 years (or lease term if shorter)
Furniture and fittings 3t010 years

Computer equpment and software 3to10 years
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Notes to the financial statements continued
Year ended 30 September 2010

2. Significant accounting policies continued

Property, plant and equipment continued
The assets’ residual values and useful ives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropniate, at the end of each reporting period An asset's carrymg amount
15 wntten down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount 1s greater than its estimated recoverable armount

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful hves on the same basis as owned assets or, where shorter, over the term
of the relevant lease

The gain or loss ansing on the disposal or retirement of an asset 15 deterrmined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and 1s recogmised in the income statement

Leasing
Leases are classitied as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the nisks and rewards of ownership to the lessee
All other leases are classified as operating leases

The group as lessee

Assets hetd under finance leases are recognised as assets of the group at their far value or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments, each deterrmuned at the inception of the lease The correspondimg hability to the lessoris included in the consolidated balance shest as a
finance lease obligation Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the hability Finance charges are charged directly against income

Rentals payabte under operating leases are charged to income on a straight-hne basis over the term of the relevant lease
Benefits receved and recewvable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are also spread on a straight-line basis aver the lease term

The group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recogmsed on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease Initial direct costs sncurred in
negotialing and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over
the lease term

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwill

At the end of each reporting pertod, the group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and ntangible assets to determine whether there 1s any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset 1s estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any) Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are iIndependent from other assets, the
group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs An intangible asset with an indefinite useful tife 1s
tested for impairment annually and whenever there 1s an indication that the asset may be imparred

The recoverable amount 1s the higher of fair value less caosts to sell and value in use In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted io their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the nisks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted

H the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash-generating unit) 1s estimated to be less than ds carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
{cash-generating unit) 15 reduced to its recoverable amount An wmpairment Joss 1s recognised as an expense immediately unless the relevant asset
15 carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss I1s treated as a revaluation decrease

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) 1s increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset {cash-generating umit) in prior years A reversal of an impairment loss 1s recognised as
mecome immediately, unless the relevant asset 1s carned at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss 1s treated

as a revaluation increase

Fmancial mstruments
Financial assets and financial labilkities are recognised/derecognised on the group's balance sheet when the group becomes/stops being a party
to the contractual prowisions of the instrument

Trade recesvables and other recevables

Trade recewvables are measured at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs on initial recognition, and are subsequently measured at
amorbised cost using the effactive mterest rate method Appropriate alfowances for estimated rrecoverable amounts are recogrised in the income
statement when there is objective emdence that the asset 1s impaired The allowance recognised 1s measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interesi rate cornputed at inisial recognition

Investments

Investments, classified as held to matunity, are non-dervative financial assets with fixed or deterninable payments and fixed maturnties that the
group positively intends and has the ability to hold to matunty Held to maturity investments are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method
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2. Significant accounting policies continued

Investments continued

Investments, classified as avadable-for-sale, are mibially measured at faw value plus directly attnibutable acquisition costs and are subsequently
measured at fair value, with gains and losses ansing from changes in fair value recognised directly m other comprehensive income, unti! the secunty
1s disposed of or 15 deterrined to be imparred, at which time the curnulative gain or loss previously recogrused in other comprehensive income is
included in the income statement for the penod Animpairment loss s recogrised in the income staternent when there 15 objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, and 1s measured as the difference between the mvestment's carrying armount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition

impairment losses recogmised in the income staterment for equity investrments classified as available-for-sale are not subsequently reversed through
the income statement Impawrment losses recogmised int the income statement for debt instruments classified as avallable-for-sale are subsequently
reversed if an increase in the fair value of the instrument can be objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition of the imparrment loss

Where the nvestment held s in a private company with no readily available market, the fair value reflects the ilhiquid nature of the invesiment

The group maintains shori-term money market investments and other marketable securities related 1o certain executive compensation plans These
investrrients are recorded sn current assets at fair vatue with a correspending accrual relating to the amounts to be paid out to executives recorded in
current abilities

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprnse cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly hquid investments that are readily convertible
to a known amount of cash and are subject to zn nsignificant nsk of changes in value

Financial habilities and equity
Financeal habihties and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered inte An equity
instrurment 1s any contraci that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its liabthties

Share capital
Share capital 1s classified as equity if it 1s non-redeemable and any dividends are discretionary, or is redeernable but only at the company’s option

Share capital 1s classified as a financial lrabelity if it 1s redeemable on a specific date or at the option of the shareholders or if dividend payments are
not discretionary Dividends thereon are recognised in the income statement as interest expense

Trade payables and share capital classified as financial iabilities
Trade payables and share capital classified as financial labilities are initially measured at fair vatue, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effectrve interest rate method

Derwative financial instruments and hedge accounting
The group's activities expose 1t primanly to the financial nsks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates The group uses foreign exchange forward
contracts to hedge these exposures The group does not use dervative financial instruments for speculative purposes

The use of financial denvatives 1s governed by the group’s policies approved by the board of directors, which provide written principles on the use
of financial dervatives

Changes in the far value of derwative financia! nstruments that are designated and deered to be effective as hedges of future cash flows are
recognsed directly in other comprehensive income and the ineffective portion is recogmsed immediately in the mcome statement if the cash flow
hedge of a firm commitment or forecasted transaction results in the recognition of an asset or a liability, then, at the time the asset or liability 1s
recognised, the associated gans or losses on the derivative that had previously been recogrised in other comprehensive income are inciuded in
the initial measurerment of the asset or hability For hedges that do not result in the recognition of an asset or a iability, amounits deferred in other
comprehensive iIncome are recognised in the Income statement in the same penod m which the hedged item affects net profit or loss

Changes in the fair value of denivative financial instruments that de not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the income statement
as they anise

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or 1s sold, terminated, or exeraised, or no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting At that time, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrumnent recognised in other comprehensive income 1s retained in other
comprehensive iIncome until the forecasted transaction occurs If a hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain
or loss recognised in other comprehensive income s transferred to net profit or loss for the penod

Revenue recognition

Revenue 1s measured at the fair value of the consideration recewved or receivable and represents service and transaction fees, net of volume-based
discounts and support incentives, VAT and other sales-related taxes Volume-based discounts and support incentives are offset against revenue
when it 1s probable that the critena for the discount or incentive will be met and the amount can be rehably estimated Service fees predominantly
represent payments by members with respect to their card programmes carrying the Visa brand marks Transaction fees represent user fees for
authornisaton, cleaning, settlement and other activities that facilitate transaction and information flow armong the group s members Revenue is
recognised when services are performed

Interest ncome 1s accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the efiective interest rate applicable, whichis the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected hfe of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount

Visa Europe Annual Report 2010 91




Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements continued
Year ended 30 September 2010

2. Significant accounting policies continued

Retirement benefit costs
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due

For deftned benefit schemes, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected urit credit method, with actuarial valuations being
carried out at the end of each reporting period Actuarial gains and losses are recogrused in full in the period in which they occur These gains and
losses are not recognised within the iIncome statement but are instead included in other comprehensive income

Past service cost 1s recognised tmmediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested, and otherwise 15 amortised on a straight-hne basis
over the average penod until the benefits become vested

The value of the reterement benefits recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for
unrecognised past service cost, and as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

The tax currently payable 1s based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the ncome statement because it
excludes items of iIncome or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes rtems that are never taxable or deductible
The group's hability {or current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reperting date

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and habihties in the inancial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, 2nd 18 accounted for using the balance sheet habiity method
Deferred tax habilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recogmsed to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilsed Such assets and habilities are not
recognised If the temporary difference anses from the iitral recognition of goodwill or from the initial recogmiion {other than in a business
combination) of other assets and habihties in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit Deferred tax liabilities

are recognised for taxable temporary differences ansing on investments in subsidianes and assocates, and interests in joint ventures, except
where the group is able to controt the reversal of the temporary difference and it 1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that i 1s no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be avaifable to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the peniod when the lability is settled or the asset 1s realised Deferred tax s
charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to other comprehensive income, in which
case the deferred tax s also dealt with in other comprehensive income

Deferred tax assets and habihities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable nght to set off current tax assets against current tax habiities
and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authonity and the group mtends to settle its current tax assets and habilities
on a net basis

Provisions

Provistons are recognised when the group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and it 1s probable that the group wilt be required to settle
that obhgation Provisions are measured at the drectors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the reporting date, and
are discounted to present value using a commercial rate where the effect 1s matenal Discounts are unwound through the iIncome staterment from the
date the provision 1s made up to the date that the expenditure covered by the provision is incurred

UK GAAP

The following accounting palicies have been applied consistently in dealing with stems which are considered matenal in relation to the company's
balance sheet (see page 83)

Basis of preparation
The company’s financial statements have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention in accordance with the Companies Act 2006
The company financia! statements comply with applicable accounting principles generally accepted in the United Kingdom (UK GAAP)

Under section 408 (3} of the Cormparues Act 2006 the company 1s exempt from the requirement to present its own profit and loss account
The company has also taken advantage of the exernption in FRS 1 Cash Flow Statements, which provides that where a company 1s a member
of a group and a consohdated cash flow statement 1s published, the company dogs not have to prepare a cash How statement

92 Visa Europe Annual Report 2010




Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements continued
Year ended 30 September 2010
2. Significant accounting policies continued

Property, plant and equspment
Tangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation

Depreciation is charged to the income statement using the straight-line method so as to wnite off the cost to the residual values of assets over thewr
estimated useful lives on the following bases

Buildings 40 years

Leasehold improvernents 40 years (or lease termif shorter)
Furmiture and hittings 3to10years

Computer equipment and software 3to10years

Current asset investments

Current asset investments are valued under historical cost convention

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are transiated at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction Monetary assets and hiabilities denominated
in forexgn currencies are retranslated at the exchange rates ruding at the reporting date 2nd any exchange differences ansing are taken to the profit and
loss account

Financial hiabilities and equity
Financial liabiities and equity instruments are ¢lassified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into An equity instrurnent
15 any contract that ewidences a residual interest inthe assets of the group after deducting all of its habilities

Share capital
Share capital 1s classified as an equity instrument within egquity shareholders’ funds if it 1s non-redeemable and any dividends are discretionary, or is
redeemable but only at the company's option

Share capital 15 classified #s a hnancial hability within creditors if it 1s redeemable on a specific date or at the option of the shareholders or 1If devidend
payments are not discretionary Dwidends thereon are recogmsedin the profit and loss account as interest expense

Goodwill

On 30 Apnil 2010 the trade and net assets of a subsidiary undertaking were transferred to the company at therr book value which was less than ther
far value The cost of the company's investment in that subsidiary undertaking reflected the underlying fair value of its net assets and goodwill at the
time of acquisition As a result of this transfer, the value of the company’s investment in that subsichary undertaking fell below the amount at which it
was stated in the company’s accounting records Schedule 1to the Companies Act 2006 The Large ond Medium-sized Coempanies and Groups (Accounts
and Reports) Regulations 2008 (51 2008 No 410) requires that the investment be wntten down accordingly and that the amount be charged as aloss
in the company's profit and less account

However, the directors consider that, as there has been no overall loss to the company, it would fail to give a true and fair view to charge that
diminution to the company’s profit and loss account for the year and it sheutd instead be re-allocated to goodwill and the identifiable net assets
transferred, so as to recogrise :n the company’s indwdual balance sheet the effective cost to the company of those net assets and goodwill on the
date that the subsidiary undertaking was trarnsferred to the company The effect of this departure 1s to decrease the holding company’s profit for
the financial year by €1,500,000 and to increase the amount of the acquisition goodwill from €14,189,000 n the group balance to €16,080,000
in the holding company's balance sheet The group financial statements are not affected by this transfer

Intangible assets recogrised mn the group balance sheet are not recogmisable under UK GAAP

Goodwill 1s amortised on a straight-hine basis over its useful ife which1s deemed to be 20 years

3. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
Accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertamty at the reporting date, that have a sigruficant risk
of causing a matenal adjustrent to the carrying amounts of assets and habilities withun the next financial year, are discussed below

Goodwill
At 30 Septernber 2010 the group carried goodwill on its balance sheet totalling €33,015,000 (2009 €18 826,000) of which €14,189,000 relates
to the acquisition of SAS Carte Bleue

The group reviews the goodwill for impairment at least annually or when events or changes in economic circumstances indicate that impairment
may have taken place The impairment review s performed by projecting future cash flows based upon budgets and pians and making appropnate
assurmptions about rates of growth and discounting these using a rate that takes into account prevaitling market interest rates and the nisks mberent
n the business If the present value of the projected cash flows 1s less than the carrying value of the underlying net assets and related goodwill an
impawrment charge 1s required in the income statement This calculation requires the exercise of signihicant judgement by management, «f the
estimates made prove to be incorrect or performance does not meet expectations which affects the amount and tirming of future cash flows,
goodwill may become impaired in future periods Further details are given in note 18
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3. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty continued

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that derve thew value from contractual customer relationships or that can be separated and sold and have a finite usefud hfa

are amortised over therr eshimated useful bfe Determining the estimated useful hife of these finte hfe iIntangible assets requires an analysis of
crcumstances, and judgement by the group's management At each balance sheet date, or more frequently when events or changes in
arcumstances dictate, intangible assets are assessed for indications of impairment If indications are present, these assets are subject to an
impairment review The impairment review comprises a compartson of the carrying amount of the asset with its recoverable amount the higher
of the asset’s or the cash-generating unit's net selling price and its value inuse Net sefling price 1s calculated by reference to the amount at which
the asset could be disposed of in a binding sale agreement in an arm's length transaction evidenced by an active market or recent transactions for
sirnilar assets Value inuse s calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows obtainable as a result of the asset s continued use, inctuding
those resulting from its ultimate disposal, at a market-based drscount rate on a pre-tax basis

Retirement benefits

The schernes’ labilities are calculated using the projected unit credit method, which takes into account projected earnings increases, using actuanal
assumptions that give the best estimate of the future cash flows that wall anse under the scheme habilities The resulting estimated cash flows are
discounted at a rate equivalent to the market yield at the balance sheet date an high quahty bonds with a similar duration and currency to the
schemes’ habilities In order to estimate the future cash flows, 2 number of financial and non-financial assumptions are made by management,
changes to which could have a material impact upon the overall deficit or the net cost recogrised in the ncome statement

Two important assumptions are the rate of inflation and the discount rate The assumed rate of inflation affects the rate at which salaries are
projected to grow and therefore the size of the pension that employees receve upon retirement and also the rate at which pensions in payment
increase Over the longer term rates of inflation can vary sigmftcantly, at 30 September 2010 it was assumed that the rate of inflation would be

3 21 per cent per annum (2009 319 per cent), although if this was increased by G 1 per cent the overall deficit would increase by approximately
€41 milhon (2009 €3 2 million) and the annual cost by approximately €0 3 milhion (2009 €0 3 miuthon) A reduction of 0 Tper cent would reduce
the overa't deficit by approximately €3 5 milhon (2009 €2 7 million) and the annual cost by approximately €0 3 milhon (2009 €0 3million)

The size of the overall deficit 1s also sensitive to changes in the discount rate, which s affected by market conditions and therefore potentially subject
to significant vanations At 30 September 2010 the discount rate used was 512 per cent (2009 5 68 per cent), a reduction of 01 per cent would
increase the overall deficit by approximately €4 3 milhon (2009 €3 4 milion) and the annual cost by apgroximately €Q 2 milion (2009 €0 2 mulion),
while anincrease of O 1 per cent would reduce the net dehicit by approximately €4 1 mullion (2009 €3 3 milhion) and the annual cost by approxumately
€0 2 millken (2009 €0 2 milhon) See note 30

Fair value of financial instruments
Available-for-sale financial Investments are initially recognised at fawr value and are subsequently held at fair value Gains and losses ansing from
changes in fasr value of such assets are included as a separate component of equity

The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liguidation sale Where a valuation model is used to determine fair value, it makes maximum use of market inputs
Management exercises judgement in deciding which point in the acceptable range generated by the model is the fair value

Finanoial instruments with a fair value based on quoted market prices (Yevel 1) include valuations which are determined by unadjusted quoted prices
for identical instruments in active markets where the quoted price s readily available, and the price represents actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm's length basis

Financiat instruments with a fair value based on observable inputs (level 2}, include valuations other than quoted market prices as dascribed for level
1, but which are observable for the instrument, either directly or indirectly

Financial instruments with a fair value based on sigrificant uncbservable inputs (level 3), include valuations which incorporate sigmificant inputs for

the instrument that are not based on observable market data (unobservable imputs) Unobservable inputs are those not readily available in an active
market due to market iliquidity or complexity of the product These inputs are generally determined based on observable inputs of a similar nature,

historic observations on the level of the input or analytical techmiques

Visa Inc shares held by the group are classified as avallable-for-sale assets The shares are valued at market value and are subject to a discount

for the lock-up provision The discount was determined using industry standard models The models calculate fair value based on input parameters
such as the nisk free rate of return, the penod of the restriction the level of volatiity anticipated and the level of dividends expected The results

are validated agatnst observable in-the-money put options As at 30 September 2010, the discount rate for the lock-up prowvision is 4 0 per cent
(2009 15 5 per cent) If this was increased by 01 per cent the asset would decrease by €10,000 (2009 €18,000) A reducten of 01 per cent
would ncrease the asset by €10,000 (2009 €18,000)

The discount percentage 1s subject to periodic review, taking into account time and volatihity

Taxation

The group has taken account of tax issues that are subject to ongoing discussions with HM Revenue and Custorns and other tax authonties
in recogmising tax assets Inherent an this 1s management s assessment of legal and professional advice, case law and other relevant guidance
The various risks are categorised and appropriate weightings apphed m determining the carrying value of current and deferred tax batances
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3 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty continued

Revenue recognition

As stated in note 2, revenues are stated net of volume based discounts and support incentives This offset takes place when it 15 probable that cntena
for the discount or incentive will be met and can be reliably estimated Management exercises judgement in assessing whether criteria will be met
and in esbimating the percentage completion For support incentives, management estimates the percentage completion against the target critena
agreed withmermbers For volume based discounts, management bases the eshimates upon past expenence

4, Financial risk management

Overview

The group has exposure to the following

+ Market sk

+ Settlement nsk

* Liguidity risk

» Other price nsk

This note presents information about the group s exposure to each of the above nisks Further quantitative disclosures are included innote 25
Risk management framework

The group1s exposed to a range of financial nsks which predominantly anise from changes in foreign exchange rates, interest rates and money market
hquidity A financial sk management framework 1s 1in place, where appropriate, to mitigate any negative impact this may have on the group’s
reported results

The nisk framework comprises a treasury policy approved by the board This palicy provides guidance over all treasury and finance-related matters
and 1s underpinned by delegated authority gudehnes and detailed procedures The main objectives of the policy are to ensure that sufficient hquidity
exists to meet the operational needs of the business, to maintain the integnity and quicity of the investment pertfoho, and to manage the impact of
foreign exchange and interest rate volatility on the group's net income

The execution of this policy 1s performed by an experienced treasury team and 1s monitored by an Asset and Lisblity Commitiee Risk management
policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reftect the changes in market caonditions and the group's activities Value-at-Risk and sensitivity
analyses provide the Asset and Liabihty Committee with the appropriate information to monitor the net underlying financial risks

The group manages its foreign exchange, hquidity and interest rate nsks in accordance with these policies using avariety of denvative and non-
dervative mstruments These instruments comprise of forward foreign exchange contracts and currency option contracts Medging relationships
are maintained wathin rmmmum and maximuom allowable hmits over speafic matunty imeframes as defined inthe policy The group does not trade
in financial instrurments, nor does it take on speculative or open positions through its use of derivatives

Market risk
The group 15 exposed to market sk factors such as changes in foraign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prces

Foreign exchange risk

A substantial praportion of the group's expenditure 1s denommated n foreign currencies, mainly Steshing and US Dollars To ranage the income
statement volatility attributable to this foresgn exchange risk, the foreign exchange exposure of future committed and uncommutted cash flows
are mutigated through the use of foreign exchange forwards and currency option contracts within the parameters defined by the treasury policy
Committed cash flows relate to certain contractual nghts or obligations Uncommitted cash flows are highly probable future cash flows far which
the group does not yet have a contractual reght or obligation

Interest rate rnisk
Visa Europe 1s exposed to fluctuations in interest rates on its investments and borrowings Currently Visa Europe has no long-term debt but actively
momtors mnterest rate exposures onits investrnent portfoho so as to minimise the effect of interest rate fluctuations on the income statement

The treasury policy allows the use of denvative transactions to manage exposures to mterest rate movements The group has a policy of swapping
a portion of vanable interest profiles onits cash investments and cash equivalents to fixed nterest profiles Where necessary, the group enters into
interest rate swap transactions and forward rate agreements to achieve this objective

Equrty risk
The group holds a small amount of eguity nsk which is currently accepted and not managed through the use of dervative instruments
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4, Financial nsk management continued
Settlement nsk

The group's settlement nisk is the nsk that a member (s unable to hanour its obhgations to the group as and wien those fall due The group employs
a specialist member nsk management team that 1s responsible for monitoring the credt rating of each member that participates m the Visa system
This 1s done by regularly assessing each principal member's financial health and evaluating their ability to respond if such a nisk crystallises Each
member is also further assessed based on the risk-based exposure generated by the number of Visa cards 1ssued by the member and the related
sales and acquiring volumes

Other nsk management measures mclude assessing the ecenomuc, supervisory and regulatory environment of the countnes w which those
members operate To reduce any potential member losses that may anse from members' failure to settle, the group requires certam members
to provide financial safeguards to ensure performance of settlernent obligations ansing from card and other product clearings

Liquidity nisk

Liguidity nsk s the sk that the group 1s unable to meet its current and future cash flow cbligations as and when they fall due, or can only do so at excessive cost
This includes the nsk that the group 15 unable to meet settlement obligahons to the acquinng banks due to failure of an ssuing bank to pay

To mitigate this nsk, back up hquidity facilities are 1n place with a syndicate consisting of high credit, quahity financial inststutions, in addstion to the
group’s own hiquid investments The treasury policy states hquidity crtteria for use in the management of the group’s cash investments

To ensure that sufficient iquidity 1s avaiable to meet short-term financial obligations, the group s swap policy 1s such that 80 per cent of cash
investments must have an investrment duration of less than one month and 40 per cent of cash assets must be invested in AAA rated Money Market
Funds that allow same day access to funds All financial investments have an S&P rating of A or above and no investments are classed as either past
due orimpaired

Other price risk

The defined benefit pension scheme 15 addihionally exposed to equity pnce nsk and this indirectly affects the group The group also maintains
short-term money market investments and other marketable secunties related te certa:n executve compensation pfans The group also holds
a small amount of equity ivestments (see note 14)

Capital management

The group is not subject to any external capital requirements and nor was it In the prior year The group currently uses Basel I principles 1o measure
and monitar the requirement for capital within the business and measures the available capital against this

The purpose of mantaining the capital per Basel Il principles i1s to provide cover aganst nsks in the business, the principal ones being setttement nsk
ansing on member default and operational malfunction Capitat reserves should therefore be hquid and held in low nsk assets so that they can be
accessed quickly in an emergency and with certainty of value

5. Revenue
An analysis of the group’s revenue is as follows
2000 2009
€000 €000
Service and transaction fees 720,808 709,486

Due to hugher than budgeted revenue growth and exceptional income, the group has generated a surplus over budget and i3 capital requirements
As Visa Europe 1s a membership association, this surplus 1s to be returned to members in the proportions in which they pay fees, and it has been
decided that this will be achieved by returning certainsdentified fees This reduchion in revenues has been accrued in the year and has a net impact
of €157,514,000 (2009 €nil)

6. Other operating and exceptional ncome

2010 2009
€000 €000

Rental ncome from operating leases 3,414 517
Other 1,211 640
4,625 5757

During the year, the group released an accrual for indirect taxes on certain fees included within administration expenses in the current and prior years
to exceptional income in the amount of €48,009,000 (2009 €nil) The group has satisfied itself that there 1s no langer a requirerment to prowde for
such indirect tax and sc the accrual has been released and no further accrual i1s being made
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7 Administrative expenses

Admunstrative expenses include

Financial statements

2010 2009
€000 €000
Foreign exchange losses/(gans) (see below) 12,797 (37,368)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
owned 50,889 39,056
leased 243 243
Staff costs (see note 9) 160,697 137978
Exceptional costs (see below) 3,540 3,942
Auditor’s remuneration (see below) 857 755

Included within foreign exchange gains in 2009 are gams of €29,303,000 on cash recewed on redemption of the group's Sertes Il shares and
57 per cent of its Senes Il shares in Visa Inc, between redemption and cash being distnbuted to members (see note 14} In 2010 no such gains

were recogrised

Included wathin admirustration expenses in 2010 are exceplional costs from the acquisition of SAS Carte Bleue £€3,540,000 (2009 €3,942,000)

(seencte 17)

The rermuneration of the auditors, KPMG LLP, 1s set out below

Group Company
2010 2005 2010 2009
€000 €000 €000 €000
Audit of the financial statements 318 260 - -
Audit of the financial statements of the subsidiaries pursuant to legislatien 63 10 - -
Other services related to taxation 53 124 - -
Fees refating to the Visa Europe Pension Plan 9 10 - -
All other services 114 351 - -
857 755 - -
The group paid all audit fees on behalf of the company
Ali other services predorminantly relate to assurance services on the SAS Carte Bleue acquisition and SAS 70 reporting
8. Other operating expenses
2010 2009
€000 €000
Net (gains)/losses on derivatives not In a designated hedge accounting relationship (5,767) 803
Net losses on disposal and wnite off of property, plant and equipment 1 15,161
Net losses on forward contracts transferred from other comprehensive income 1,398 36,573
Net losses on option contracts transferred from other comprehensive income _ 910
5,632 53,447

In 2009, net losses on disposal and write off of property, plant and equipment included a write down of €14,615,000 of project-related costs to

recoverable amount In 2010 no such losses were recogrised

There was no ineffectiveness arnsing from cash flow hedges included in dervatives not in designated hedge accounting relationshups (2009 €nil)

9, Staff costs
The average monthly number of employees (including executive directors) was
Group Compary
2010 2009 2010 2009
Marketing 174 159 9 -
Relationship management and member services 240 237 6 -
Technology and processing services 674 616 n -
Other 287 267 12 -
1,375 1,279 38 -
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9. Staff costs continued

Their aggregate remuneration compnsed of

Group Company
2010 2009 2050 2009
€000 €000 €000 €000
Wages and salaries 131,632 13,545 3,546 -
Social secunity costs 17,320 14,008 947 -
Other pension costs Nn,745 10,425 409 -
160,697 137978 4,902 -
10. Remuneration of directors

The resnuneration of the directors for the year was as follows
200 2009
€000 €000
Durectors’ emoluments 2,185 1,704

The aggregation of emoluments and amounts recevable under long-term incentive schermes of the highest paid dwector was €1,648,000
(2009 €1,421,000), compnsing

2010 2009
€000 €000
Base remuneration 495 483
Performance related bonuses 1,014 802
Other benefits 139 136
1,648 1,421
There were no retirement benefits accruing to any directors
T1. Net financing income/{expense)
2010 2009
€000 €000
Finance income
Interest on bank deposits 3,822 14,950
Interest ncome on recevables - 2,734
3,822 17,724
Finance expense
Interest on obligations under finance leases (10} (15)
Discounted provisions - unwind of discount (487} (446)
(497 (461)

Interest iIncome on recewvables i 2009 the fee payable by the company under the Framework Agreement for services provided by Visa Inc
increased over ime The difference between the eventual ammount payable per quarter and the fee payable was presented as mterest recewvable
There has been no such increase in 2010

12. Dividend income

70M0 2009

€000 €000

Dwidend income on avalable-for-sale financial assets 206 170

13. Gain on investment

2010 2009

Note €000 €000

Gain infair value recycled from other comprehensive income - 49,298
Gan on foreign exchange on investment 14 - 103,284
- 152,582
Loss on derivatives - (20,317)
- 132,265

In 2009, a gain of €29,303,000 relating to foreign exchange movements ansing from the investment in Visa Inc was included in adrministration
expenses (note 7) Consequently the total gain on nvestment was €161,568,000 There s no such gainn 2010
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14. Investment in Visa Inc.

Financial statements

In 200¢ a gain was recognised in relation to the change in value of the Senes [t and 57 per cent of Senies I shares and the gain recogrised on
43 per cent of Series Il shares previously recogrised in reserves was recycled to the income statement

57% of 43% of
Senesl Senes il Senes il Subtotal Seres IV Total
£000 €000 €000 €000 £000 €000
Balance sheet value as at 1 October 2008 788,210 1,044,925 745,082 2,578,217 15194 2,593,4N
Subsequent movement in foreign exchange through
the income statement 44,410 58,874 - 103,284 - 103,284
Subsequent movement in fair value through other
comprehensive Income - - (107,470) 107,470} 8,197 (99,273)
Subsequent movement in foreign exchange through
other comprehensive Income - - 47895 47,896 (153) 47,743
832,620 103,799 685,508 2,621,927 23,238 2,645,165
Cash received on redemption of nvestment (832,620) (1,103,799 - {1,936,419) - (1,936,419)
Distributed to members - - (685,508) (685,508) - (685,508)
Balance sheet value as 30 Septernber 2009 - - - - 23,238 23,238
Balance sheet value as t October 2009 - - - - 23,238 23,238
Subsequent movement in fair value through other
comprehensive Income - - - - 4,680 4,680
Subsequent movement in foreign exchange through
other comprehensive iIncome - - - - 1,600 1,600
Balance sheet value as at 30 September 2010 - - - - 25,518 29,518

The subsequent movement in fair value through other comprehensive income of €4,680,000 s inciuded 1n the available-for-sale reserve gain

of €4,404,000 in the consohdated statement of changes in equity

15. Tax
2010 2009
€000 €000
Current tax
UK corporation tax
Current tax on profit for the year 20,870 ,744
Adjustment in respect of prior years (312) (4,600)
20,558 7144
Foreign tax
Current tax on profit for the year 13,237 1,897
Adjustment in respect of prior years 1,950 Q77
15187 1,720
Total current tax 35,745 8,864
Deferred tax {note 26)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 1,900) 1,250
Adjustment in respect of prior years (3,026) 6,002
(4,926) 7,252
Total tax charge 30,819 1616

The group's profits are taxable in the UK, France and USA, subject to foreign tax rehef in the USA and UK
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15. Tax continued

The current tax charge for the year 1s higher than the standard rate of Federal income tax in the USA of 35 per cent (2009 35 per cent)

The differences are explained below

2010 2009
€000 £000
Profit before tax 75,769 215,720
Taxation at the standard US Federal income tax rate of 35% (2009 35%) 26,519 75,502
Effects of
Permanent differences 5,661 3,762
Prior year adjustments {1,388) 1,224
Non-taxable gans on investment in Visa Inc - (63,660)
Other 27 (712)
Total tax charge (see above) 30,819 16,116
Income tax recognised in other comprehensive iIncome
For the year ended 30 September
2010 2009
Before tax Tax Net of tax Before tax Tax HNet of tax
Avallable-for-sale investments
Gains transferred from other comprehensive income to income - - - (49,298) - (49,298)
Gains/(losses) on revatuation 4,404 - 4,404 (99,191} - (99,191
Foresgn exchange gains 1,593 - 1,593 47743 - 47,743
Cash flow hedges
Gans/(losses) taken to other comprehensive ncome 33,738 (1,809 21,929 (70,505} 24,816  (46,089)
Losses transferred from other comprehensive income
to income statement 1,398 (3,989) 7,409 37483 13,119} 24,364
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension schemes (14,107) 5,635 (8,472) (34,872 11,91 (22,9610
37,026 (10,163) 26,863 (169,040) 23608 (145432)
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16 Property, plant and equipment

Financial statements

Group
Assets in courseof Fixturesand Computer equipment
Land and bu:ldings constructicn equipment and software Total
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000

Cost
At10ctober 2008 49,880 100,010 14,108 166,325 330,323
Additions 3,508 60,853 1917 6,441 72,719
Transfers between ttems 2,919 (82,73&) (2,933) 88,586 -
Disposals (334) - (898) 4,794) (6,026}
Write off - (14,615) - - {14,615}
At10ctober 2009 50,137 63,512 12,194 256,558 382,401
Acquisitions through business combinations 602 - 19 1,342 1,963
Other additions 85 79,538 - 340 79,963
Transfers between items 44 {53,116) 1,168 51,904 -
Disposals (87) - (17%) {18,890) (19,152)
At 30 September 2010 50,781 89,934 13,206 291,254 445175
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At10ctober 2008 (14,258) - (8,000) (84,980) (107,238
Charge for the year (5,100} - (1,653) (32,546) (39,299)
Elimination on disposal 307 - 454 4,719 5,480
At10ctober 2009 (19,051 - 9,199 (112,807) (141,057}
Charge for the year (4,701 - (1,468) (44,563) (51132)
Elimmnation on disposal 87 - 175 18,889 19,151
At 30 September 2010 (23,665) - 10,492) (128,881) (173,038)
Carrying amount
At 30 September 2010 2716 89,934 2.n4 152,373 272137
At 30 September 2009 31,086 63,512 2,995 143,751 241,344

The group leased computer equipment under a number of finance lease arrangements At 30 September 2010, the net carrying amount of leased

assets was £5,365,000 (2009 €5,478,000)

Capital commitments at the end of the financial year, for which no provision has been made are as foliows

Group

2010 2009
€000 €000
Contracted purchase of software and computer equipment 4,955 1,348
Contracted expenditure on burldings, fixtures and equipment 2,396 714
7,351 2,062
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16. Property, plant and equipment continued

Company
Buildng Fixtures and Computer equipment
wnprovements equpment and software Total
€000 €000 €000 €000

Cost
At1October 2008 and 1 October 2009 - - - -
Transfer of the subsidiary undertaking SAS Carte Bleue 602 19 7N 1,332
Other additions 85 - 340 425
Disposals - - {46} (46}
At 30 September 2010 687 19 1,005 17N
Accumulated depreciation
At1October 2008 and 1 October 2009 - - - -
Charge for the year G))] ©) (381) 448}
Elmination on disposal - - 45 45
At 30 September 2010 (61) ©) (336) (403)
Carrying amount
At 30 September 2010 626 13 669 1,308

At 30 September 2009 - B _ _

17. Acquisition of subsidiary

On 1 February 2010 the group obtained control of SAS Carte Bleue, a French payments processing entity by acquiring 100 per cent of the shares
and voting interests in the company

Through an increased presence In France following the acquisition, Visa Europe’s aim 1s to increase market share in France, as it wifl have the ability 1o
provide a tnified Visa Europe view to French members and wiil be able to provide better custemer service by tatoring products for individual members

Inthe eight months to 30 September 2010 the SAS Carte Bleue business contributed revenue of €62,207,000 and profit after tax of €3,096,000
If the acquisition had occurred on 1 October 2009, management estimates that the SAS Carte Bleue business would have contributed revenues of
€90,641,000 and profit after tax for the year of €3,923,000 In determining these amounts management has assumed that the fair vatue
adjustments that arose on the date of acquisition would have been the sarne if the acquisition had ocourred on 1 Qctober 2009

Identifiable assets acquired and (habihties) assumed

Pre-acquisttion Recogmsed values

carrymg it atacqg

€000 €000
Goodwill (see note 18) - 14,189
Property, plant and equipment (including software) 1,452 1,963
Intangibles (see note 18) 28 4,468
Inventories 254 254
Trade and other recevables 29,613 29,613
Cash and cash equivalents 2,888 2,888
Trade and other payables (26,864) (27,088
Deferred tax (3,764) (5.443)
Personnel and pension obligations (1,3348) 1,57
Total net dentifiable assets 2,273 19,273
Cash flows used in the acquisition
Consideration agreed for the acquisition of SAS Carte Bleue amounted to €19,273,000

€000

Consideration for SAS Carte Bleue 19,273
Deferred consideration (563)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired (2,888)
Cash flows used in the acquisition 15,822
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17. Acquisition of subsidiary continued

Costs associated with the acquisiion amounting to €3,540,000 (2009 £3,942,000) have been expensed as exceptional costs and included within
adrmiristration expenses (refer note 7)

Goodwill

Goodwill recognised as a result of the acquisition is as follows

€000
Consideration paid 19,273
Less net identifiable assets and liabihities assumed (5,084)
Goodwill 14,189

Amortisation periods

The amortisation periods of other intangibles and acquired software 1s as follows

Amortisation penod

€ 000 {In years)
Customer relationships 3,7 15
Brand 757 15
Software 1,122 7

Forecast revenue and cost synergies ansing from the acquisition have been aitributed to the intangible asset values The goodwll value 1s the residual
balance of the purchase price after allocation of appropriate fair values to the intangible asset categories

None of the goodwill 15 expected to be deductible for tax purposes

18. Goodwill and intangibles

Group
Operating Customer
Goodwill nghts  relationshaps Brand Total

Mote €000 €000 €000 €000 €000
Cost
At 10ctober 2008 and 30 September 2009 18,826 5,775 - - 24,601
Acquisition through business combinations 17 14,189 - 3,71 757 18,657
At 30 September 2010 33,015 5775 3,7/m 757 43,258
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 October 2008 and 30 September 2009 - - - - -
Amortisation charge - - (165) (34) (199
At 30 September 2010 - - (165) (34) 19%9)
Carrying amount
At 10October 2008 and 30 September 2009 18,826 5,775 - - 24,601
At 30 September 2010 33,015 5775 3,546 723 43,059

Goodwill acquired in a business combination 1s allocated, at acquisition, to the cash-generating units (CGUs) that are expected to benefit from that
business combination

The group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill mught be impaired

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value-in-use calculations The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations are
those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes to seling prices and direct costs during the penod Management estimates
discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the nisks specific to the CGUs For the
current year, this was ten per cent The growth rates are based on industry growth forecasts Changesin selling prices and direct costs are based
on past practices and expectatrons of future changes in the market

The group prepares cash flow forecasts derved from the most recent inancial budgets approved by management for the next three years and
extrapolates cash flows based on an estimated growth rate of three per cent This rate does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant markets
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18. Goodwill and intangibles continued

Company
Goodwill Brand Totat
€000 €000 €000
Cost
At 1Qctober 2008 and 30 September 2009 - -
Acquisition through business combinations 16,080 26 16,106
At 30 September 2010 16,080 26 16,106
Accumulated amortisation
At 1Qctober 2008 and 30 September 2009 - - -
Amortisation charge (370) (5) (375)
At 30 September 2010 (370) (5) (375)
Carrying amount
At 10ctober 2008 and 30 September 2009 - - -
At 30 September 2010 15,710 21 15,731
19. Investment in subsidiaries
2000 2009
€000 €000
Cost and carrying value
At 1 Octeber and 30 September a5 45
Details of the company’s substdiaries at 30 September 2010 are as follows
mcorp:ra:::r: Proportionof  Proporhonof Method used to
ownership (or Place of ownerstip  voling power account
Name )] operation nterest hetd mvestment
Visa Europe Services Inc USA UK 100% 100% Cost
Visa Management Limited (dormant) UK UK 100%" 100%" Cost
European Resource Management Limited Jersey Jersey 100%* 100%* Cost
Visa EU Limited {dormant) UK UK 100%* 100%* Cost

* Qwnership interest and voting power held indirectly by the company through its interest in Visa Europe Services Inc

20, Financial assets (group)

Group
2010 2009
€000 €000
Non-current
Interest rate derivatives 22N 1,727
Currency derivatives 8177 50
10,448 1777
Group
2010 2009
€000 €000
Current
Held to maturity investment 65,000 100,000
Interest rate denvatives - 4,642
Currency derivatives 11,724 464
Available-for-sale investment 37,818 29,961
114,542 135,067

At 30 September 2010, avallable-for-sale assets included Class C (Senes IV) shares in Visa Inc held by the group valued at €29,518,000

(2009 €23,238,000) The shares are listed and are measured at fair value (see note 14)
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21, Short-term investment (company)

2010 2009
€000 €000
Current assets
investment 65,000 100,000
On 30 September 2010, a fixed term investment was held by the company which was valued at historical cost less impairment
22 Inventories
2010 2009
€000 €000
Firushed goods 358 -
23 Trade and other receivables
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
€000 €000 €000 €000
Trade receivables 494,379 98,281 65,897 26,302
Amounts owed by related parties - - 445,348 44,360
QOther recevables 21,409 2128 281 798
Prepayments 27479 1543 166 -
543,267 115,552 511,692 71,460

The average credit period taken on sales of goods is 27 days (2009 25 days) No interest is charged on the recevables for the first 30 days from the
date of the invoice

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value
The group's exposure to credit and currency risks and iImpairment losses related to trade and other recervables are disclosed in note 25

During the course of 2010, most of our members migrated frem Visa Inc’s settlement system, to Visa Europe’s own settlement system, VECSS
The consequence of setthng receipts fromnet issung members and payments to net acquiring members two days after the processing date 1s that
the gross amounts of cardholder transactions are reflected n the group’s balance sheet, rather than Visa Inc's, as accounts recevable and accounts
payable, respectively Consequently, the group has seen an increase in the bafance of these accounts compared to September 2009

24 Cash and cash equivalents

Growp Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
€000 €000 €000 €000
Bank balances 635,254 393,043 88,916 270,278
Bank overdrafts (see note 28) (7.434) 209 5) -
Cash and cash equivalent in the statement of cash flows 627,820 392,834 883,9M 270,278

Cash and cash equivalents held by the group mnclude short-term bank deposits with an ongmal maturity of three months or less

The bank overdrafts are repayable on demand The average effective mnterest rate on bank overdrafts approximates 2 23 per cent (2009 3 51 per cent)
per annum and 1s deterrmuned based on 1 75 per cent plus base rate The average effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits approximates
044 per cent (2009 273 per cent)

The group’s exposure to interest rate risk and a sensitivity analysis for financial assets and liabilities are disclosed in note 25

Visa Europe Annual Report 2010 105




Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements continued

Year ended 30 September 2010
25. Financial instruments

Settlement risk

Settlement risk s the nisk that a member is unable to honour its obligations to the group as and when they fall due Daily settlements volumes averaged
more than €1 4 bilion (2009 €900 million) To guard aganst any potential losses that may arise, the group obtains financial safeguards from members
where it 15 deemed appropriate This 1s based on board-approved guidelines and generally includes cash equivalents, letter of credits and guarantees

The group had the foltowing financial safeguards to mibigate its settlerment nisk with members

2010 2009
€ milthon € milhon
Cash 176 157
Letters of credit 307 276
Guarantees 505 374
Total 988 807
As these forms of collateral do not meet the definition of an asset for the group, no amounts are ncluded on the batance sheet
Credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the group’s maximum exposure, which at reporting date, was as follows
2010 2009
€ muthion € milhon
Financial assets 1250 1369
Trade and other recevables 543 3 N5 6
Cash and cash equivalents 6353 3930
1,303 6 6455
The group places cash deposits wath high credit quahty financial institutrons
At the reporting date there were no significant financial guarantees for third party obligations that increased this nsk The group signs netting
agreements under an ISDA (International Swaps and Dernvatives Association) master agreement with the respective counterparties, which
minimises the exposure on derwvative positions
Liquidity risk
Maturity analysis
The following tables show the group’s contractual cash flows of financial abilities, inctuding estimated interest payments
30 September 2010
Contractuat
Net carrytng amournt cashflows Lessthanlyear  Greater thanyear
€ milbon €anibon €milhon € mthon
Non-derivative financial labilities
Bank overdraft 74) (74) 74 -
Trade and other payables (937 8) 9378) (937 8) -
Finance lease Q@9 co 30 -
Denwvative financial liabilities
Interest rate swaps on on on -
Total hguidity risk (948 2) (948 3) (948 3) -
30 September 2009
Contractual
Net carrying amount cash flows Less thaniyear Greater than 1 year
€ mibon € milbon € mihon € milion
Non-dervative financial habilities
Bank overdraft 02 ©2) o2 -
Trade and other payables (3203) (320 {3203) -
finance lease 53) S a4 39 (15
Denvative financial habilities
Interest rate swaps - - - -
Total hquidity risk (325 8) (3259) (324 &) (15
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25. Finanaal instruments continued

The follow:ng table indicates the periods in which the cash flows associated with cash flow hedges are expected to occur
30 September 2010

2010
& months

Total orless 612 months 1-3years Greater than 3 years

€ millson € million € million € millon € mallson

Interest rate swaps 22 1 a2z 23 -

Forward rate agreements - - - - -
Foreign exchange forward contracts

Sterhing 6323 1n43 904 4276 -

US Dollar 143 4 274 36 Nnza -

Other - - - - -

Total 7779 1428 928 5423 -

30 September 2009
2009
amanths

Total or loss 6-12 months. 1-3years Greaier than 3 years

€nilhon €milhon € rulion € million €mikion

Interest rate swaps 57 45 05) 17 -

Forward rate agreements 06 01 04 a1 -
Foreign exchange forward contracts

Sterhng 6200 1640 1350 3210 -

US Dollar 210 230 380 600 -

Other (12 0) (130) 10 - -

Total 7353 1786 1739 3828 -

The following table indicates the periods in which the cash flows associated with cash flow hedges outstanding at 30 Septernber 2010 and 2009
are expected toimpact the income statement

30 September 2010
2010
6months
Total or less 6-12 months 1-3years Greaterthan3years
€million € milhion € milhon €million €mithon
Interest rate swaps 06 0 4) 09 01 -
Forward rate agreements - - - - -
Foreign exchange forward contracts
Sterling 6323 n4a3 904 4276 -
UsS Dollar 1434 274 36 nza -
Total 7763 1413 949 5401 -
30 September 2009
2009
6 months
Total or less 6-12 months T-3years Greater than 3 years
€ melion €milbon € milhon €miion € mitlion
Interest rate swaps 11 on 09 03 -
Forward rate agreements 06 02 04 - -
Foreign exchange forward contracts
Sterling 6200 164 0 1350 3210 -
US Dollar 1210 230 380 600 -
Other (120} (30 10 - -
Total 7307 1741 1753 3813 -

Visa Europe Annual Report 2000 107




Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements continuved

Year ended 30 September 2010

25, Financial instruments continued
30 September 2010

The following table shows the fair values of the group's derivative financial instruments held at 30 September 2010 and 2009

2010
&months

Total orless 6-12months 1-3years Greaterthan3years

€milhon € rullion € miflion €mllion € million

Interest rate swaps 22 11 a2) 23 -

Forward rate agreements - - - - -
Foreign exchange forward contracts

Sterling 01 01 a0 10 -

US Dollar 04 04 10 1o -

Other - - - - -

Total 27 16 12) 23 -

30 September 2009
2009
& months

Total orless 6 12 menths 1-3years Greater than 3 years

E€milion € millon € rmullion Enmtlion € milbon

Interest rate swaps 57 45 ©5) 17 -

Forward rate agreements 06 0t 04 01 -
Foreign exchange forward contracts

Sterling 4?7 (65 ma (198) -

US Dollar 35 [(OF*)] o3 23 -

Other 03 02 on - -

Total 452) 3o me (203) -

Forecast data for habihties which may be incurred in the future 1s not included in the table above Amounts in foreign currency were translated at the
closing rate at the reporting date The varizbte payments ansing from the financial instruments were calculated based on the forward interest rate
yield curve at 30 Septermber 2010 and 2009 Interest on interest rate swaps includes the paid and recewved amounts as interest 15 settled on a net
basis Financial habilities that can be repaid at any time have been assigned to the earliest possible ime penod

It 1s not expected that the cash flows included in the matunty analysis could occur significantly earlier, or at significantly different amaunts

Market risk

Interest rate risks

The group 15 exposed to fluctuations in interest rates onits cash investments

The majonty of cash/cash equivalents are held as deposits with less than three months matunty or as negotiable instruments They are readily
accessible and receive floating rate interest This floating rate profile has been partially fixed using interest rate swaps and fixed rate agreements

The following table shows the instruments traded and their durations

2010 2069
Carrying amount Dwration Carrying amount Duratwon
€ milbon days € miflion days

Financial assets
Amounts owing from banks under vanous deposit arrangements at varous
interest rates 6230 2 3847 2
Marketable securities 650 12 1000 12
Total assets and weighted duration 6880 3 4847 4
Financial dervatives
Fixed rate agreements - - a6 206
Interest rate swaps - fixed rate 22 376 58 483
Total derivatives and weighted duration 22 376 64 345

Note Notional values have been used to calculate duration to maturity
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25. Financial instruments continued
Interest rate nsk sensitivity

The group has hedged a proportion of its interest recevable using derivative products The risk associated with the hedge lability 1s assessed by sensitmty
testing (ten per cent interest rate shift) At year end aten per cent ncrease in the yield curve would lead to a mark-to-market foss of €0 3 mullion

Hedge accounting
As described above, the group's activities expose it to the financial risks of changes n foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates To hedge
these exposures, the group uses foreign exchange forward contracts and interest rate swaps which are designated as cash flow hedges The group
does not use derivative financial nstruments for speculative purposes The group’s derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting policy ts
disclosed in note 2

The group rnay enter into certain foreign currency and interest rate transactions that are not designated as hedges for accounting purposes The farr
value movements of such transactions are immediately recorded in the income statement

The carrying amount of derivative financial instruments and whether these dervatives are designated in a formal hedging relatianship at the
reporting date is analysed as follows

2010 2009
Assets Luabilitres Assets Liabilibes
€000 €000 £000 €000
Cash flow hedges
Interest rate swaps 22 - 10 -
Foreign exchange forward contracts
Sterling 107 (126) - 478)
US Bollar 36 (75} 05 “@o
Total 165 (201 15 (518)
Not designated in a qualifying hedging refationship
Interest rate swaps - - 47 -
Forward rate agreements - - 06 -
Foreign exchange forward contracts
Sterling 19 - - -
US Dollar 36 - - -
Other - - - 01
Total 55 - 53 01

Currency risk
Sensitivity analysis on foretgn exchange nisk

Residual risk after hedging 1s assessed using "Value-at-Risk’ (VaR) and sensitivity analyses All VaR approaches try 1o recognise that holding different
assets/labilities or future cash flow exposures may actually reduce portfoho risk through the de-correlation benefiis of diversification This benefit is
captured within the calcutation and thus aims to present portfoha nsk holistically

The group enly has two major currency pairs and thus de-correlation benefits are mited Nevertheless, the VaR approach 1s deemed a useful
method of measuring risk and forms part of the nsk management reporting

The group uses the VaR - Varnance-Covanance {or Parametnc) Approach This method measures within what ranges the value of respective
exposures may fluctuate with a certain probability over a certain time peniod (holding perod)

The VaR and sensitivity analysis 1s presented to the Asset and Lizbility Commuttee as part of the monthly compliance reporting The committee
considers whether any action is necessary depending on nsk appetite

The group uses a 95 per cent confidence interval (e these 1s a five per cent probability that the impact from market fluctuations exceeds the level
calculated) over a 12-month halding peried This is applied to the future uncommitted foreign currency exposures

The statistical measure takes past price data and imphcitly assumnes that the value changes in the recent past are indicative of value changes inthe
future The measure is performed quarterly
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25. Financial instruments continued

Risk calculation summary table (net impact)

Time honzon 2010 2009
months £ million €midlon
Foreign exchange risks
Transaction risk uncomrmitted - Value-at-Risk 12 54 128
Uncommitted FX nsk - currency sensitivity (12-month holding period)
Value-at-Risk 2010 2009
Gross impact Netwnpact Risk reduction  Gross impact Netimpact  Risk reduction
€ milhon € mitlion % €mithon €million %
US Dollar 184 35 81 258 123 52
Sterling 443 49 89 574 88 85
Total undiversified 627 84 87 B32 n 75
Diversification (18 4) (€20 B4 (293) 83 72
Net VaR 443 54 88 539 128 76
The muinimum and maximum levels of VaR recorded in 2030 and 2009 were €5 O million and €17 6 million, respectively
Dunng 2010 the group started to support its non Eure settlement exposure by retaining hquid mvestments denominated in foreign currency
The cash investments have been hedged using currency forwards and the net Value at Risk at year end was €nil as highlighted in the table below
Committed FX risk -currency sensitivity (12-month holding period)
Value-at-Risk 2010
Gross impact Net impact  Risk reduction
€mulhon € mitian %
US Dollar 101 - 100
Sterling 105 - 100
Total undiversified 206 - 100
Dwversification =3 - 100
Net VaR 153 - 100
The followng table demonstrates the sales and operating cost foreign currency exposures The prienary net foreign currency exposures agamst the
Euro are the US Dollar and Sterling
The split of trade receivables and trade payables by currency for the years ended 2010 and 2009 were as follows
Trade Recervables % Trace Payables %
Currency 2010 2009 2010 2009
Us Dollar 6 15 2 2
Euro 38 19 35 12
Sterling 25 19 27 35
Other 3 47 32 51
Total 100 100 100 100

The spht of sales and operating costs by currency for the years 2010 and 2009 were as follows

Sales % Operating costsin %
Currency 2010 2009 2010 2009
US Dollar 35 34 23 26
Euro 52 49 15 21
Sterling 4 7 61 53
Other g i0 1 -
Total 100 100 100 100

A sigruficant strengthening of the US Daollar or Sterling against the Euro will thus negatively affect the group results The group assesses the nsk by
sensitivity testing (ten per cent currency shift) and stress testing (25 per cent currency shift) the net underlying exposure on a quarterly basis At year
end 2010 a ten per cent strengtherung of both the US Doliar and Sterling against the Euro would adversely affect the cash flow by €6 3 rmiilion
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25 Financial instruments continued

Fair values
The group uses quoted prices (unadjusted) i active markets to deterrmine the fair values of identical assets or labiities

The tabte below analyses financsal instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method The different levels have been defined n note 3
30 September 2010

Leveld Level2 Level3 Total
€ million € mullion € millon € rullion
Non-derivative financial assets.
Trade and other recervables 5433 - - 5433
Cash and cash equivalents 6353 - - 6353
Financial assets - held to maturity 650 - - 650
Available-for-sale investment 277 - 101 378
Dertvative financial assets
Interest rate derivatives - 23 - 23
Currency dernvatives - 199 - 199
12713 222 101 13036
Non-derivative financial habilihies:
Bank overdraft (7.4) - - 74
Trade and other payables (9378) - - (937 8)
Finance lease 29 - - 29
Denvative financial habthties
Currency dernivatives - (202) - 202)
(9481) (202) - {968 3)
30 September 2009
Level 1 Level2 Levet3 Total
€ milkkon €mithon € millon € million
Non-derivative financial assets
Trade and other receivables 156 - - 56
Cash and cash equivalents 3930 - - 3930
Financial assets - held to maturity 1000 - - 1000
Avatlable-for-sale investment 146 - 154 300
Derwvative financial assets
Interest rate derivatives - 64 - 64
Currency dervatives - Q5 - 05
6232 69 154 6455
Non-derivative financial habilities:
Bank overdraft 0 2) - - ©2)
Trade and other payables (3203) - - (3203
Fmance lease 39 - - (39
Dervative financial habihties
Currency derivatives - 520) - (520}
(324 4) (520) - (376 4)

The following table shows the movement in assets measured on alevel 3 fair value basis
Available for sate financial assets

€ ronlhon
At 10October 2009 154
Transfers out of level 3 to level 1 Mo
Gains on revaluation taken to other comprehensive income 45
Foreign exchange gans taken to other comprehensive income 12
At 30 September 2010 101

Interest rates used for determining fair value

The mterest rates used to discount estumated cash flows, when applicable, are based on the government yield curve at the reporting date and were as follows
2610 2009

Derwative contracts 0.43% to167% 030%1to126%
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26 Deferred tax

The following are the major deferred tax liabilitres and assets recognised by the group and movements thereon during the current and prior

reporting period

Acceleratedtax  Retirement benefit Other temporary
depreaation obligations differences Total
€000 €000 €000 €000
At 1October 2008 (S11) 2922 8,072 10,483
{Charge)/credit to profit or loss (1,695) (1,516) 1,961 (1,250)
Credit to other comprehensive income - 11,989 1,619 23,608
Prior year adjustment (789) 1,424 (6,637 (6,002)
Exchange differences - (868) - (868)
At 10ctober 2009 (2595} 13,951 15,015 25,971
Goodwill on acquisition of SAS Carte Bleue - - (1,720) 0,720)
(Charge)/credit to profit or loss 1,626 1,636 (1,362) 1,900
(Charge)/credit to other comprehensive income - 5,635 (15,798) 10,063)
Prior year adjustment 508 2,518 - 3,026
Exchange differences - 379 - 379
At 30 September 2010 (g6 24119 (3,865) 19,393
Certain deferred tax assets and habitiies have been offset The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (before offset) for financiat
reporting purposes
2010 2009
€000 €000
Deferred tax habtlities (4,958) (5172)
Deferred tax assets 24,351 31,143
19,393 25,971

As the group settles its ultimate tax liabihity 1n one jurisdiction and by net payments, it 1s entitfed to offset deferred tax assets and hiabilities, if the
periods over which they reverse match The habilities shown above relate to short-term temparary differences in respect of prepaid expenses

These liabilities are netted against assets refating to short-term temporary differences in respect of accrued expenses

27. Trade and other payables

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
€000 €000 €000 €000
Trade payables 472,024 71,874 9,842 3736
Social secunity and other taxes 2,810 19.115 320 9964
Accruals and deferred income 462,963 229,343 353,099 12,264
937,797 320,332 363,261 125,964

Trade payables and accruals principally compnise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongomng costs The average credit period taken for

trade purchases s 21 days (2009 27 days)

For an explanation of the movement in trade payables, refer to note 23

28. Financial liabilities

2010 2009
€000 €000

Non-current
Obhgations under finance leases (note 29) - 1,469
Currency dernivatives 8,694 22,150
8,694 23,619

Current

Obhgations under finance leases (note 29) 2,912 3,879
Bank overdrafts (note 24) 7434 209
Currency denvatives n5Mm 29,891
Interest rate dervatives B89 -
21,936 33979
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29. Obhgations under finance leases

The minimum lease payrment under the terms of the leases are as follows

Mimmum leasa payments Present value of lease paymients
2010 2009 2010 2009
€000 €000 €000 €000
Amounts payable under finance leases
Within one year 2,982 3,951 2,912 3,879
In the second to fifth years - 1,503 _ 1,469
2,982 5,454 2912 5,348
Less future finance charges (70) (106)
Present value of lease obligations 2912 5,348
Less amount due for settlement within 12 months
(shown under current labiities) 2912 (3,879)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months - 1.469

It 1s the group’s policy to lease certain of its fixtures and equipment under finance leases The average lease term s four years (2009 four years) For
the year ended 30 September 2010, the average effective borrowing rate was six per cent (2009 six per cent) Interest rates are fixed at the contract
date Allleases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered iato for contingent rental repayments

All lease obhigations are denorminated in Sterling

The fair value of the group’s lease obligations approximates their carrying amount

The group's obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors’ night over the leased asset
30. Retirement benefit obligation

Defined contnbution pension schemes

The pension charge for the year represents contributrons payable by the group to the schemes and amounted to £€6,650,000 (2009 €5,948,000)
The assets of the defined contnbution schemes are held in independently administered funds The charge in respect of these schemes 1s calculated
on the basis of contributions payable by the group in the financial peniod More than two thirds of employees are members of these pension schemes
(69 per cent)

A defined contribution habihty of €240,000 was recogrised at ihe end of the year (2009 €nil) foilowing the acquisition of SAS Carte Bleue
Defined benefit schemes

The group provides benefits though a defined benefit plan which s known as “The Visa Europe Pension Plan’ (VPP) Here the benefits are provided
on a funded basis and are based on the final pensionable pay of its members to the maximum level allowed by HMRC The balance of the benefit for
those few indviduals entitled to benefits above the maximum aliowed by HMRC, 1s provided through an unfunded unapproved arrangement (UA)
The UA scheme s classified in ‘other schemes’ in the following tables

The fatest actuana! valuation for the VPP and UA scherne was carned out at 30 September 2008 and was updated for the purpose of 1AS 19,
Employee Benefits, to 30 September 2010 by a qualified independent actuary As the schemes are closed to new members, it 1s expected that the
cost of the schemes as a percentage of individual pensionable salaries wilf increase as the members age

During the year, the group acquired SAS Carte Bleve The labihties of SAS Carte Bleue included a defined benefit scheme which 1s unfunded This
scheme has been included within “other schemes’ and 1s in relatron to retirement indemmities paid on retirernent in line with French regulations

The latest actuanal valuation for the SAS Carte Bleue retirement indemnities was carried out at 31 March 2009

The cumutative amount recogmsed in other comprehensive Income for alt arrangements at 30 September 2010 was €(36,865,000)
(2009 €(22,758,0000)

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
% % % % %

Key assumptions used
Discount rate apphied to scheme habilities 519 568 700 600 500
Expected return on scheme assets 613 661 813 700 651
Expected rate of salary increases 446 444 4 BO 450 4725
Future pension increases 306 305 335 310 300
Inflation In 319 355 325 300
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30. Retirement benefit obligation continued

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Years ‘Years Years Year Years

Life expectancy for a male aged 65 235 234 233 219 198

Life expectancy for a male aged 45 from the age of 65 246 246 245 230 198

Life expectancy for a female aged 65 258 257 257 248 228

Life expectancy for a female aged 45 from the age of 65 268 267 267 258 228
Amounts recognised through the income statement in respect of these defined benefit schemes are as follows

2010 2009

Total VPP Otherschemes Total VPP Other schemes

€000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000

Current service cost 5.095 4,815 280 4,477 4,227 250

interest cost 8,486 312 374 7636 7,342 294

Expected return on scheme assets (7,848) (7,848) - (8,430) (8,430) -

Past service costs 157 157 - 6 3] -

5,890 5,236 654 3,689 3,145 544

Amounts recognised through the income statement have been included in administsation expenses Actuanal gains and losses have been reported

in other comprehensive iIncome

The actual return on scheme assets was €10,441,000 (2009 €8,117.000) The amount included in the balance sheet ansing from the group's

obhgations in respect of its defined retirement benefit schemes are as follows

Present value of defined

Fair value of

(Liabihty)/surplus recognised

benefit obligation scheme assets inthe balance sheet
€000 € 00C €000
2010
VPP (172,623) 135,628 (36,995)
Other schemes (8,015) - (8,015)
Total (180,638) 135,628 (45,010)
2009
VPP {139,720} 13,214 (26,506)
Other schemes (6,013) - 6,013
Total (145,733} 3,214 (32,519)
2008
VPP (110,828 10,924 95
QOther schemes (4,406) - (4,406}
Total (115,234) 10,924 4,310
2007
VPP (130,607 140,008 9,401
Other schemes (5,376) - (5,376}
Total (135,983) 140,008 4,025
2006
VPP (144,008) 126,934 (17,072)
Other schemes (5,822) - (5,822)
Total (149,828) 126,934 {22,894)
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30. Retirement benefit obligation continued

Movements in the presenat value of defined benefit obligation were as follows

Financial statements

2010 2009
Total VPP Other Schemes Total VPP OtherSchemes
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000
At1October (145,733) (139,720) 6,013) (15,234) (110,828) (4,406)
Acquisition through business combinations (238) - (238) - - -
Current service cost (5,095) (4,815) (280) 4,477) (4,227) (2500
Interest cost (B,486) (8.12) (3714)  (7.636) (7.342) (294)
Actuarial losses 16,7000  (15,892) (B08) (34,559 (32,823 (1,738
Exchange difference (8,053) (7,681) (372) 15,490 14,879 6N
Benefits pard 3,824 3,754 70 689 627 62
Past service cost (157) Qas? - ) & -
At 30 Septernber (180,638) (172,623) (8.015) (145,733) (139,720) (6,013
Movements in the present value of defined benefit assets were as follows
2010 2009
Total VPP Other Schemes Total VPP Other Schemes
€000 €000 €000 €000 £000 €000
At1October 13,214 13,2143 - 110,924 110,924 -
Expected return on scheme assets 7,848 7,848 - 8,430 8,430 -
Actuanal gains and (losses) 2,593 2,593 - 313 (313) -
Exchange difference 6,050 6,050 - (14,871 14,87%) -
Contributions from the sponsoring company 9,747 9,677 70 9,733 9,671 62
Benefits pard (3,829) (3,754) 7o) (689) 627 ©2)
At 30 September 135,628 135628 - 13,214 13,214 -
The analysis of the scheme assets and the expectedrate of return at the reporting date were as follows
Expectedrate of return Fair value of assets
2010 2009 200 2009
% % €000 €000
Equity nstrument 738 823 59,676 48,33
Index-Inked gilts 353 395 25,769 22,049
Debt instruments 519 568 33,907 24,051
Property 738 823 13,563 2,804
Other assets 350 415 2,713 15,979
135,628 13,214
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30. Retirement benefit obligation continued

Expenence items and habilities were as follows

Expenence gains/ (Josses) Exp e gains/ ) o Labil.

€000 €000
2010
VPP 2,593 (15,892)
Other schemes - (808)
Total 2,593 {16,700)
2009
VPP (313) (32,823)
Qther schemes - (1,736)
Tota! (313) (34,559
2008
VPP (25,107 16,056
Other schemes - 832
Total (25,07 16,888
2007
VPP 33 22,679
Other schemes - 1,187
Total 33 23,866
2006
VPP 5,422 (8,797)
Other schemes - Q9n
Total 5,422 {8,988)

The expected contrnbutions between 1 October 2010 and 30 Septernber 2011 are €10,430,000

The assumptions used in order to catculate expected return are as follows

Equity instruments The dividend yield on the FTSE All Share Index at 30 September 2010 together with an inflation assurnption and an assumption

of one per cent per annum long-term real dwidend growth

Cash The 20-year interest rate swap at 30 September 2010

Index hnked The return s equal to the yield pubhshed for the F TSE UK Gilis 15-year index

Debt instruments The discount rate

Property As equity instruments (see above)

During the financial year the Governrnent announced that it will in future use the Consumer Prices Index in place of the Retail Prices Index inits

deterrmination of statutory mimmum pension increases for private sector occupational pension schemes Management are considering how the
Government s decision may impact the group’s UK pension arrangements Management will continue to monitor the developments in this area
and market reaction, however, there 1s no vmpact on the group’s financial statements for this financial year

31. Provisions

200 2009
Asset Asset
retirement retwement
Total obligation Other Total obligation QOther
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000
At10ctober 6,606 5,386 1,220 7.832 4,332 3,500
Addittonal provision in the year 1,802 452 1,350 2432 1168 1,264
Unwinding of discount 487 487 - 446 446 -
Provisions reversed during the year a9 - Qa9 (3,073) - (3,073
Provisions used during the year (ears] - (N7} @am - (CY)]
Exchange difference 278 278 - (560) (560) -
At 30 September 8,437 6,603 1,834 6,606 5,386 1,220

The asset retirement obligation represents a habiity to restore the group’s leased buildings to ther onginal condition The provision is made on
a discounted basis over the remainder of the lease A corresponding asset has been caprtalised wittun land and buildings in property, pfant and

equipment and 1s being amortised to the income statement over the term of the lease
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32. Capital and reserves

Financial statements

2010 2009
Number € Number €
Issued and fully pard
Subscnber share of €10 1 10 1 10
Ordinary shares of £10 each
At 1October 4,147 1,037 4,586 1,155
Total 1ssued shares at 1 October 4,148 1,047 4,587 1,365
Issue of shares 17 43 45 n
Redemption of shares 126) (32) (65) (i6)
Adjustment for duplications and consclidations (16) 4y 19 [Q)ES]
At 30 September 4177 1,054 4,148 1,047

The subscnber share 1s non-redeemable and does not have the night to participate in any dividend or other distribution which the company may
determine to distribute On winding up, the holder of the subscriber share 1s entitled to recetve out of the assets of the company available for
distribution ta its shareholders, pan passu with the holders of the ordinary shares, the amount paid up on the share but not any further participation

inthose assets

The ardinary shares are redeemable at the option of the member at any time, subject to 180 days’ notice, or at the option of the cornpany through
the resolution of the board epproved by a majonity of at least three-quarters in addition, a member’s share 1s redeemable if the member has not
performed in accordance with the membership operating regulations Under 1AS 32 the ardinary shares are classified as a compound instrument
split between current labdities and equity in the balance sheet The debt element of the ordinary shares in current habilities s held at amortised cost

and valued at €41,000 (2009 £€41,000)

Any difference between the far value of the company's redemption obligations on issue and the subscription price paid has been included as a capital

contribution within equity

In 2009 and 2010, adjustments have been for duphcations and consolidations to resolve duplication errors inthe share register

Company reserves

Attnbutable to the equsty holders of the parent

Capital Capital

Share capital reserve reserve  Revaluationreserve Retained earnings

€000 €000 £000 €000 €000

At 10October 2008 - - 1 745,082 1,898,350
Total recegnised income and expense - - - (745,082) 709,488
Dmdend - - - - (2,296,231
At 30 September 2009 and 1 October 2009 - - 1 - 3n,e07
Total recognised income and expense 2,379
At 30 September 2010 - - 1 - 313,986

The company’s profit on ordinary activities after taxation was €2,379,000 (2009 €185%,095,000)

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of assets classified as investments

33. Notes to the cash flow statement

Cash and cash equivalents (which are presented as a single ctass of assets on the face of the balance sheet) comprise cash at bank and other

short-term highty hquid investments with a maturity of three months or less

Visa Europe Annual Report 2010 17



Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements continued
Year ended 30 September 2010

34. Contingent liabilities

The company and its subsichanies are, from time to time, parties to or affected by legal proceedings and claims and they enter into guarantees,
financing arrangements and comrmitments which are in the ordinary course of business The directors do not anticipate that the outcome of these
proceedings, claims, guarantees, financing arrangements and commitments, either individually or in aggregate, will have a matenal adverse effect
upon the group’s financial posibion

In Aprit 2009, the EU Commussion (‘Commussion’) 1ssued a Statement of Objections (SO’ to Visa Europe alleging that Visa Europe’s intra-regional
and dormestic default MIFs, for the penod from 1 January 2008 to 10 March 20089, restrict competition in acquirning i the EEA On 30 July 2009
Visa Europe responded in detail to the Commission’s allegations Following the disclosure of further information by the Commission te Visa Europe,
Visa Europe submitted a supplementary response to the 50 on 30 October 2009 An agreement on immediate debit interchange was reached in
April 2010 The required interchange rates are expected to come into force in early 2011 There has been no change in respect of deferred debit or
credit interchange Nao supplementary SO has been issued

35. Operating lease arrangements

The group as lessee
2010 2009
€000 €000
Minmmum lease payments under operating leases recognised in income for the year 14,332 14,572

At the reporting date the group had outstanding commitments for futire minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases, which
fall due as follows

2010 2009

€000 €000

Within one year 14,275 12,246
In the second to fifth years inclusive 5010 44,912
After five years 135,882 137,731
200,267 194,889

Qperating lease payments represent rentals payable by the group for certain of its office properties Leases are negotiated for an average term of five
years and rentals are fixed for an average of ten years

The group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was €3,414,000 (2009 £€5,1177,000) At the balance sheet date, the group had contracted with
tenants for the following future minirmurn [ease payments

2010 2009

€000 €000

Within one year 2,502 3971
In the second to fifth years inclusive 7189 10,696
After five years 1,949 1,261
1,640 15,928
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Glossary of terms

At Visa Europe we work in a complex industry with its own particular
terminology and a bewildening array of acronyms Here are defimitions
for some of the terms and acronyms used m this annual report

Acceptance location We use this term to refer to any estabhshment

or any device where Visa cards can be used to buy goods or services or
withdraw cash - such as retailers, bank branches, ATM machines and
unattended or cardholder activated terminals

Acquirer Also referred to as an acquinng bank, this s a Visa member
that signs up merchants to accept Visa cards - and, along with the issuer,
the cardhelder and the retailer, constitutes one of the parties in a four
party payment system

Acquinng bank Also referred to as an acquirer, this is a Visa member
bank that signs up retailers {o accept Visa cards - and, along with the
tssuer, the cardholder and the retatler, constitutes one of the parties in
a four party payment system

Adviser To develop its products and procedures Visa Europe operates
a therough cansultative process, involving several advisory groups

An adviser s a representative of a member bank who serves onone
of these advisory groups

ARF The audit, nsk and finance commuttee 1s one of the committees
of the Visa Europe board of directors

ATM An automated teller machine, more commonly known as a cash
machine, which enables cardholders to withdraw cash from therr bank
or card account

Cardholder We use this term to refer to any one of the customers of our
member banks who has been 1ssued with a Visa card - and, along with
the acquirer, the issuer and the retailer, constitutes one of the parties 1n
a four party payment system

Card sales volume We use this term to refer to the total value of
transactions conducted using Visa cards

CEV Cardholder expenditure volume 1s an amount of money which has
been spent or withdrawn using a Visa card

Chip and PIN This term refers to any Visa transaction (at either the point
of sale or an ATM) which s protected by a combinabion of a chup card
and a personal identification number The tarm can also be used as a
description of the underlying technology involved in these transactions

DCC Dynamic currency conversion s a service which some merchants
offer to foreign cardhotders, whereby a currency convers:on to the
cardhalder's currency of domicile 1s conducted at the pomt of sale

EMC The executive management commuttee 1s the most senicr internal
day-to-day deciston-making bady within Visa Eurcpe and reports to the
board of directors

EMV The Europay MasterCard Visa chip specificatons are regarded as
the industry standard for payment cards sn Europe

EPC The European Payments Counci 15 a decision-making body that
was established by the European banking industry to support and
promote the creation of the Single Euro Payments Area (SEPA)

EC The European Comimission s the executive body of the European
Union ts pnmary roles are to propose and implement legistation, and to
act as ‘guardian of the treaties’ which provide the legal basis for the EU

ECB The Europezn Central Bank is the central bank of the eure zone, In
charge of monetary policy of the 25 countnes that use the euro currency

EV The European Union 1s an intergovernmenta! and supranational
urion of 27 European countries, known as member states

Glossary

Four party system We use this term fo describe payment systerns, such
as Visa, which nvolve four separate participants - that is, the issuer, the
acquirer, the cardholder and the retader

Group Member A group member s an independent orgamsation or
organisations which represent severalindividual banks within Visa
Europe In Spain for example, ServiRed S A, Sisterna 48 and ViaCajas

S A represent the interests of all the Spamsh banks, adapt Visa products
to the Spanish market and manage the gateway to the Visa Europe
processing systems

Inter-bank routing and switching A term used in connection with the
processing of card transactions Using the information within a card
account number, processing systems such as Visa Europe’s will
autornatically send authonsation requests and clearing and settlement
messages to the cardholder’s 1ssuing bank

Interchange A fee which may be paid between two banks each time a
card s used It 1s a 'cost shanng’ mechanism and s purpose 1S to ensure
that Visa cards are as widely accepted and as wadely used as possible

Internal Market A termused by the European Commussion refernng
to policies faciitating the free movement of goods, services, persons
and capital, thereby opening up markets and remowving obstacles to
free trade

Interoperability This tarm generally refers to the ability of hardware and
software from different vendors to understand each other and exchange
data, either within the same network or across dissimilar networks
Within our own industry it means that different payment products from
different payment schemes should work in the same way, in the same
terminals, ang across the same networks

Issuer Also referred to as an 1ssuing bank, this 1s a Visa member bank
that 1ssues Visa cards to its customers - and, along with the acquirer, the
cardholder and the retaller, constitutes cne of the parties in a four party
payment system

Issuing bank Also referred to as an issuer, this is a Visa member bank
that issues Visa cards to its customers - and, along with the acquirer, the
carcdholder and the retailer, constitutes one of the parties in a four party
payment system

Member We use this term to refer to any financial institution or
organisabion that 1s licensed by its national authorities as a payment
service provider which has been admitted as 2 member of Visa

MSC The Merchant Service Charge refers to the fee which an acquirer
charges {0 a retaller each time a card transaction 1s processed on thewr
behalf Visaitself has no role in setting these fees, which are negotiated
directly between the acquwer and the retailer

Operating Regulations A set of rules which define the precise way in
which Visa cards must work, the manner in which payments should be
processed, and the roles and responsibilities of each participant in
every transaction

Payment Services Directive Developed by the European Commission,
the Payment Services Directive (previously known as the New

tegal Framework) seeks to provide a comimon fegal basis for all
European payments

PCE Personal Consurmer Expenditure, the total market value of all goods
and services purchased by households and non-profit institutions,
excluding house purchases
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Glossary

POS Point of sale 1s the term used to classify a Visa transaction where
goods or services are purchased (as opposed to a Visa transaction
where cash ts withdrawn) We also use it to describe a physicat location
where goods or services are sold to cardholders

Processor We use this term to refer to any organisation which provides
payment card transaction processing services to our members - this
could include transaction routing services, authonsation management
services and clearing and settlement services

Retatler We use this term to refer to merchants or service providers
that accepts Visa payments - and, along with the acquirer, the issuer
and the cardholder, constitutes one of the parties in a four party
payment system

RMF The Risk Management Frarmework s the methodology we
use to priontise the vanous business risks faced by Visa Europe and
set out all of the related responsibiities and accountabiiities across
the crganisation

SEPA The Single Euro Payments Area s a term used by the European
Central Bank to refer to its policy and goal of establishing a pan-
European payments infrastructure The aim)s to ehminate any
differences between national and pan-European payments

Transaction This 1 the process that takes place each time a Visa card
15 used to make a purchase or to conduct a cash withdrawal

Vendors We use this term to refer to companies (often technology
cormparues) which supply payment-related goods and services to Visa
and (s member banks Examples may include card manufacturers,
terminzl manufacturers and software providers

Venfied by Visa A service offered by rmember banks to cardholders and
retallers which provides additional secunty for e-commerce transactions
- enabling a cargholder to authenticate themselves
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Visa We use the term Visa in many different ways Depending onthe
context, it may refer to Visa Europe, Visa Inc, the Visa brand, or one
of the Visa products

Visa Commercial We use this term to refer, collectively, to all of the
business-to-business payment products and solutions which have
been developed by Visa and are offered by our member banks

The products include Visa Business, Visa Corporate, Visa Company
and Visa Purchasing

Visalnc VisaInc 1s a private stock corporation incorporated m the
United States, formed through the merger of Visa Canada, Visa USA and
Visa Inc (including the Visa businesses in Asta Pacific, Latin America
and Caribbean, Central and Eastern Europe, Middie East and Africa)
Visa Inc floated onthe New York Stock Exchange in March 2008 Visa
Europe remains a member-owned, not-for-profit association in Europe

Visa system We use this term to refer, collectively, to all of the data
centres, computer systerms and access netwaorks which dehver
transaction processing and related services to member banks

VISOR Visa Inteligent Scoring of Risk (VISOR) 1s a sophisticated fraud
detection system developed by Visa Europe and provided to member
banks Transactions passing through the Visa System are automatically
scrutimsed and 'scored’ to determine the hkelihood of fraud

Volumes We use this term to refer to the total value of transacbons
conducted using Visa cards This could be either cardholder expenditure
volumes (representing the total value of all point of sale transactions and
cash withdrawals) or point of sale volumes (representing the total value
of point of sale transactions alone)
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Tel +44 (0)20 7937 8111
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Nordics

Hamngatan 13

SE-111 47 Stockholm
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Tel +46(0)8 440 3570
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Poland

LIM Centre
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00-697 Warsaw
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Tel +48 22 630 6801
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180E - 2° Dreito
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1250-146 Lisbon
Poriugal

Tel +351 21358 4500
Fax +351 21358 4550

Romania

6 Mana Rosetti Street

Mana Rosett Tower 3rd Floor
Bucharest 020485

Romania

Tel +40312 250 500

Fax +40 312 250 501

Spain

Torre Picasso - Planta 17
Plaza Pablo Ruiz Picasso, s/n
28020 Madnd

Span

Tel +34 91418 9200

Fax +34 91597 3326
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Seefeldstrasse 69
8008 Zunch
Switzerland

Tel +4143 488 3589
Fax +4143 488 3500

The Netherlands

Afnca Bulding
Hoogoorddreef 9

1101 BA Amsterdam
Postbus 12516

1100 AM Amsterdam
The Netherlands

Tel +31(0)203120 557
Fax +31()203120 444

Turkey

Apa-Giz Plaza

Eski Buyukdere Caddesi No 191
Kat 19

Levent 34394

Istanbul

Turkey

Tel +90 (0)212 385 3000

Fax +G0 (0212 386 3030

The Forest Stewardship Council (F5C)
15 an international network which promoltes

responsible management of the world s forests.
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readily identfy tmber based products from
certified sources
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